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Company Information (Continued)
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Financial Summary

M5 mE

(Amounts expressed in thousands of RMB)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (AUDITED)

Year ended December 31

(FrE2BHUARE T TREN)

aftEealaER (BER)
HEF-A=1—HIFFE

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
“E-RF —E-R"E -E—+F -T-\& ZB-hE

Revenue U as 722,185 534,974 657,365 789,704 756,094
Finance (costs)/income, net BT (BR), Wiz HE (421,774) (386,461) 9,695 (591,749) (563,285)
Loss before income tax BEr BRI ER (1,467,259) (457,981) (842,566) (784,960)  (1,398,673)
Income tax credit/(expense) PRIl (BH) 121,118 (147,166) (105,485) (47,412) (62,453)
(Loss)/profit for the year from R | HELFT15

discontinued operations (E1#8),/FH8 (179,147) (717,086) (151,425) (363,463) 332,177
Loss for the year KEER (1,625,288)  (1,322,233)  (1,099,476)  (1,195,835)  (1,128,949)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL B ERR R (BREZR)
POSITION (AUDITED)
As at December 31 R+—HA=+—H

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
—E-RF ZERF ZE—+tF )\ ZE-IF

Current assets FEEE 1,033,667 2,260,010 1,833,381 753,086 208,704
Assets of disposal group BEGENEEANEE

classified as held for sale - - - 5,105,887 -
Property, plant and equipment ~#)7 - TR &R 5,633,576 2,407,958 7,719,859 1,798,839 1,678,414
Right-of-use assets BHEEE - - - - 11,839
Intangible assets BYEE 359,595 8,849 708,193 137,351 94,025
Investments in associates BEPERE - 246,667 182,541 - =
Financial assets at fair value AR AEBESER

through other HEB AHM

comprehensive income FERENEREE - - - 46,458 43,754
Prepayments, deposits and ~ FARTF » RES I

other receivables Hoft e R 497,878 820,224 727,966 357,212 385,363
Restricted cash SREIRE 8,495 - 43,285 45,465 =
Total assets EERE 8,090,105 5,847,628 11,308,343 8,244,899 2,422,915
Current liabilities TEask 1,191,754 479,915 2,747,026 3,359,474 3,050,791
Liabilities of disposal group ~ BESFENREANARE

classified as held for sale - - - 4,533,684 -
Non-current liabilities ERBAE 4,687,355 4,727,926 8,829,778 2,043,858 2,116,256
Total liabilities BERE 5,879,109 5,207,841 11,676,804 9,936,916 5,167,047
Equity gy 2,210,996 639,787 (268,461)  (1,692,017)  (2,744,132)
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Operating Summary

W N A
B E

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
ZE-RF ZE—RF ZZ—+F ZZ-\§& ZEBE-NF
Properties Held by Subsidiaries WEARMEEE
Sales volume $HE
Crude oil (millions of barrels) Eh(EER) 3.55 3.24 2.38 3.12 2.75
China oilfields FEHE 2.44 2.12 1.98 1.83 1.93
Kazakhstan oilfields KiERAME 1.09 1.10 - - -
Export sales HOHE 0.96 0.95 - - -
Domestic sales BNHE 0.13 0.15 - - =
USA oilfields % (Condor) 0.02 0.02 0.01 0.00 -
Canada oilfields &K (Canlin) - - 0.39 1.29 0.82
NGL (millions of barrels) RARBNR(EER) - - 0.16 0.51 0.27
Canada oilfields ME K (Canlin) - - 0.16 0.51 0.27
Gas (MMscf) AAR(ABEEIFER) 202127 171770 2531539 8878330  54,792.64
China oilfields B R - - - 1.33 1.78
Kazakhstan oilfields g ANE 2,001.15  1,703.72 - - =
USA oilfields % (Condor) 20.12 13.98 143 - =
Canada oilfields MNEX (Canlin) - - 2531396 8878697  54,790.86
Net annual production volume BEES
Crude oil (millions of barrels) BEh(EEBR) 3.71 3.27 2.38 3.14 2.76
China oilfields Bk 2.44 2.15 1.98 185 1.94
Kazakhstan oilfields PRiET HE 1.25 1.1 - - =
USA oilfields % (Condor) 0.02 0.01 0.01 0.00 -
Canada oilfields &K (Canlin) - - 0.39 1.29 0.82
NGL (millions of barrels) AARBNR(EER) - - 0.16 0.51 0.27
Canada oilfields INE X (Canlin) - - 0.16 0.51 0.27
Gas (MMscf) AR (ABEEIFER) 2,190.61 1,899.18 2532056  88,790.36  54,792.64
China oilfields Tl A - - - 1.33 1.78
Kazakhstan oilfields IR AnA 2,150.78  1,875.30 - - -
USA oilfields % (Condor) 39.83 23.88 6.6 2.06 -
Canada oilfields JE X (Canlin) - - 2531396 88,786.97  54,790.86
Average daily net crude oil production A 1B EmES
Crude oil (barrels) R (88) 10,153 9,241 9,745 8,777 8,306
China oilfields Bt 6,687 5,872 5,454 5,230 5,319
Kazakhstan oilfields KRiER A 3,412 3,328 = = =
USA oilfields % (Condor) 54 41 29 23 =
Canada oilfields IEX (Canlin) = = 4,262 3,524 2,987
NGL (millions of barrels) RARENR (1) - - 1,690 1,399 1,001
Canada oilfields & X (Canlin) - - 1,690 1,399 1,001
Gas (MMscf) AAR(ABEEIFER) 6.00 5.67 275.17 243.26 200.70
China oilfields hElHH = = = i -
Kazakhstan oilfields KiERANE 5.89 5.60 - - -
USA oilfields %8 (Condor) 0.11 0.07 0.02 0.01 -
Canada oilfields MNEX (Canlin) - = 275.15 243.25 200.70

Note: NGL — Natural Gas Liquid

MIEHOLDINGS CORPORATION / ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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Operating Summary (Continued)
LIBEBRHE(E)

Year ended December 31
BZ+-RA=t-HLEE
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
“E-RF ZERF ZEEF 0\ ZE-NR

Average realized price THERER
Crude oil (US$ per barrel of Bm(Ex/ SREH)
crude oil) 45.79 36.74 48.96 59.07 52.66
China oilfields B 46.65 36.73 48.89 64.56 55.92
Kazakhstan oilfields KRiERATE 43.95 34.85 - - -
Export sales HOME 48.41 38.39 - - -
Domestic sales BAHE 12.02 13.25 - - =
USA oilfields % (Condor) 40.68 37.77 47.44 62.43 -
Canada oilfields AIE A (Canlin) - - 49.32 51.24 44.95
NGL (US$ per barrel) ARRBIR (ER/BR) - - 26.64 23.71 11.68
Canada oilfields &K (Canlin) - - 26.64 23.71 11.68
Gas (US$ per MMscf) AR (Zx/ TEE
YH%ER) 1.03 083 150 1.28 1.06
China oilfilds L - - - 6.36 6.19
Kazakhstan oilfields KiERADE 0.95 0.78 - - -
USA oilfields % (Condor) 2.61 2.30 4.47 - =
Canada oilfields MEAK (Canlin) - - 1.50 1.28 1.06
Lifting costs (US$ per barrel of BEERBEA
crude oil) (Note 1) (Rn/SRER)(Mi1) 752 8.31 7.95 9.39 8.79
China oilfields A B 9.49 8.31 8.48 12.37 10.72
Kazakhstan oilfields KRiER A 3.66 2.25 - - -
Canada oilfields &K (Canlin) - - 7.73 9.09 8.47
Cash net-back (US$ per barrel of HeBOE(En/SREE)
crude oil)
China oilfields B A 35.56 26.94 38.87 50.01 43.69
Kazakhstan oilfields MRiEmATE 10.94 14.26 - - -
Export sales HOHE 12.40 14.80 - - =
Domestic sales BNHE 5.11 9.25 - - -
Canada oilfields MEX (Canlin) - 5.55 3.98 2.25
Wells drilled during the year (Gross) &R+ 2 (£%) 3 2 15 28 14
China oilfields R - - 15 28 14
Successful I - - 15 28 14
Dry g3 - - - - -
Kazakhstan oilfields MEREA 3 2 - - -
Successful RN ER 3 2 - - -
Dry s - - - - -
USA oilfields %l (Condor) = = = = -
Successful PRI E R - - - - -
Dry B = = = = -
Canada oilfields &K (Canlin) - - - - -
Successful KInEG ~ ” E _ _
Dry Eigis = - = = -

Note 1:  Lifting cost refers to direct cost incurred to produce a barrel of oil A&7 : FHKABIEEE —BA M2 EEAEHKA -
HthAERANZEE  RIREBA - RITKHE
AZAREEHEBASUIREEN - RERZ
SRANIE— B RN EERAE

controllable at the field level. Production costs such as safety fee,
environmental expenses, technical and research expenses and overhead
are not included because they are not directly attributable to the production
of a barrel of oil.

MI 82 R AR A / 2019 F 3R



Operating Summary (Continued)

=E i E (E

Year ended December 31

BZE+-A=t-HLEE

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

“T-RF —EF-RF —ET—+tF —ET-)\fF ZBE-nE

Crude Oil Reserves EhEE (TH)
(thousands of barrels)
Subsidiaries HEAAFREE
Total proved RAMEBHE 45,163 10,668 19,366 16,438 9,817
China oilfields (Daan) HESRA (K%) 12,440 10,552 8475 9,058 9,817
Canada oilfields MZ A Canlin - - 10,844 7,380 =
Kazakhstan oilfields MiER AR 32,525 - - - =
USA oilfields % (Condor) 198 116 47 - =
Total proved+probable Ry EERELE 120,975 19,557 27,453 22,506 12,343
China oilfields (Daan) FENRA (KE) 24,416 18,893 12,489 12,928 12,343
Canada oilfields fIZ K Canlin - - 14,893 9,578 =
Kazakhstan oilfields KiEREME 96,150 - - - -
USA oilfields % (Condor) 409 664 71 - =
Total proved+probable+possible R BERTHRELH 160,404 28,319 32,274 27,341 14,453
China oilfields (Daan) FENHA (K%) 34,088 26,487 17,281 17,763 14,453
Canada oilfields INZ K Canlin - - 14,893 9,578 =
Kazakhstan oilfields KRiEr e 124,952 - - - -
USA oilfields % (Condor) 1,364 1,832 100 - =
Equity-accounted entities BEGZARNERTEE
(MIE share) (REBELSS)

Total proved RRHEAE - 17,749 11,618 8,630 6,250
China oilfields (Area 28/03) T EHA (28/03[& 1) - - - - -
Kazakhstan oilfields RiER A - 12,611 7,540 8,530 6,250
Journey Energy Inc Journey B H - 5,138 4,078 - -
Sino Gas & Energy FEITEL (=34 R R L) - - - - -
Total proved+probable %o MEFEAE - 41,549 32,568 30,790 25,500
China oilfields (Area 28/03) B M (28/03 & 1) - - - 3,780 3,780
Kazakhstan oilfields g ATE - 32,457 24,984 27,010 21,720
Journey Energy Inc JourneyJE H - 9,092 7,584 - -
Sino Gas & Energy REFEIL (=i R AR E) - - - - -
Total proved+probable+possible R BERTHRELH - 49,546 53,836 46,919 42,199
China oilfields (Area 28/03) " B M (28/03 & 1) = = = 4,449 4,449
Kazakhstan oilfields iR A = 40,454 46,252 42,470 37,750
Journey Energy Inc JourneyJE H - 9,092 7,584 - -
Sino Gas & Energy PR (=5 REE) S = - - -
Total proved RRfBEE 45,163 28417 30,983 24,968 16,067
Total proved+probable KRG EFEAE 120,975 61,106 60,021 53,296 37,843
Total proved+probable+possible R BERUEEEASE 160,404 77,865 86,110 74,260 56,652
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Operating Summary (Continued)

=ERE(E)

Year ended December 31

BZE+-—A=t-HLEE

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

“E-hF —“T-RF T+ —T-\F ZE-hE
Gas Reserves (millions of SCF) ARRHE(HEREIFER)
Subsidiaries KBAGFHREE
Total proved RAHBEE 36,262 185 1,210,712 1,036,569 =
China oilfields (Daan) B HE (K%) 43 62 - - =
Canada oilfields MZ A Canlin - - 1,210,705 1,036,569 =
Kazakhstan oilfields BRiER A 36,006 - - - =
USA oilfields % (Condor) 213 93 7 - -
Total proved+probable RARGEHEAE 93,050 1,356 1,801,464 1,549,556 =
China oilfields (Daan) FENHA (K%) 129 187 - - =
Canada oilfields INZ X Canlin - - 1,801,455 1,549,556 =
Kazakhstan oilfields MR ATA 92,380 - - - =
USA oilfields % (Condor) 541 1,169 9 - =
Total proved+probable+possible RH BERTHFHEAE 122,081 3,829 1,801,471 1,549,556 =
China oilfields (Daan) FERA (K%) 237 352 - - =
Canada oilfields HE K Canlin - - 1,801,455 1,549,556 =
Kazakhstan oilfields KRiERAME 120,438 - - - -
USA oilfields 2l (Condor) 1,406 3,477 16 - =
Equity-accounted entities BREGARNERHEE

(MIE share) (FEFELSS)

Total proved RAREBAE 375,870 46,696 47,989 11,630 9,470
China oilfields (Area 28/03) PR (28/03 & ) - - - - -
Kazakhstan oilfields PATES HiE - 14,373 8,708 11,630 9,470
Journey Energy Inc Journey 1B - 32,323 39,281 - -
Sino Gas & Energy REI T (=304t R EEE) 375,870 - - - =
Total proved+probable R HERELH 574,260 76,408 87,431 31,530 34,450
China oilfields (Area 28/03) hEHA (28/03[& 1) - - - - -
Kazakhstan oilfields iE R ATE - 29,773 28,880 31,530 34,450
Journey Energy Inc Journey B H - 46,635 58,551 - -
Sino Gas & Energy FEITL (=4 R ER ) 574,260 - - - =
Total proved+probable+possible B BERTHRELE 781,830 84,016 113,099 55,030 56,230
China oilfields (Area 28/03) B (28/03[& 1) - - - - -
Kazakhstan oilfields iR e = 37,381 54,548 55,030 56,230
Journey Energy Inc JourneyJE H - 46,635 58,551 - -
Sino Gas & Energy REIFL (=24 MG E) 781,830 = = = =
Total proved GRHBAE 412,132 46,851 1,258,701 1,048,199 9,470
Total proved+probable FREREREAE 667,310 77,764 1,888,895 1,581,086 34,450
Total proved+probable+possible R HERTHRELE 903,911 87,845 1,914,571 1,604,586 56,230
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Operating Summary (Continued)
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Year ended December 31

BZE+-—A=t-HLEE

2016 2017 2018 2019

ZEF Tt T\ ZEB-hf
NGL Reserves (thousands of barrels) NGLfZ (F4&)
Subsidiaries WEBA A EE
Total proved RAHERE - 13,069 12,379 -
China oilfields (Daan) FERE (K%) - - - -
Canada oilfields 1K Canlin - 13,069 12,379 -
Kazakhstan oilfields BRiERATE - - - _
USA oilfields % (Condor) - - - -
Total proved+probable RPESEREAE - 19,408 18,783 -
China oilfields (Daan) FERE (K%) - - - -
Canada oilfields IIE X Canlin - 19,408 18,783 -
Kazakhstan oilfields KiE=ATE - - - _
USA oilfields 2l (Condor) - - - -
Total proved+probable+possible RH BERTHFHEAE - 19,408 18,783 =
China oilfields (Daan) FERA (K%) - - - -
Canada oilfields IIZ K Canlin - 19,408 18,783 -
Kazakhstan oilfields MRiEm A - - - -
USA oilfields % (Condor) - - - -
Equity-accounted entities BRESARNERREEE

(MIE share) (REFELHS)

Total proved RAREHE 730 2,143 1,330 420
China oilfields (Area 28/03) " M (28/03 &13)) - - - -
Kazakhstan oilfields KMiER AN - 856 1,330 420
Journey Energy Inc Journey 18 730 1,287 - -
Sino Gas & Energy PR (=30 B ) - - - -
Total proved+probable RH BEHELE 994 4,462 3,110 1,710
China oilfields (Area 28/03) o Eh M (28/03 &1 - - - -
Kazakhstan oilfields RERHIA - 2,588 3,110 1,710
Journey Energy Inc JourneyEH 994 1,874 - -
Sino Gas & Energy REITEIL (=34 R R ) - - - -
Total proved+probable+possible RH BERTHFHELE 994 6,534 5,070 3,080
China oilfields (Area 28/03) PR A (28/03 2 1) = - - -
Kazakhstan oilfields KRiE7RHEE - 4,660 5,070 3,080
Journey Energy Inc JourneyJE H 994 1,874 = -
Sino Gas & Energy FEIFEIL (=30 R R = = - -
Total proved ROHERE 730 15,212 13,709 420
Total proved+probable RORERELE 994 23,870 21,893 1,710
Total proved+probable+possible R BERTHFHELE 994 25,942 23,853 3,080
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Chairman’s Statement
TEHREE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of MIE Holdings
Corporation (“"MIE" or the “"Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”), | hereby present the annual results of
the Company for the year ended December 31, 2019.

With shale oil revolution having changed the supply and demand of
oil and gas industry fundamentally, international crude oil prices
entered a long-term downward structural adjustment since the
second half of 2014. The average realized oil price of the Group’s
Daan project in China during the five years from 2015 to 2019 was
only US$50.43 per barrel. In 2019, the Group's average realized
crude oil price was $52.66 per barrel, down 10.9% from $59.07 per
barrel in 2018. Sustained lower oil prices have had a profound and
negative impact on the Group's liquidity. The Group has made
deleveraging our top priority since 2016. In 2019, the Group
successfully exchanged 84% of all outstanding senior notes due
2019 issued by the Company into new senior notes due 2022,
extending the term by three years through an exchange offer.
Subsequently, the Group completed the disposal of our interest in
Canlin Energy Corporation of Canada (“Canlin” or “Canlin Energy")
in September 2019, substantially reducing the Group's debt.

In 2019, the Group continued to implement a low-cost strategy for
Daan project, one of the high-quality and low decline oilfields of the
Group. We strive to reduce costs, improve efficiency, stabilize old
well production, slow down production decline and generate higher
operating cash flow. In 2019, the lifting cost of the Daan project
was US$10.72 per barrel, representing a decrease of US$1.65 per
barrel as compared to 2018. The overall production decline was
maintained at a relatively low rate of 4.4%, a significant
improvement as compared with 2018, reflecting the Group's
leading operation and management capability for oilfield projects in
China.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

FTEREE (B)

On the operating performance of the Group, the gross oil and gas
production of the Group decreased by 28.9% to 14.86 MMBOE as
compared with 2018, the net production decreased by 34.1% to
12.16 MMBOE, resulting from the disposal of Canlin Energy. After
completion of the disposition of Canlin, performance results from
North America segment was presented as discontinued operations
in the consolidated financial statements of the Group in 2019. The
revenue from PRC segment decreased by 4.3% to RMB756.1
million in 2019 as compared with 2018. The EBITDA of the Group
from segments other than the North America segment in 2019
decreased by RMB622.7 million to negative RMB486.6 million from
RMB136.1 million in 2018 and the respective adjusted EBITDA
decreased by RMB85.7 million to RMB323.4 million.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my most sincere
gratitude to all our shareholders, management team and dedicated
staff, creditors, advisors and business partners for your continued
support and understanding through this difficult and challenging
period.

Mr. Zhang Ruilin
Chairman
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Directors and Senior Management

SEENRENREEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Zhang Ruilin, aged 49, has been the Executive Director and
Chairman of the Company since March 20, 2008. Mr. Zhang is one
of the controlling shareholders of the Company. Mr. Zhang has
over 29 years of experience in the oil and gas business. Following
the takeover of the Company by Far East Energy Limited (“FEEL")
in August 2003, Mr. Zhang joined us in September 2003 and has
been a Director of the Company. He is primarily responsible for
overseeing our overall strategies, planning and day-to-day
management and operations. Mr. Zhang is also a director for the
various subsidiaries of the Group.

Mei Liming, aged 39, is the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. Mr. Mei joined the Group in January 2005, and has since
worked across various functions of the Group, including as an
accountant, finance manager, vice finance controller, chief financial
officer and vice president of corporate finance and merger and
acquisition, and served as an executive director of the Company
from November 2019 to June 2020. During his career in the Group,
Mr. Mei has gained a strong understanding of the Company’s
business and the oil and gas industry through his years of service
in different key positions of the Group. Since joining the Group, he
has also been involved in all aspects of the capital market
transactions of the Group, including the Group's initial public
offering on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the ""Stock Exchange'’), all of the Group’s senior notes
offerings and various merger and acquisition transactions, gaining
extensive knowledge and experience in financial management and
capital markets. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Mei worked as
an accountant at SONY Corporation in 2004. Mr. Mei graduated
from the Beijing Institute of Petrochemical Technology with a
Bachelor of Accounting in 2003.

Zhao Jiangwei, aged 48, has been the Executive Director and
senior vice president of the Company since December 19, 2008.
He is one of the controlling shareholders of the Company. Mr. Zhao
has over 27 years of experience in the oil and gas industry.
Following the takeover of the Company by FEEL in August 2003,
Mr. Zhao joined the Company in September 2003 and has since
been a director of the Company. He is and will continue to be
primarily responsible for assisting the Chairman in overseeing the
operations at oilfields in the PRC. Mr. Zhao obtained a bachelor of
arts degree from Daging Petroleum College in 1999.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

E=NEREEE(E

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Xie Na, aged 44, has been the Non-executive Director of the
Company since November 13, 2015. She has previously held
various positions at Shanghai Life Insurance Company Ltd., Sequoia
Capital China and Monitor Group. Ms. Xie has very extensive
experiences in equity investment, portfolio investment focusing on
consumables and TMT as well as marketing, operations and post-
investment management. She had led investment projects such as
Peak Sport Products Co. Limited and Sky- mobi Limited (symbol:
MOBI. NASDAQ). Ms. Xie has been serving as an independent
director of Thinkingdom Media Group Ltd., a company listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 603096) since November
2017 and she is also an executive council member of the China
Women's Chamber of Commerce and the vice president of China
Energy Storage Alliance. She was also a visiting professor of the
Graduate University of Chinese Academy of Sciences. Ms. Xie
obtained a bachelor’'s degree in computer engineering from the
University of Toronto in 2002 and a master’s degree in business
administration from Stanford University in 2004.

Jiao Qisen, aged 39, was appointed as a Non-executive Director of
the Company on January 29, 2018 and resigned with effect from
January 16, 2019. Mr. Jiao is Ph.D. in Philosophical Psychology and
Postdoc in Applied Economy. Mr. Jiao is an expert in enterprises
strategy management and industrial economic investment. He has
led and participated in many international mergers and acquisitions
("M&A"). He is also good at discerning the development trend of
the industry from a macro perspective as well as draw decisions on
enterprises practical operation. He has outstanding ideas and
profound views over investment, M&A, energy and chemical
industry, asset management, media industry and integration of
industrial finance. Mr. Jiao is the chairman of Chemchina New
Material Co. Ltd., the chairman of China Sam Enterprise Group Co.,
Ltd. and the chairman of China Jing An Ltd. Mr. Jiao has also
published various essays and other publications in the field of
management and psychology over the years.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

E=MEREEE(E

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mei Jianping, aged 59, has been our Independent Non-executive
Director since his appointment on November 27, 2010. Mr. Mei
has been a professor of finance at Cheung Kong Graduate School
of Business in Beijing, China since 2006 and a fellow at Financial
Institutions Center, the Wharton School of University of
Pennsylvania since 2004. He was a tenured associate professor of
finance from 1996 to 2005 and an assistant professor of finance
from 1990 to 1995 at New York University. From 2003 to 2008, he
also taught at Tsinghua University as a special term professor of
finance. Mr. Mei has been a director of Cratings.com Inc., USA
since 1999. Since 2009, Mr. Mei has served on the board of
Powerlong Real Estate Holdings Limited (stock code: 1238.HK), a
company listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Mei was a board
member of Zhong De Securities Company Limited from 2009 to
May 2016. Mr. Mei also served as the chairman of board of
Shanghai Zhangjiang JRtan.com Inc. from 2000 to 2012. From
November 29, 2013 to December 27, 2017, Mr. Mei served as an
independent non-executive director of Ground Internationa
Development Limited (stock code: 989.HK), and since August 11,
2014, Mr. Mei has served as an independent non-executive director
of China Rundong Auto Group Limited (stock code: 1365.HK) (both
companies of which listed on the Stock Exchange). Mr. Mei has
served as an independent director of Cultural Investment Holdings
Co., Ltd, a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock
code: 600715) since December 2015. Mr. Mei worked as a
consultant for various financial institutions, such as Deutsche Bank,
UBS, Prudential Insurance of America and Asia Development Bank.
Mr. Mei has published a number of books and articles on topics
related to finance. Mr. Mei received a bachelor’'s degree in
Mathematics from Fudan University in 1982, a master’s degree in
Economics and a Ph.D. in Economics (Finance) from Princeton
University in 1988 and 1990, respectively.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

EENNEEE(E)

Jeffrey Willard Miller, aged 57, has been our Independent Non-
executive Director since his appointment on November 27, 2010.
Mr. Miller has over 33 years of experience in the oil and gas
industry. Since 2012, Mr. Miller has been Managing Partner and
Co-Founder of Vortus Investments, an energy private equity firm
founded in later 2012. From 2008 to 2012, as the director of
upstream and investments for Mercuria Energy Trading Inc.
("Mercuria”), one of the world’s largest independent physical
energy trading firms, he was responsible for Mercuria and certain
of its affiliates’ global portfolio of oil and natural gas assets, the
majority of which are located in North and South America. Prior to
joining Mercuria, Mr. Miller spent four years, from 2004 to 2008, as
president of Moncrief Oil International (“Moncrief”), a private oil
and natural gas company with assets in the former Soviet Union as
well as North America. Prior to his career at Moncrief, Mr. Miller
was a managing director in global energy investment banking for
UBS AG, the successor of Dillon, Read & Co, which he joined in
1993. Mr. Miller was an investment banker with a focus on the
energy industry and has extensive experience in the fields of
corporate finance. Throughout his career as set out above, Mr.
Miller has been involved in a substantial number of transactions
including initial public offerings, debt offerings and M&A, which
require expertise in financial analysis. As an investment banker, Mr.
Miller also had extensive experience in valuation analysis, which
involved reviewing and analyzing audited financial statements of
public and private companies. Mr. Miller's professional career
began in a technical capacity as a petroleum engineer with Exxon.
Mr. Miller received a bachelor's degree, magna cum laude, in
Petroleum Engineering from Texas A&M University and a master's
degree in Business Administration from the Columbia Business
School.

Guo Yanjun, aged 67, has been the Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company since November 13, 2015. He has
extensive entrepreneurship experience and experience in corporate
operation and management. Mr. Guo graduated from China
People’s University with a Diploma in Law in 1984. Mr. Guo is
currently an Independent Non-executive Director of Mei Ah
Entertainment Group Limited (stock code: 391.HK, a company
listed on the Stock Exchange). He is also the chairman of CNHK
Tech Co. Ltd, CNHK Media Limited, CNHK Media (H.K.) Advertising
Limited and CNHK Publications Limited.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

EERENREIEE(E)

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Li Tiefeng, aged 39, is our Chief Financial Officer. Mr. Li has over
16 years of experience in financial management. Mr. Li joined the
Group in July 2005 and has since worked across various functions
including as finance manager and operational manager. Mr. Li
gained extensive knowledge and experience in the finance, tax and
corporate operational management in oil & gas industry while
working in the Group. Mr. Li graduated from University of Science
and Technology Beijing with a Bachelor of Accounting in 2005. He
obtained his Medium Level Accountant qualification in the PRC.

Lian Yunfei, aged 44, is a vice president and general counsel of
the Group. Ms. Lian has over 16 years of experience in the legal
field. Prior to joining us, Ms. Lian worked as an associate at Baker
& McKenzie Hong Kong office between 2007 and 2009 focusing on
mergers and acquisitions and general corporate advice and as
North Asia general counsel of a US multi-national corporation
between 2015 and 2017. In her early career, starting in 2001, she
worked at a law firm in Canada, focusing on general practice. Ms.
Lian obtained a juris doctor degree from the Faculty of Law at the
University of British Columbia in 2007. She received a Master's
degree in Engineering from the University of Florida in 2001 and a
Bachelor's degree in Science from Shanghai University of Science
and Technology in 1996. She is admitted to practice law in New
York.

RELATIONSHIP AMONG DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Save for Mr. Zhao Jiangwei, senior vice president and Executive
Director, who is the brother-in-law of Mr. Zhang Ruilin, our
Chairman and Executive Director, there are no other familial
relationships between any of our Directors and senior management.
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Governance Report

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) is pleased to present this
corporate governance report in the Group’'s Annual Report for the
year ended December 31, 2019.

COMMITMENT TO CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board of the Company has responsibilities towards the
shareholders and related stakeholders to ensure the Company’s
successful operation. Sound corporate governance is not only vital
for the Company to cope with the evolving regulatory environment
and reinforce the relationship with its shareholders and
stakeholders, but also important for the Company’s success and
sustainable development. We are committed to achieving a high
standard of corporate governance and have promoted corporate
governance practices appropriate for our business operations and
development.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board considers that good corporate governance standards are
essential in providing a framework for the Company to safeguard
shareholders’ interests, enhance corporate value and
accountability, formulate its business strategies and policies and
enhance transparency.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are established
based on the provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code"), as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”).

During the year ended December 31, 2019, the Company has
applied and complied with the applicable provisions of the CG Code
as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, except the
deviations with respect to Code Provision A.2.1 as further explained
below.

The Company shall review and improve its corporate governance

practices on a regular basis to ensure a continuous compliance of
such practices with the requirements of the CG Code.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as code of conduct for
securities transactions. Having made specific enquiry of all the
Directors, all the Directors confirmed that they have complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code and its code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by directors throughout
the year ended December 31, 2019.

STRUCTURE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Audit Remuneration
Committee Committee
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

TERER®RE (B)

THE BOARD

As at December 31, 2019, the Board comprised seven members,
including three Executive Directors, one Non-executive Directors
and three Independent Non-executive Directors.

During the year, members of the Board are listed as follows:
Executive Directors:

Mr. Zhang Ruilin (Chairman)
Mr. Zhao Jiangwei
Mr. Mei Liming
(appointed with effect from November 11, 2019
and resigned with effect from June 18, 2020)
Mr. Wang Xiong
(appointed with effect from August 9, 2019 and
resigned with effect from November 11, 2019)

Non-executive Directors:

Ms. Xie Na
Mr. Jiao Qisen
(resigned with effect from January 16, 2019)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Mei Jianping
Mr. Jeffrey Willard Miller
Mr. Guo Yanjun

The biographical information of the Directors is set out under
"Directors and Senior Management” on page 13 to page 16 of this
annual report.

The relationships among members of the Board are disclosed
under “Relationships among Directors and Senior Management”

on page 17.

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out under
the Code Provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.
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The Board has reviewed the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices and made recommendations to the Company
regarding the training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management, the Company's policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
the Company’s compliance with the Model Code, the code of
conduct and compliance manual for employees and Directors, and
the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this
Corporate Governance Report.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of
the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are required to be
separated and not to be performed by the same individual. During
the reporting period ended November 11, 2019, Mr. Zhang Ruilin
(“Mr. Zhang") served as both the Chairman of the Board and the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

Different from integrated oil companies engaged in upstream and
downstream business, the Company is engaged in the business of
oil & gas exploration and production. Therefore, the Board
considered that, the making and implementation of strategic
planning decision by the same individual was in the best the
interest of the Company’s oil & gas exploration and production
business. The Nomination Committee of the Company also agreed
that it would be in the best interest of the Company that the roles
of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer be performed by the same
individual.

Nonetheless, to better comply with the CG Code, with effect from
November 11, 2019, Mr. Mei was appointed as the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company and Mr. Zhang remained as executive
Director and Chairman of the Board.

The change of the Chief Executive Officer allows the Company to
better comply with the requirement under Code Provision A.2.1. As
the Chairman of the Board, Mr. Zhang will continue to provide
leadership for the Board and support to members of senior
management.
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tEERRE (B)

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhang Ruilin, Mr. Mei Liming and Mr. Zhao Jiangwei, being the
Executive Directors, are collectively responsible for the operation
of the whole group. Executive Directors should actively
communicate with Non-executive Directors, and maintain an open
and responsible attitude in respect of any reasonable administrative
suggestions and enquiries raised by the Non-executive Directors.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The three Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company
review the management’s performance in fulfilling established
corporate targets and principles. They should also ensure that
financial information is reported clearly and accurately, and the risk
management and internal control systems are implemented
effectively.

During the year ended December 31, 2019, the Board at all times
met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three Independent Non-executive Directors
(representing one-third of the Board) with one of whom possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

The Independent Non-executive Directors assume no management
responsibilities in the Company, and hold no more than (either
legally, beneficially or deemed) 1% of the total issued share capital
of the Company; nor have they acquired any interest in securities
of the Company either by gift or other methods; hence their
independence is strongly guaranteed. In accordance with
independent guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules,
the Independent Non-executive Directors have provided an annual
confirmation of independence to the Company. The Company
considers all Independent Non-executive Directors to be
independent.

Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company are involved
in communications with the auditors, which fully exhibits the role
of independent supervision. During the reporting period, no
objections regarding the proposals of the Board or Board
Committees have been raised by Independent Non-executive
Directors.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’
RE-ELECTION

Non-executive Directors serving the Board and Board Committees
are equipped with different skills, specialties, backgrounds and
qualifications, benefiting the Board a lot. Independent Non-
executive Directors not only act as Non-executive Directors, but
also equip the Board with expertise and business specialty
supplementary to management, thus providing unique opinion and
independent judgment for the possible situations during the
implementation of the Company’s business. Independent Non-
executive Directors are acting as chairmen and members of Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee
under the Board of the Company.

The appointment and re-election of all Directors of the Company
for the year ended December 31, 2019 was in compliance with the
CG Code. In accordance with the Code Provision A.4.2, all Directors
appointed to fill a casual vacancy should be subject to election by
shareholders at the first general meeting after their appointment.
Every Director, including those appointed for a specific term,
should be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years. The specific term of appointment for Directors of the
Company is three years, which is subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years. The appointment of Non-executive
Directors of the Company shall comply with the Code Provision
A.4.1 under the CG Code, namely, all Non-executive Directors
should be appointed for a specific term and subject to re-election.

RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES AND
CONTRIBUTIONS OF THE BOARD AND
MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for leading and supervising the
businesses, strategic policies and performance of the Company, as
well as being collectively responsible for facilitating the successful
development of the Company by detecting and supervising the
Company's affairs. The Board makes objective decisions in the
interest.
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tEERRE (B)

The Board has delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and
delegated through him to senior management the authority and
responsibility for carrying out the Company's day-to-day
management and operation. The delegated duties and
responsibilities will be reviewed on a regular basis. The
aforementioned senior executives shall obtain the approval from
the Board prior to entering into any significant transactions.

In addition, the Board has established the Board Committees and
delegated responsibilities as set out in their respective written
terms of reference.

All Directors (including Non-executive Directors and Independent
Non-executive Directors) have brought a wide spectrum of valuable
business experience, knowledge and expertise to the Board,
facilitating an efficient and effective operation thereof. All Directors
shall ensure that they will perform their duties in good faith, comply
with applicable laws and regulations and act in the interests of the
Company and shareholders at all times.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
of the Company and the services and advice of the company
secretary, to ensure that procedures of the Board and all applicable
laws and regulations are complied with. Upon request, Directors,
may seek independent professional advice when appropriate for
discharging their duties to the Company, at the Company's
expense.

Directors shall disclose to the Company details regarding other
offices held by them, and the Board shall review the contribution
required from each Director in performing his duties to the
Company on a regular basis.

The Board reserves the decision-making power over all important
issues, including the Company’s policy matters, strategies and
budget, internal controls and risk management, significant
transactions (especially those that may involve conflict of interest),
financial information, appointment of Directors and other significant
operational issues. The responsibilities of the management are
implementing decisions made by the Board, directing and
coordinating the Company’s daily business.

In respect of legal actions against Directors and senior
management arising out of corporate activities, the Company has
made arrangements for appropriate insurance cover Directors and
executives regarding their duties.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF
DIRECTORS

Every newly appointed Director will obtain on-board induction upon
first occasion of his/her appointment, in order to ensure appropriate
understanding of the Company’s business and operation and full
awareness of the Directors’ duties in accordance with the Listing
Rules and related laws. The Director shall keep abreast of the
duties as a Director of the Company, and the conduct, business
activities and development of the Company.

All Directors are continually updated on the legal and regulatory
regime as well as the business environment, so as to assist in their
performance of duties. The Company will make arrangements
when necessary and provide briefing and professional development
training to Directors.

All Directors should participate in appropriate continuing
professional development for developing and updating their own
knowledge and skills, so as to ensure that they can remain
informed and continue to make contribution to the Board as
appropriate. The Company will arrange internal briefing sessions for
Directors and distribute reading material on relevant topics where
appropriate. The Company encourages all Directors to attend
related training courses at the Company’s expenses.

All Directors also kept up to date with various developments
through reading regulatory updates, journals, articles and/or other
materials.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

Three Committees have been established under the Board, namely,
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee, to supervise particular aspects of the
Company. All Board Committees of the Company are established
based on functions and powers set out in the written terms of
reference which are available on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange for shareholders’ reference.

A list of the chairman and members of each Board Committee is
set out under "Company Information” on page 2. All members of
the Board Committees are Independent Non-executive Directors.

Board Committees are also equipped with sufficient resources to
perform their duties, and can seek independent professional
advices when appropriate (upon reasonable request) at the
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Company's expense.

Committees Audit Committee Remuneration Committee Nomination Committee

ZE® EREEE FMzEES REZES

Chairman Independent Non-executive Independent Non-executive Independent Non-executive
Director: Director: Director:
Mr. Jeffrey Willard Miller Mr. Mei Jianping Mr. Mei Jianping

£ BUFNTES : BUFNTES BUFNTES
Jeffrey Willard Miller 554 1BRTEE BT EE

Composition All other members are All other members are All other members are Independent
Independent Non-executive Independent Non-executive Non-executive Directors:
Directors: Directors: Mr. Jeffrey Willard Miller and
Mr. Mei Jianping and Mr. Jeffrey Willard Miller and Mr. Guo Yanjun
Mr. Guo Yanjun Mr. Guo Yanjun
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Committees
ZEg

Audit Committee
EREEE

Remuneration Committee

¥HZzES

Nomination Committee

REZRE

Main responsibilities ¢

IERE .

Review financial statements
and reports before they are
submitted to the Board, and
consider any significant or
unusual issues raised by
external auditors

Review the relationship with
the external auditors by
reference to the work
performed by the auditors,
their fees and terms of
recommendations on the
appointment, re-appointment
and removal of external
auditors to the Board
Review the adequacy and
efficiency of the Company’s
financial reporting system,
internal control system, risk
management system and
related procedures
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Review and make suggestions
on the remuneration of
Executive Directors and senior
management to the Board
Review and make suggestions
on the remuneration of

Non- executive Directors to
the Board

Review and make suggestions
on the Company’s
remuneration policies and
structure of remuneration of
all Directors and senior
management to the Board
Review and make suggestions
on the appointment letter of
Executive Directors newly
appointed during the year to
the Board

Review and approve the
compensation arrangements
of Executive Directors and
senior management
Assessing performance of
Executive Directors
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Review the structure, size and
composition of the Board, and
make suggestions on any
changes

Formulate, develop and review
the Board Diversity Policy and
the measurable objectives for
implementing the policy
Formulate, develop and review
the policy and relevant
procedures for nomination and
appointment of Directors
Identify suitable candidates for
appointment as Directors
Make suggestions on the
appointment or re-appointment
of and succession planning for
Directors to the Board

Assess the independence of
Independent Non-executive
Directors
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Audit Committee
EREEE

Remuneration Committee

¥HZzES

Committees
ZEg

Nomination Committee

REZRE

Number of meetings Two meetings were held for One meeting was held for
held in 2019 and reviewing of the Group's financial granting share award.

One meeting was held for director
appointment.

summary of work performance and reports, financial
done reporting and compliance
procedures, reviewing and
reporting on the Company's
internal controls and risk
management system and
procedures, work scope and
further engagement of external
auditor, related party transactions
and arrangements focusing the
staff on possible inappropriate
acts.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

When evaluating the composition of the Board, the Nomination
Committee will consider different aspects required by the Board
diversity policy, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional qualification, skills,
knowledge, industry and regional experience. The Nomination
Committee will discuss and reach consensus on measurable
objectives of diversification of members of the Board and make
recommendations to the Board.

DIRECTOR NOMINATION POLICY

The Nomination Committee has adopted a set of nomination
procedures for selection of candidates for directors by making a
reference to the skills, experience, expertise, personal conduct and
time commitments of individuals, the Company’'s needs and
relevant laws and regulations. When necessary, external
recruitment professionals may be engaged to carry out the
selection process.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The details regarding Directors’ attendance of meetings held by the
Board and the Board Committees as well as the general meetings
during their tenure during the year ended December 31, 2019 are
set out in the table below:

BEENZEEREHES

1G-S

REFCHARANLERE_T-NAF+-A
ST HLEFERTNEFRHEZRESY
FEARBBRAGH I K

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HE/ BN
Annual
Audit ~ Nomination Remuneration General
Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
3¢ EHZEE REZEE  FMZESE RREFAE
Executive Director HiTESE
Mr. Zhang Ruilin RARAE 6/6 N/A TR N/A TR N/A TR n
Mr. Zhao Jiangwei ﬂil%ﬁé%i 6/6 N/A TEF N/A TEF N/A TEF on
Mr. Wang Xiong (appointed with effect from P‘E ( /EA S NENANAEEF 1/6 NATNER NATNER NA TER 0N
August 9, 2019 and resigned with REF-NF+—A1—HE)
effect from November 11, 2019)
Mr. Mei Liming (appointed with effect from 18R (R -F—AF+—F+—-HEZF 1/6 NATNER NA TER NA TER 0N
November 11, 2019 and resigned with UR-F-FEXF+/\HEH)
effect from June 18, 2020)
Non-executive Director FHiTES
Ms. Xie Na Bl 36 N/A TiE A N/A TiE A N/A FiE A 0/
Mr. Jiao Qisen (Resigned with effect from EEREE(BRZE-NE-AT+~A 0/6 N/A &R N/A TEF N/ATER 0N
January 16, 2019) L)
Independent Non-executive Director BUkHTES
Mr. Mei Jianping RTRE 36 202 N /1 0/
Mr. Jeffrey Willard Miller Jeffrey Willard Miller %% £ 36 2/2 n 1 U
Mr. Guo Yanjun PHRELA 36 22 7N 0 1

During the year ended December 31, 2019, apart from regular
Board meetings, the Chairman also held meetings with Non-
executive Directors (including Independent Non-executive
Directors) without the presence of other Executive Directors.
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TERER®RE (B)

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge that they are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Company for the year
ended December 31, 2019.

The Board is responsible for presenting balanced, clear and concise
annual reports and interim reports, announcements on inside
information and other disclosures as stipulated by the Listing Rules
as well as other statutory and regulatory provisions.

GOING CONCERN

Due to the potential interaction of the multiple uncertainties
regarding the action plan of the Company and the possible
cumulative effect on the consolidated financial statements, the
Company'’s auditor (the “Auditor”) has expressed that it is not
possible for the Auditor to form an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended December 31,
2019 (the "Audit Qualification”), the details of which are described
in the “Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion” section of the Independent
Auditor’s Report of this annual report.
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Management’s view on the Audit Qualification

As detailed in Note. 2.1.1 to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended December 31, 2019 (“Note 2.1.1"), conditions
were existed as at December 31, 2019 indicating the existence of
material uncertainties which may cast significant doubt regarding
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. In view of such
circumstances, the management of the Group (the
“Management”) has given careful consideration to Group's current
liquidity, performance and available sources of financing in
considering the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. The
Management has also taken or will continue to implement the
measures as further detailed in Note 2.1.1 to mitigate the Group's
liquidity pressure and to improve the conditions of cash flow.
Taking into account the successful and continued implementation
of such measures, the Management and also the Directors are
satisfied that the Group will have sufficient working capital for a
period of not less than 12 months from January 1, 2020 to June
30, 2021, and hence it is appropriate to prepare the Group's
consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis. The
Management and Directors are of the view that the Group will,
based on the action plan devised, have sufficient cash resources to
satisfy future working capital and other financing requirements as
and when they fall due for the period from January 1, 2020 up to
June 30, 2021.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis, the validity of which depends on the outcome
of these measures, which are subject to multiple uncertainties,
including: (i) the Lenders and the Noteholders not taking any
actions against the Group to exercise their rights to demand
immediate payment of the principals and interest of the Cross-
Defaulted Borrowings and the 2022 Senior Notes before the
finalisation of the debt restructuring plans and execution of the
restructuring agreements; (ii) successfully securing the required
agreement of the Lenders and the Noteholders and completion of
all necessary procedures by the Group for the restructuring
agreements under the debt restructuring plans to be executed; and
the Group’s ability to continuously comply with the terms and
conditions stipulated therein upon execution; (iii) actual oil prices
throughout the forecast period up to June 30, 2021 being in line
with the projected levels included in the cashflow projections; and
(iv) the Group’s ability to generate operating cash flows and to
obtain additional sources of financing, other than those mentioned
above, to finance the Group’s oil exploration and production
business, including capital expenditures needed to drill new wells,
as well as other funding needs.
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Action plan to address the Audit Qualification

Details of the action plan of the Group to address the Audit
Qualification

In order to address the uncertainties which may cast doubt
regarding the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, and
with a view to removing the Audit Qualification, the Company had
taken and intends to continue to implement the measures as
further detailed in Note 2.1.1 to mitigate the liquidity pressure and
to improve its cash flows, including:

(i) Continuing our ongoing efforts in convincing the creditors not
to take any actions against the Group for immediate payment
of the principals and interest of the Cross-Defaulted
Borrowings and the 2022 Senior Notes;

(i) Negotiations with various creditors in relation to the Debt
Restructuring Plans to revise certain key terms and
conditions, including but not limited to deferral of interest
payment, reduction of interest rate and extension of maturity;

(i) Successfully extended the term of Daan PSC to February
2028, which would enable the Group to improve the Group's
operating cash flows through increased production; and

(iv)  Continued to seek other alternative financing, including
proceeds from the disposal of non-core assets, to finance the
settlement of its existing financial obligations and future
operating and capital expenditures.

The Management and Directors believe that the current action
plans are the most commercially practicable plans and measures in
addressing the Group's liquidity matters and going concern. The
Management and the Directors will focus on the current action
plans and the implementation thereof, while keeping viable options
open as they continue their efforts in addressing the going concern
issue and Audit Qualification.
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Impact of the Audit Qualification on the Company’s financial
position

Should the Group fail to achieve the above-mentioned plans and
measures, it might not be able to continue to operate as a going
concern, and adjustments would have to be made to write down
the carrying value of the Group's assets to their recoverable
amounts, to provide for any further liabilities which might arise, and
to reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities as current
assets and current liabilities. The effect of these adjustments has
not been reflected in the consolidated financial statements of the
Company for the year ended December 31, 2019.

Audit committee’s view on the Audit Qualification

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) had
critically reviewed the Audit Qualification and also the
management’s position and action plan of the Group to address the
Audit Qualification. The Audit Committee is in agreement with the
Management with respect to the Audit Qualification and the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, and in particular the
actions or measures to be implemented by the Management or the
Group.
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Based on the Company's discussion with the Auditor, as the Audit
Qualification relates to a going concern issue, in preparing the
financial statements for the year ending December 31, 2020, the
Directors are responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern and the appropriateness of preparing
the Group’s consolidated financial statements on a going concern
basis, based on the conditions and circumstances as at December
31, 2020. In accordance with the International Standards on
Auditing, sufficient appropriate audit evidence should be made
available regarding the appropriateness of the Management's use
of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the
Group's financial statements, so that to enable the Auditor to
conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists regarding the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern.

The Management's assessment of the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern as at December 31, 2020 should be
based on the conditions and circumstances as at December 31,
2020 and cash flow projections covering a period of not less than
12 months from December 31, 2020. As such, the Auditor is
unable to ascertain whether the Audit Qualification can be removed
for the next financial year at this stage.

Assuming all the above plans or actions can be completed as
planned and no new circumstances and conditions have occurred,
subject to satisfactory completion of review of the Management’s
assessment of the Company’s going concern, together with
sufficient and appropriate evidence, the Audit Qualification may be
removed in connection with the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ending December 31, 2020.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The Company’'s external auditor is PricewaterhouseCoopers,
whose responsibilities in respect of the Company’s consolidated
financial statements are set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 123 to 127.

For the year ended December 31, 2019, remuneration paid or
payable to the Company’s auditors (i.e., PricewaterhouseCoopers
and its member firms within the same network) is set out below:

BB AT &

RABZHINBZEAM AR KES +Eﬂi$i‘%
FTIATEBIBERXKE])  EHAR
1#?4%%%&2%%&%%3@%’123%127523%1%2
HADERS

W E-F-NFTA=t—BHLFE EH
B T AR RIAZ BRED 2R B oK B S B AR AR A
SNSRI

2019
—E-NEF
RMB’000
AR® T

Audit and audit related services Bt R BT EE RS
— Included in continuing operations — BEEFELE 5,236
— Included in discontinued operations — EEER g 1,330

Non-audit service* JEHE RIS *

— Included in continuing operations — B EEREKE 625
7,191

* Non-audit services primarily represent tax and consultancy services.

* FERAH RIS L BAGTHIE Sk s IRTS o
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

Risk management and internal controls are part of the core
operational management activities and business activities of the
Group. The Board aims to establish a comprehensive risk
management system which complies with the Group's strategies
and business features, perfect the organizational structure of risk
management, standardize risk management processes, adopt
qualitative and quantitative risk management methods, carry
forward risk identification, evaluation and mitigation, and facilitate
the sustainable and healthy development of different businesses of
the Company. The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate
internal control system so as to safeguard shareholders’
investments and the Company’s assets, and reviewing the
effectiveness of internal controls on a yearly basis, with the
assistance of the Audit Committee.

The Company's risk management system and internal control
system are established for an efficient and effective operation, so
as to ensure reliable financial reporting and compliance with
applicable laws and regulations, identification and management of
potential risks and safeguarding of the Group's assets. Such
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss. Senior management of the Group reviews
and evaluates internal control procedures, monitors any risk factors
on a regular basis, and reports to the Audit Committee on the
results and measures for handling differences and risks identified.
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1. Risk management structure and other details

The risk management system and internal controls of the
Group are guided by the “three lines of defense” as listed
below:

1. BEREEBEEERHH
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o [ =BRR] BRABES

The Board
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Audit Committee
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1st Line of Defence

Operational 2nd Line of Defence
Management and Risk Management
Internal Controls FEHAE

E—EhE [\ B B IR Bk B

EEEIE AR

3rd Line of Defence
Internal Audit
F=E&E
N EPEIZIREE

As the highest level decision-making body for the Company's risk
management and internal controls, the Board is responsible for
reviewing the effectiveness of overall risk management and
internal control systems. The Audit Committee, on behalf of the
Board, performs the duties regarding risk management and internal
controls, supervises management design, implements and
monitors work regarding risk management and internal control
system, fully understands various significant risks and
corresponding management faced by the Company, and supervises
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
system.

EXgR ARREE NN EERSRER
B YHrEHERERIENERLEEE -BF
ETREZZES RREFSRTRERER
NAMEERE  EEEER  BRkEE
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Three lines of defence

1st line of defence: operational management and internal
controls

The 1st line of defence comprises the Company’s internal
control system, including (i) corporate policies shared with
staff via the internal network; (ii) operational policies,
procedures and practices covering authorization and
transaction approval, etc.; (iii) application of financial reporting
standards and (iv) review of financial performance and
significant judgments.

(1) Company policies:

° The Corporate Management Manual is
categorized into three parts: the Organization
Chart, Segregation of Duties and Authority Guide,
and Management System Compilation. The
Organization Chart depicts the internal
organizational structure of the Company. The
Segregation of Duties and Authority Guide covers
the key components of all functions of the
Company’s project companies, the Board
Committees and management. It establishes clear
management responsibilities, authorization and
accountability. The Management System
Compilation covers the processes and approval
procedures related to internal controls within the
Company, clarifying the responsibilities and rights
of various departments. Since 2016, we have
initiated a plan to reorganize and amend the
Corporate Management Manual in a bid to update
related systems and enhance operation efficiency
based on the latest organizational structure and to
update it regularly in accordance with
organizational changes and management
requirements .

° The Staff Manual regulates the behaviors of the
staff of the Company, aiming at facilitating the
penetration of integrity and moral values into the
Company.

° The Whistleblowing Policy encourages the staff
and other business-related personnel to report
events involving misconducts or fraud in the
Company, without being persecuted.
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o The Information Disclosure Policy regulates the
handling and publishing of inside information of
the Company. We ensure that inside information
is saved and accessed in an absolutely confidential
manner until the Company makes timely
disclosure.

The Information Disclosure Policy includes:

° Applicable scope of policy

o Form of information disclosure

o Periodic reports

° Management of matters relating to
information disclosure

(2) Operational policy:

The Accident Management Regulations help the
Company to systematically and timely report and handle
accidents in a detailed, unified and coordinated manner,
with corresponding follow-up and monitoring conducted
by the Internal Audit Department.

2nd line of defence: risk management function

The 2nd line of defence comprises several risk monitoring
practices of the Company, and is subject to the supervision of
the Audit Committee. The Company has adopted a risk
management event library, and developed an exhaustive plan
in respect of various risks, so as to support the Company’s
risk management program and assist the operating
departments to identify and report significant risks affecting
the Company in a timely manner. The Company’s risk
management event library adopts a top-down risk
assessment approach at the corporate level, and within each
operating unit, a bottom-up approach is adopted for re-
examination by using the individual risk register (based on the
impact from risks). The risk management event library
identifies the main challenges faced by the Company, thereby
assisting the Board and the management to make informed
decisions.
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The Company’s risk management event library and register
classify risks into five different categories for assessment:
strategic, market, legal, financial and operational risks. The
Company has noted the major risks posing significant impact
on the above categories, and will periodically assess each
major risk for its potential impact on finance and opportunity
of occurrence. The existing controls are able to identify and
address all the major risks and help improving the skills,
benefits and costs required for the risks.

In accordance with the requirements of the Audit Committee,
the company regularly reviews the risk register of various
projects to prepare the Company’s risk management report.
Since 2016, after a review of the risk management
procedures, in order to comply with the Company's financial
reporting regulations, the Internal Audit Department of the
Company carried out risk review semi- annually and approved
the Company's risk management report, to submit to the
president office meeting, Audit Committee meeting and the
Board, and finally for the approval by the Board, to facilitate
the Audit Committee’s effective monitoring of the Company'’s
major business risks and how the management copes with
and mitigates the risks.

Details of the Company’s major risks and potential risks are
set out on pages 43 to 46.

3rd defence: internal audit

The internal audit department of the Company is responsible
for internal audit, which plays an important role in assessing
the efficiency of the Company’s risk management and
internal controls system, and is responsible for reporting to
Audit Committee periodically. The audit function of the
department covers the whole Group, with evaluations
handled by the head of the internal audit department of the
Company. The head of the internal audit department of the
Company is required to report to the Chief Executive Officer
and may also contact with the Chairman of Audit Committee
directly, and periodically submit the internal audit report on
the efficiency of the controls system in accordance with the
established audit plan to Audit Committee. During the year
under review, the Audit Committee was responsible for
approving the annual audit plan and reviewing reports in
relation to audit results and risk management.
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The head of the internal audit department reviews the
Group's internal audit function based on risks of each project
company at the operating and corporate level, and agrees on
correction and improvement measures. The head of the
internal audit department will follow up on the recommended
implementation and report relevant results to the Audit
Committee.

External auditors

External auditors of the Company raise independent queries
regarding various businesses, operations and the
performance of internal auditors (especially any significant
internal monitoring involving financial reporting confirmed
during audit), so as to further improve the 3rd line of defence.
External auditors will report any defects in the controls to the
Audit Committee.

Audit Committee and the Board

The Audit Committee reviews and examines the audit report
and statements submitted by management of the Company,
each financial department, internal auditors and external
auditors according to the requirements on reporting, and
discuss any significant issues. Regular risk management
reports can be generally divided into two reports, internal
audit and controls report, and company risk management
report, for further discussion. The internal audit report is
submitted in accordance with the audit plan annually, and the
Audit Committee reviews company risk management report
in order to keep in line with the timing of financial reporting of
the Company. The Audit Committee examines the impact of
any defects in respect of content of reports, evaluation of
efficiency of risk management and internal controls system,
and whether responses are valid, and determines whether to
conduct more extensive regulation. Besides, the Audit
Committee will review the performance of internal auditors
and external auditors, and the advice of external auditors on
the internal finance department.

The Board holds meetings, proposes recommendations in
respect of the final results submitted by the Audit Committee,
and discusses to find out the final resolutions.
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Main scope of work conducted in 2019 in relation

to risk management

Based on compliance control management, the Company will
establish a sound all-around risk management system
consistent with the highest international standards and
continuously improve risk controls and technology based on
risk governance, guided by risk preference, with risk
quantitative tools and risk performance appraisal as primary
measures, so as to achieve the balance between risk control
and business development.

The specific work conducted by the Company in 2019 is as
follows:

Reviewed the Company's risk management register,
record the Company's risk trend and specific ratings;

Reviewed the guide for project risk evaluation, provide
practical and comprehensive project tools, and helped
improve management of major risks during project
cycles;

Organized and revised the internal control management
manual of the Company to adapt to the change of the
company's organizational structure and meet the needs
of the current management;

Discussed existing and potential major risks, and
measures and other activities adopted for addressing
such risks.
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List of significant risks

In 2019, the top 10 major risks in relation to the Company’s

orate Governance Report (Continued)
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4. EZERARYT
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business and operations are as below. The Company BRELSHEBENTATERR - XA 7]
arranges, selects and prioritizes the risks encountered by 1838 A5 75 R BT A R bR LA BRIE -
existing business, to compile the list of major risks. During HEREEELANT GETEERW -
the compilation of the Company’s major risks, we held a ERERQABETERRHBERES - A7)
special meeting with management to discuss and review EREERT TEMERTmERTAE
responses to individual risks. Review of risk procedures is 8 {E B B b2 ) FE 5 1 o iR R AR 7
helpful to emphasize potential risks and identify new risks. BBRELEERE - WEIRFAOERS o
Major risks Risk description and risk response

TEREMRE

JeB P 3 e PR

Risk of oil and gas price fluctuation

HRER R E R

Risk of oil and gas resources

R SRE TR B

International oil price is subject to the impact of various factors: changes
in global and local political and economic conditions, supply and demand
of oil and gas, and contingencies and controversies with international
impact. Domestic oil price is determined and adjusted with reference to
the price of international crude oil. The Company's businesses involve
both domestic and overseas markets and are therefore subject in
particular to the impact of risks of price fluctuation. However, the
Company avoided the risk through setting up relevant personnel to
continuously focus on the fluctuations of crude oil price and report.
BIFORMER 2 RMEBUR K BENE(L RN ERRL R EGEERY

‘E“Eh SEREHNFHELZTHERNTE - BRHE2RER R A ERS
WE - BRREBERETSRAERELMMAR RAGRBEEB IR
BN BN - Bl X IERRBERNTE o RRFIRY T
A BB T ROh BAR 8V R BB s

The implementation of the Company’s business activities may be
impacted, due to the uncertainties in the exploration and development
of oil and gas resources, or the uncertainties during the purchase of oil
and gas resources with substantial funds. Although detailed assessment
and feasibility study and analysis on investment projects in the prior
period have been conducted, the Company cannot avoid the risk arising
from the uncertainties of oil and gas resources.
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Maijor risks

TERBE

Risk description and risk response

JEB B 30 e P

Investment risk

RERR

Exchange rate risk

FEE 781 2 e e

Risk in international operations

B CAE & B

Since the oil industry is a capital-intensive industry, the Company has
adopted a prudent investment strategy to carry out strict and detailed
feasibility study and analysis on investment projects. However, during
the implementation of the projects, the projects may fail to achieve the
expected benefits due to large variations in market environment, price
of equipment materials, construction cycle, etc., therefore, some
investment risks are presented.

BHITEBRESTERTE  ARFRDHEN TR EMNRERE - #i%
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The fluctuation in exchange rates will inevitably have an impact on the
profit of the Company. Besides, the adjustments in the national interest
rate policies will also impact the Company's financing cost, thereby
impacting the profit of the Company.
EXRNBE TN EARFNNEEETE - BRMERBERAH
B EARRRRERE - ML BAR TR -

The Company engages in oil and gas businesses in some overseas
territories. Overseas businesses and assets are governed by the laws
and regulations of the country where the business, so the complexity of
internal political and economy, including international sanction, instability
of tax and fiscal policies and culture difference, may increase the risk of
overseas business expansion and operation of the Company. Although
the Company tries to explore overseas businesses in the countries other
than those with economically or politically unstable situations, and
conducts detailed surveys prior to the commencement of projects, it is
unable to completely avoid the impact from contingencies in the
countries where its businesses are located.

RARERINBD R FHRER - MIMEBMEEX B PFEBREE
ERHEE  ARBEREUS - KBENEMNT - SRR - MREGR
IRENRXLZERSE - ZRAIBEINAR R AN R R RS L rmk -
BARNRE R RERBUKB T RBENEFETEINEBHFRAE -
FIFREIE B AT HE T AR AT - BT ERMNREFTRGAR

= 2t gfr B2 440
AR & o

MIEHOLDINGS CORPORATION / ANNUAL REPORT 2019



Corp

fa

Mz

EERME (B

Maijor risks
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Risk description and risk response

JeB B 3 e P

Risk of national policies

B R BUR Al

Production safety and
environmental risk

2 EERRKRAR

Market competition risk

MG H SRR

The Chinese government oversees the domestic oil and gas industry,
therefore, its regulatory policies may impact the Company’s business
activities. The changes in government regulatory policies, such as tax
and fiscal policies, energy-saving and emission-reducing policies, may
impact the business performance of the Company.

PRI EE AR RAMRARITHETEE  HEETREGTZERQT
IRETEE) o BITIIR ﬁﬁﬁb W ERRBUR F BT BB BR N E (L - &
5% ZIUNSIoF

As a high-risk and environmentally-unfriendly industry, oil exploration is
vulnerable to natural disaster threats, and the production environment is
flammable and prone to explosion. Emergencies such as well blowout
and drill sticking may result in heavy economic losses and social impact
as well as pose major harm to personal safety. Although the Company
always stresses the importance of and implements safe production, and
endeavours to avoid various accidents and makes insurance
arrangements for major assets and inventories and against losses it may
cause to any third-party, it still cannot make provisions for the full extent
of the economic losses and adverse impacts which could be brought by
such emergencies.
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With the gradual opening of certain domestic petroleum and
petrochemical markets, the Company faces more fierce competition
from other domestic oil producers and foreign oil producers in relation
to, for example, obtaining rights to enter resource countries, seizing oil
and gas resources and expanding the market when it is making efforts
to strengthen its own business. With a price advantage in a competitive
environment, the Company keeps developing more advanced
technology and reducing its cost. However, its earnings will inevitably
be impacted by market competition.
BEZEBINER S ARALTISHE LR - AR RIENE IR EBSHEIRT
S NE M AR AEE QR - A RBING A FE 5 L (R AR S S
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Maijor risks

TERBE

Risk description and risk response
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Confidentiality

R B

Property safety risk

MEZZRAR

5. Potential risks

Information on the Company’s oil reserve and unsigned investment
projects is strictly confidential. It is a policy of the Company that any
staff should be obligated to keep information confidential. But even so,
risk of information leakage brought by job hopping, change of
employment or other events is still unavoidable.

RAARFEEERAZIREBBEEUAKETEERE  ARAIHRESR
ITHRARKZEEAEREE - BN AR EEE A SHIERBHE
B - 3ERK S B INR A R A AR

o

With oil and gas exploitation as its principal business, the Company
establishes comprehensive rules and regulations and strict monitoring
process on aspects such as use of assets, production and
transportation. But since oil and gas exploitation is an outdoor activity,
there is still a risk that assets may be lost or stolen.
ARAREERFHRARER  EAXRAHEEGH  4£E E&HF
EREATENREGNEBETHRBERE  BEANARFREBEEINE
17 A AF@ R B ERRWER - EREERASIERER

5. BERR

In addition to addressing various major risks faced by the REHSAQRRmENSREEIZARIN -
Company, the Audit Committee also reviews specific ERZESHURETRENELRR -
potential risks. Such potential risks often stem from changes HWEBERRBERABLE  BUA &
in economic, political, legal or technical environments, and ERBMIRENED) - Lﬁtﬁ:@b—fﬁd

may but not necessarily fall into the scope of current major T—EBRRENETERBRIER - AT
risk categories. In the opinion of the Company’s Audit ERLZEERA  REETRRIE
Committee, such potential risks may have a significant impact ﬁiijﬂﬂ’]?a s AgRmd HER
on the Company; therefore, it will aim to minimize such NERBIE S E L HIFE R ERERAETE

impact and develop risk mitigation plans.

Potential risks

EERRE

Risk description and risk response

JeB B 8 3 e P

Network security risk

Due to increase in network viruses, hacker attacks and failure in network
maintenance, leakage of data information becomes more and more
frequent. Although the Company has installed software such as firewall
to protect data and reduce network security risks, it is unable to
eliminate the impact of such risks as it has both domestic and overseas
businesses.
WEARE  BEUE  ZAOHREHEERNBIBREEINREHIEM - 8
REIRETHNESRHRESE  BRETHEEL2RER - BEREE
BAING B E ISR - DA R ZERRERATE o
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Work focus in 2020

In 2020, the Company will focus on improving its risk
management framework and procedures, strengthening
internal risk communication, raising risk awareness and
defining risk bearers in accordance with the CG Code and
best practices in the industry. We will arrange risk awareness
related trainings for our main operating departments, and
continue to assist the various business departments to
enhance their risk management procedures in accordance
with the Company’s risk management framework and
guidance. In addition, we will identify major risks and make
arrangements in relation to the report and improvement of
risk countermeasures, potential risk framework and close
monitoring initiatives.

Statement of the Board on internal control
responsibilities

The Company's internal controls are aimed at reasonably
ensuring operation legality and compliance, asset safety and
authenticity and completeness of financial report and related
information, improving operating efficiency and effectiveness,
and facilitating the implementation of development strategy.
The Company has comprehensively assessed the
effectiveness of its own internal controls and reported such
assessment to the Audit Committee and the Board in 2019.
No material weakness was identified during the assessment.
In the opinion of the Board, for the year ended December 31,
2019, no events that may have significant impact on the
Company’s operation, financial reporting and compliance have
been identified, and the existing risk management and
internal control system remains effective and adequate to
guarantee the interests of the Company and its shareholders.
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INFORMATION DISCLOSURE AND MANAGEMENT
OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company discloses information in accordance with the rules
and regulations of the Securities and Futures Commission in Hong
Kong and the Stock Exchange, releases its periodic reports and
interim announcements to the public in accordance with law, and
discloses important information such as the Company’s financial
results, material information changes and information on significant
projects to the market on a timely basis, bearing in mind the
timeliness, fairness, accuracy, authenticity and completeness of
information disclosure, therefore protecting the legal interests of
investors and stakeholders.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Chan Wing Sze of Tricor Services Limited, an external service
provider, was engaged by the Company, as its company secretary
for the year ended December 31, 2019. Ms. Chan Wing Sze had
complied with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules by taking no less than
15 hours of the relevant professional training during the year. The
company secretary reports to the Chairman of the Board and Chief
Executive Officer regarding corporate governance issues, and all
Directors can seek her advice and support. The company secretary
is also responsible for providing advice to Directors and the Board
Committees on the latest laws and regulations, such that
procedures of the Board as well as all applicable laws, regulations
and rules are complied with. The company secretary’'s primary
contact person at the Company is Ms. Lian Yunfei, the general
counsel of the Group. Ms. Chan resigned as company secretary of
the Company with effect from January 15, 2020. Ms. Yuen Wing
Yan, Winnie was appointed as the Company Secretary with the
same effective date.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard the rights and interests of shareholders, the Company
will propose a separate resolution in respect of each significant
matter (including the election of individual Directors) at general
meetings. All resolutions put forward at the general meeting will be
voted on by poll in accordance with the Listing Rules, and the poll
results will be announced on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange after each general meeting.
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Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting by
Shareholders

Extraordinary general meetings shall also be convened on the
written requisition of any two or more members of the Company
deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or,
in the event the Company ceases to have such a principal office,
the registered office specifying the objects of the meeting and
signed by the requisitionists, provided that such requisitionists held
as at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company which carries the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company. General meetings may
also be convened on the written requisition of any one member of
the Company which is a recognized clearing house (or its
nominee(s)) deposited at the principal office of the Company in
Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have such a
principal office, the registered office specifying the objects of the
meeting and signed by the requisitionist, provided that such
requisitionist held as at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which
carries the right of voting at general meetings of the Company. If
the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit of the
requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting to be held within
a further 21 days, the requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them
representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of
them, may convene the general meeting in the same manner, as
nearly as possible, as that in which meetings may be convened by
the Board provided that any meeting so convened shall not be held
after the expiration of three months from the date of deposit of the
requisition, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to them by the Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

There is no provision allowing shareholders to move new
resolutions at general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law or the Articles of Association of the Company.
Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the
Company to convene a general meeting following the procedures
set out in the preceding paragraph.
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Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders may
send relevant written enquiries to the Company by post or email as
per the below contact information.

CONTACT DETAILS

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests by post or
email:

Address: Room 1901-07, 19/F, Sun Hung Kai Centre,
30 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
(with the Board of Directors as designated recipient)
Tel: 852-2511-0028
Fax: 852-2511-1983
Email: investors@mienergy.com.cn

Shareholders must deposit or send (as the case may be) the
original of the duly signed written requisitions, notices or
statements or enquires to the above address, and provide their full
names, contact details and identification such that the Company
could reply to them. It is likely that the shareholder information will
be disclosed as required by law.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS/INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for strengthening relationships with
investors and increasing investors’ understanding of the Company'’s
business performance and strategy. Also, the Company
understands that maintaining transparency and disclosing the
Company's information on a timely basis are very important for
shareholders and investors to make the best investment decisions.

For this purpose, the Company has set up a website
(http://www.mienergy.com.cn), where relevant latest information,
the up-to-date state of the Company's business operation and
development, the Company's financial information and corporate
governance practices and other data are available to the public.
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The Company endeavors to maintain an ongoing dialogue with
shareholders, especially through annual general meetings and other
general meetings. The Chairman of the Board, all Non-executive
Directors, Independent Non-executive Directors and the Chairmen
of all Board Committees (or their representatives) will attend annual
general meetings to meet shareholders and respond to their
enquires. The Company’s general meeting is a platform for the
Board and shareholders to communicate with each other.

The Company has adopted a policy on payment of dividends
pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code that has become
effective from January 1, 2019 which sets out the factors in
consideration of the payment of dividend. The Board endeavors to
maintain a balance between meeting shareholders’ expectations
and prudent capital management with a sustainable dividend policy
and will continually review the same and make modifications when
appropriate.

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

During the year under review, no changes have been made to
Articles of Association of the Company. An up-to-date version of
the Company's Articles of Association is available on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Report of the Directors
EEEWE

The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal business of the Company, its subsidiaries and jointly
controlled entities is to engage in the exploration, development,
production and sale of crude oil and other petroleum products
under production sharing contracts and other similar arrangements.
The Group currently has the following oil and gas properties: (1)
two producing production oil sharing contracts in northeast China;
(2) participating interests in an exploration contract and six
production contracts in Kazakhstan held by Emir-Oil; and (3)
participating interests in one producing production oil sharing
contract in South China Sea.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2019
are set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income on pages 131 to 134.

The Board did not recommend the payment of final dividend for the
year ended December 31, 2019 (2018: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year has been set out in
pages 11 to 12 of the Chairman’s Statement, pages 101 to 122 of
the Management Discussion and Analysis, and this Report of the
Directors.

RESERVES

Please refer to the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
pages 135 to 136 and note 23 to the consolidated financial
statements on pages 271 to 272 for movements in the reserves of
the Group and the Company, respectively, for the year ended
December 31, 2019.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set
out in note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

SENIOR NOTES

Details of the senior notes are set out in note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at December 31, 2019 are
disclosed in the consolidated statements of changes in equity.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association and there was no restriction against such
rights under the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
group is set out on page 5 of the annual report.
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BUY-BACK, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended December 31, 2019, the Company
commenced and completed an exchange offer (“Exchange Offer”)
with respect to its US$500 million 7.5% senior notes due in 2019
(the “2019 Senior Notes"). The noteholders representing
approximately 84% of the total principal amount outstanding at
December 31, 2018 accepted the Exchange Offer. Accordingly, the
Company exchanged US$265.3 million aggregate principal amount
of the 2019 Senior Notes (the “Exchanged Notes") for US$248.4
million aggregate principal amount of the Company’s new 13.750%
Senior Notes due 2022 (the “2022 Senior Notes") and the other
exchange consideration in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the Exchange Offer. The Company has arranged for
cancellation of the Exchanged Notes.

As of December 31, 2019, US$248,394,000 in aggregate of the
principal amount of 2022 Senior Notes listed on the Singapore
Exchange Securities Trading Limited remained outstanding.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, disposed of or redeemed any of the
Company'’s listed securities for the year ended December 31,
2019.

PLACEMENT AND ISSUANCE OF SHARES AND
USE OF PROCEEDS

On March 25, 2019 and May 22, 2019, respectively the Company
allotted and issued in aggregate 272,000,000 shares at HK$0.10
per share under general mandate pursuant to the subscription
agreement dated March 20, 2019. The net proceeds after
deducting relevant expenses were approximately HK$27,100,000.

The use of proceeds was as follows:

° Approximately 36% was used for the repayment of other
loan(s);

° Approximately 64% was used for working capital and general
corporate purposes.
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On July 4, 2019, the Company allotted and issued 58,823,530
shares at HK$0.17 per share under general mandate pursuant to
the subscription agreement dated June 20, 2019. The net proceeds
after deducting relevant expenses were approximately
HK$10,000,000.

The use of proceeds was as follows:

Approximately 60% was used for the repayment of other
loan(s);

Approximately 40% was used for working capital and general
corporate purposes.

SHARE OPTIONS

(i)

Stock Incentive Compensation Plan (“Plan”)

The Board adopted the Plan prior to the listing of the
Company on the Stock Exchange designed to attract and
retain the best available personnel for positions of substantial
responsibility, provide additional incentive to employees and
directors and promote the success of our business.

The exercise price of the granted share options is equal to or
higher than the market price of the shares on the date of the
grant. Each share option gives the holder the right to
subscribe for one share of the Company. the share options
granted under the Plan typically vest over a two or three year
period at each anniversary of the grant date, subject to the
participant continuing to be an employee on each vesting
date.

The Company has undertaken that no further share options
will be granted under the Plan upon the listing of the
Company, but the provisions of the Plan shall in all other
respects remain in full force and effect and share options
granted under the Plan prior to the listing of the Company
continue to be exercisable in accordance with the Plan and
agreements entered into pursuant to the Plan.
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Cancellation of Vested Options

Prior to the listing of the Company, the Company granted,
pursuant to the Plan, share options to certain employees and
directors of the Company, entitling the option holders to
subscribe for an aggregate of 29,902,758 ordinary shares of
the Company of USDO0.001 each at the exercise prices of
US$0.13 and US$0.25 per share (“Pre-IPO Grant”).

As the exercise prices of vested options under the Plan have
been consistently higher when compared with the prevailing
market price of the Shares. As a result, the options could no
longer serve as an effective incentive. In view of this, the
Company offered to grant new share options pursuant to the
Scheme to cancel vested options under the Pre-IPO Grant,
subject to the option holders consenting to such cancellation.
As a result, 3,079,266 vested options under the Plan were
cancelled on May 16, 2019. No compensation was paid to the
holders for cancellation of the vested options.

Details of the share options outstanding as at December
31,2019 which have been granted under the Plan are as
follows:

Report of the Directors (Continued)
E5eHE (E)

HUHE SRBRE

EARRR EWA  ARARRIBEZT 1A
KRB REREMESE TERE -
RARBBEADBIZRBER0IIETLME
f8025% T B RIEAR QA HE
29,902,758 1% & A% I {80.001 3£ T & i@
PR E (T EHATRFRERED -

HRZATE TEGRERENTTEER
RIRERARIBRENEEMISER &
HESHERETBAEEBUNE - Al
RAFIRRERBBIRERTEIE T ER
B BUB LM TERETHES
EER BEALCEREREARER
oo AL - ZETEITRY 3,079,266 iR E 15
BEER-_ZE—NFRA T AHEUE
WARMEEFA AL SEREUEE S REER
HIF1E o

RZE—NF+ZA=+—8 " REZ
SFEIERBERRITEZ BREFIBW
T

Number Number Number
of options of options Number of options
Held at granted exercised of options cancelled Held at
January 1, during during  lapsed during during December Exercise price
2019 the period the period the period the period 31,2019 (per Share) ~ Date of grant Exercisable period
RZB-0E RZB-0E
-A-B  REABEZ REATEZ REARBAN  REASHE t-A=t-H
33 58 BREHA BREHEA BhREHA BREYE b TRE(BR) ®ER ERkire
Independent
non-executive
Directors
BUfHES
Mr.Mei Jianping 1,267,933 - - - 1,267,933 - US80.25  November 23, 2010 from November 23,2011
BRTEE 05%T ZE-FFT-AZt=RA  toNovember22 2020
BE——E+-ACTZHEE
“ECEET-ACTCAL
Mr Jeffrey Willard Miller 1,811,333 - - - 1,811,333 - US80.25  November 23, 2010 from November 23, 2011
Jeffrey Willard Miller % 0265 ZE-ZF+-F-TZ8  toNovember22, 2020
BZF——Ft-A-tZHEZ
ZEIFE-A-fzALE
QOther employees 4,666,823 - - 4,666,823 - US$0.13  November 20, 2009 from November 20, 2011
EfET 013%T  —FEAET-A-1R to November 19, 2019
-5——E+-A-TREE
ZE-AET-ATABL
Total 7,746,089 - - 4,666,823 3,079,266 -
gt
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(ii)

gRE (8)

Share Option Scheme (“Scheme”)

On November 27, 2010, the Board adopted the Scheme to
enable the Company to grant options to selected participants
as incentives or rewards for their contributions to our Group.
Participants of the Scheme include any executive Director,
non-executive Director or full time employee of the Group as
invited by the Board. The Scheme shall be valid and effective
for a period of 10 years commencing from the approval of the
Scheme.

The exercise period of any option granted under the Scheme
must not be more than 10 years commencing on the date of
grant. The acceptance of an offer of the grant of the option
must be made within 28 days from the date of grant with a
non-refundable payment of HK$1.00 from the grantee. The
exercise price determined by the Board will be at the higher
of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant;
(i) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of grant and (iii) the
nominal value of the shares.

The share options granted under the Scheme typically vest
over three years on the last day of each year starting from the
subsequent year of the grant, subject to the participant
continuing to be an employee on each vesting date and other
performance evaluation results.

Cancellation of Vested Options

On September 20, 2011, the Company granted, pursuant to
the Scheme adopted by the Company on November 27,
2010, share options to certain employees of the Company,
entitling the option holders to subscribe for an aggregate of
112,048,000 Shares of the Company of US$0.001 each at the
exercise price of HK$2.254 per Share (“2011 Grant”).

(ii)
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On March 21, 2014, the Company granted, pursuant to the
Scheme, share options to 151 eligible participants comprising
certain directors, substantial shareholders and employees of
the Company to subscribe for an aggregate of 97,280,000
Shares of the Company of US$0.001 each at the exercise
price of HK$1.40 per Share (the “2014 Grant").

On December 9, 2016, the Company granted, pursuant to the
Scheme, share options to 93 eligible participants comprising
certain directors, substantial shareholders and employees of
the Company to subscribe for an aggregate of 95,920,000
Shares of the Company of US$0.001 each at the exercise
price of HK$0.816 per share (the “2016 Grant").

As the exercise prices of vested options under the Scheme
have been consistently higher when compared with the
prevailing market price of the Shares. As a result, the options
could no longer serve as an effective incentive. In view of
this, the Company offered to grant new share options
pursuant to the Scheme to cancel vested options under the
2011 Grant, 2014 Grant and 2016 Grant, subject to the option
holders consenting to such cancellation. As a result,
122,333,243 vested options under the Scheme were
cancelled on May 16, 2019. No compensation was paid to the
holders for cancellation of the vested options.

Grant of Options

On May 16, 2019, the Company granted share options
pursuant to the Scheme to 90 eligible participants comprising
certain directors, substantial shareholders and employees of
the Company to subscribe for an aggregate of 155,089,171
Shares. These options have an exercise price of HK$0.269
per share and a term of 10 years from the grant date, and will
vest over the next three years.

The closing price per share as at May 15, 2019, being the
date immediately before the date the share options were
granted was HK$0.242.
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Under the Scheme, a total of 155,089,171 share options were
granted to Directors, executives and employees, of which
3,515,556 share options lapsed during the year ended
December 31, 2019. Details of the share options outstanding
as at December 31, 2019 which have been granted under the
Scheme are as follows:

BB R &

At

= I

155,089,171 17 i#

EReRTES TTRABREE - &
E_T-NE+RA=+—HILFEE"
H 3,615,656 10 B AR - RIBFHEAL
EAZERLEEBR -_Z—-AF+ZA
=t BERTENBREFBLT

Number of Number of Number of Number of
options options options options
Held at granted exercised lapsed cancelled Held at
January 1, during during during during  December 31, Exercise price
Name 2019 the period the period the period the period 2019 (per Share) ~ Date of grant Exercisable period
RZB-1% RZ%-1§
-A-B  REABEZ REATEZ REARBAN  REASHRE tZA=1-H
%4 K8 BREHB BRE  BRERR  BREHA 58 I%E(SK) RER TFREE
Executive Directors
gz
Mr. Zhang Ruilin 2,347,000 - - - 2,347,000 - HK$2.254  September 20, 2011 from December 31, 2012 to
FRRAE 154%n —F——FAA-TH September 19, 2021
B5-—Ef-R=T-HE
ECRC-FAATARL
2,640,000 - - - 2,640,000 - HK$1.40  March 21,2014 from March 21, 2016 to
140ET —Z-MEZA=1-R March 20, 2024
BZF-7FZA-t-A
E-3-mE-A-A
2,900,000 - - - 2,900,000 - HK$0.816  December 9, 2016 from December 9, 2016 to
0816 —Z-~Ft-ANA December 8, 2026
AZF-AETZANA
EZENEHZANR
- 7,887,000 - - - 7,887,000 HK$0.269  May 16,2019 from May 16, 2019 to
026957 —F-NERATAR May 15, 2029
BZE-NFRATAR
E-LCNERATERA
Mr. Zhao Jiangwei 2,347,000 - - - 2,347,000 - HK$2.254  September 20, 2011 from December 31, 2012
BIRRE 2264 ZE-—ENAZTH to September 19, 2021
A-5-—EfZA=T-HE
ZCEC-EAATARL
2,640,000 - - - 2,640,000 - HK$1.40  March 21,2014 from March 21, 2016
1408 —5-ME=A=t-R to March 20, 2024
B-F-AEZA-1-H
ERCME-ACHA
2,900,000 - - - 2,900,000 - HK$0.816  December 9, 2016 from December 9, 2016
08163 —E-RETZANA to December 8, 2026
B-E-RETZANE
ECBCRETIANA
- 7,887,000 - - - 7,887,000 HK$0.269  May 16, 2019 from May 16, 2019 to
026931 —F-NERATHAA May 15, 2029
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Number of Number of Number of Number of
options options options options
Held at granted exercised lapsed cancelled
January 1, during during during during
Name 2019 the period the period the period the period
R-%-1%
-A-B MAARMZ  REAGRZ  MERBXN  REAERH
#e ¥E  BREHE BhE  BREER  BREHR
Mr. Mei Liming 441,000 - - - 441,000
1EREALE
964,153 - - - 964,153
12,000,000 - - - 12,000,000
- 15,000,000 - - -
Independent
non-executive
Directors
BUfTES
Mr.Mei Jianping - 1,267,933 - - -
ERvEE
Mr Jeffrey Willard Miller - 1,811,333 - - -

Jeffrey Willard Miller 72 &

MIEHOLDINGS CORPORATION / ANNUAL REPORT 2019

Held at
December 31,
2019
RZE-1&
tZB=1-H
bt

15,000,000

1,267,933

1,811,333

Exercise price
(per Share)

fikR(ER)
HK$2.254

2254ET

HKS1.40
14087

HKS$0.816
0816787

HK$0.269
0.269%T

HK$0.269
026977

HK$0.269
026977

Date of grant

RER

September 20, 2011
“F--FARTHE

March 21, 2014
“E-RE=A=1-R

December 9, 2016
ZE-RETZANE

May 16, 2019
ZE-N\FERTAR

May 16, 2019
“E-NERATAB

May 16, 2019
“E-NERATAA

Exercisable period

TFEAE

from December 31, 2012

to September 19, 2021
BZF-FtZA=T-AE

ERC-FAATABL
from March 21, 2016

to March 20, 2024
B-5-ANEZA-T-R

Z_TCMEZACTH
from December 9, 2016

1o December 8, 2026
AZF-AEtZAAR

EZTCNEHZANR
from May 16, 2019

to May 15, 2029
BZE-NERATAR

E-R-AFRATARA

from May 16, 2019
to May 15,2029
A-5-NERATAR
E-3-A\FRATAR
from May 16, 2019
to May 15, 2029
EZE-NFRATRE
ECRCAFRATRR
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Held at

January 1,

Name 2019
R-B-1%

-A-A

#e 2}

Other employees 10,760,000

AfET

38,898,021

50,710,000

Number of
options
granted

during
the period

RERREZ
BREA

121,235,905

Number of
options
exercised
during
the period

REwTEZ
e

Number of
options
lapsed
during
the period

RAREAX
BRERA

1,764,000

3,499,931

1,950,000

3,516,556

Number of
options
cancelled
during
the period

REARERH
BREHE

8,996,000

35,398,090

48,760,000

Held at
December 31,
2019
RZB-nE
TZA=t-A
bt

117,720,349

Exercise price
(per Share)

kR (ER)
HK$2.254

2254ET

HKS1.40
14087

HKS0.816
08167

HK$0.269
026977

Date of grant

RER

September 20, 2011
“E—ENRZTH

March 21,2014
“E-mFZAzt-8

December 9, 2016
“E-ETZANA

May 16, 2019
“E-NEFRATRE

Exercisable period

TFTEAE

from December 31, 2012

to September 19, 2021
A-5-ZEfZR=T-HE

ER--FAATARL
from March 21, 2015

to March 20, 2024/

from March 21, 2016

to March 20, 2024
B-E-R%ZA-1t-H

EoR-MESFtR/
B-F-~EZA=t-R
EZECME-A=1R
from December 9, 2016

to December 8, 2026
BZE-AFTZANA

EZRoRETZANR
from May 16, 2019

to May 15,2029
BZE-NERATAR

ZZECNERATER

Total
EH

129,547,174

155,089,171

10,729,487

122,333,243

151,673,615
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(iii) 2012 Share Award Scheme (“2012 Share Award

Scheme”)

To supplement the Plan in respect the operation of the share
appreciation rights (“SARs"), the Board resolved to adopt a
2012 Share Award Scheme on May 30, 2012, pursuant to
which the Company granted to selected grantees who are
persons holding SARs under the Plan, such number of
awarded shares as is equal to the number of outstanding
notional shares to which the SARs of the selected grantees
relates. The 2012 Share Award Scheme does not constitute a
share option scheme pursuant to Chapter 17 of the Listing
Rules and is a discretionary scheme of the Company.

The Board resolved to adopt on November 20, 2015 the
amended Plan, pursuant to which, restrictions on grant price
of SARs granted after the adoption of amended Plan are
removed. Lapsed SARs will be re-used and re-granted upon
terms and conditions determined by the remuneration
committee of the Company in its sole discretion, in
accordance with the amended Plan.

According to the 2012 Share Award Scheme, shares of up to
44,415,800 of the Company will be purchased by a trustee
from the market out of cash contributed by the Company and
be held in trust for the benefit of the selected grantees
pending the exercise of the SARs. Upon exercise of the SAR
by the selected grantees, the trustee will sell the awarded
shares to which the SAR so exercised relates and pay the
selected grantees in satisfaction of the Company’s payment
obligations in relation to the SAR under the Plan. Unless early
terminated by the board of the Company, the 2012 Share
Award Scheme shall continue in full force and effect until the
date when all the SARs are exercised, terminated or expired.
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Cancellation of Vested SARs

Since the exercise price of the SAR has been higher than the
prevailing market price of shares the 2012 Share Award
Scheme could no longer serve as an effective incentive. In
view of this, the Company offered certain SAR grantees each
one common share of the Company in consideration of
cancellation of two previously granted SARs subject to the
SAR grantees consenting to such cancellation. On January
25, 2018, 17,847,663 SARs were cancelled and 8,923,833
shares were granted to such SAR grantees under the 2012
Share Award Scheme.

As at December 31, 2019, the trustee held 992,642 shares
acquired through purchases from the market on behalf of
certain grantees under the 2012 Share Award Scheme.

2015 Share Award Scheme (“2015 Share Award
Scheme”)

To recognize the contributions by certain grantees and to give
incentives thereto in order to retain them for the continuing
operation and development of the Group, and to attract
suitable personnel for further development of the Group, the
Board resolved to adopt on January 6, 2015 and amend on
November 20, 2015 the 2015 Share Award Scheme, pursuant
to which the Board may at their absolute discretion select any
grantee, who is an employee or consultant of the Group or of
any affiliate, for participation in the 2015 Share Award
Scheme and determine the number of awarded shares to be
granted to such grantee. The 2015 Share Award Scheme
does not constitute a share option scheme pursuant to
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules and is a discretionary scheme
of the Company, and will be in effect in parallel with the Plan,
the Scheme and the 2012 Share Award Scheme.
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Pursuant to the 2015 Share Award Scheme rules, existing
shares will be purchased by a trustee from open market out
of cash which will be paid by the Company as trust shares
and be held on trust for the grantees until the relevant
award(s) is vested in accordance with the relevant award
agreement and the 2015 Share Award Scheme rules. Upon
vesting, the trustee shall transfer the relevant trust shares as
awarded shares to the relevant grantee, or upon receipt of
the instructions from the grantees, dispose of the relevant
awarded shares in open market and transfer the proceeds of
the sale of the relevant awarded shares (after deduction of
the relevant charges, expenses, stamp duty and levy) to the
relevant grantee.

Subject to any early termination as may be determined by the
Board pursuant to the 2015 Share Award Scheme rules, the
2015 Share Award Scheme shall be valid and effective from
January 6, 2015 to the date of the last of the awarded shares
has been vested and transferred to the relevant grantee or
has lapsed, whichever is later, in accordance with the 2015
Share Award Scheme rules, provided that no award shall be
made on or after the 10th anniversary date of the adoption
date.

On November 20, 2015, the Board of Directors has resolved
to offer to certain directors and employees 14,200,000 shares
under the 2015 Share Award Scheme.

On December 9, 2016, the Board has resolved to offer to
certain director 12,000,000 shares under the 2015 Share
Award Scheme.

On January 25, 2018, the Board resolved to offer to
employees and directors 104,000,000 shares under the 2015
Share Award Scheme.

As at December 31, 2019, the trustee held 11,975,165 shares
acquired through purchases from the market at an aggregate
consideration of approximately HK$13,095,325 (including
transaction costs).
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Others

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted under each of
the Scheme, the Plan and any other share option scheme of
the Company to each participant in any 12 month period shall
not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company
from time to time. The total number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
Scheme and any other schemes of the Company must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in issue at the date of
the 2012 annual general meeting.

As at the date of this report, the maximum number of shares
available for issue under the Scheme is 264,784,079 shares,
representing approximately 8.1% of the issued share capital.

DIRECTORS

The directors during the year were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Ruilin (Chairman)
Mr. Zhao Jiangwei
Mr. Wang Xiong
(appointed with effect from August 9, 2019
and resigned with effect from November 11, 2019)
Mr. Mei Liming
(appointed with effect from November 11, 2019
and resigned with effect from June 18, 2020)

Non-executive Directors

Ms. Xie Na
Mr. Jiao Qisen
(resigned with effect from January 16, 2019)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Mei Jianping
Mr. Jeffrey Willard Miller
Mr. Guo Yanjun
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In accordance with Article 16.18 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Zhao Jiangwei and Ms. Xie Na shall retire by
rotation at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. All of the
above retiring Directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

We have entered into letters of appointment with each of our
Directors, pursuant to which each of the Executive Directors, non-
executive Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors is
appointed for terms of three years, subject to re-election in
accordance with our Articles of Association at our general meeting.

On November 20, 2009, Mr. Zhang Ruilin and Mr. Zhao Jiangwei,
each an Executive Director, has entered into a service contract with
the Company, which is renewable yearly unless terminated (i) with
12 months’ notice by either party, or (ii) by the Company upon
certain events such as the Director having committed serious or
persistent breaches of the service contract. Should the Company
terminate the service contract, Mr. Zhang Ruilin and Mr. Zhao
Jiangwei will be entitled to receive severance payment equivalent
to one year's basic pay under the service contract, save for
circumstances described in item (ii) above.

Save as disclosed above, none of our Directors have entered into a
service contract with us which does not expire or which is not
determinable by us within one year without the payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS AND
CONTINUED CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended December 31, 2019, the Company had
followed policies and guidelines to determine the price and terms
of the CCTs conducted. the Group had the following transactions
with Jilin Guotai Petroleum Development Company, Songyuan
Guotai Petroleum Technology Service Company and their
subsidiaries (“Jilin Guotai”), which are connected persons of the
Company under the Listing Rules:

Continuing Connected Transactions
Provision of oilfield services by Jilin Guotai to us

Jilin Guotai is owned by Mrs. Zhang and Mr. Zhao Jiangwei, and is
therefore a connected person of the Company.

On November 23, 2010, we entered into a framework oilfield
service agreement with Jilin Guotai (the "Oilfield Service
Agreement”), pursuant to which Jilin Guotai agreed to provide to
us various oilfield services including well maintenance services,
well logging services, oil tanker transportation services, oilfield
construction related works and other oil operations related
services, subject to the entering into of individual contracts as
agreed between Jilin Guotai and us pursuant to the Qilfield Service
Agreement. The service fees will be based on normal commercial
terms and negotiated on arm’s length basis between the parties,
and shall be no less favourable than those offered by independent
third parties to our Group.

On December 31, 2012, we entered into the Renewed QOilfield
Services Agreement with Jilin Guotai for a term of three years
ending December 31, 2015.

On December 31, 2015, we entered into the Renewed Oilfield
Services Agreement with Jilin Guotai for a term of three years
ending December 31, 2018.
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On December 6, 2018, we entered into a renewed oil services
agreement with Jilin Guotai for a term of three years ending
December 31, 2021.

The proposed annual caps for the transactions under the renewed
oilfield services agreement are RMB167 million, RMB189 million
and RMB208 million for the three years ending December 31,
2021, respectively.

As set out below, the aggregate annual transaction amount of each
continuing connected transaction for the year ended December 31,
2019 has not exceeded proposed annual cap.

Proposed annual cap

RZTE—NF+ZARE  RAEEREFE]
VB ARG A FRMABE—_T ——
F+-A=t+—HIE=F-

B2 —F+-_A=1+—"HI=F "&#H
FBARE HRFERES A A167AE T

e —

189 BEIT R 208 E&ETT ©

HINT XA SRHEREXIRBE_F
~NEFTZA=ZT-HLEZFERSEBTHE
BEEFELR -

Transaction amount

for the year ended for the year ended

Connected Person Nature of transaction December 31, 2019 December 31, 2019
BE-_Z—NF BE-Z—h#&F
+=—A=+-—H +=—A=+—H

BB AL REMHE ERFELR REE

Jilin Guotai Provision of oilfield services by RMB167.0 million RMB111.8 million

EMEZE Jilin Guotai to the Company AR¥16,7008 7T AREE11,1808 7T

BB SRR AR h B RS

In the opinion of the independent non-executive Directors, the
above transactions were entered into: (i) in the Group's ordinary
and usual course of business; (i) on normal commercial terms or
better; and (iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Company and the shareholders of the Company as
a whole. Details of such connected transactions are set out in note
38 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the listing Rules, the Board engaged
the auditor of the Company to conduct a limited assurance
engagement on the above non-exempt continuing connected
transactions in accordance with the Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other
than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s letter on Continuing
Connected transactions under the listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor
has reported their conclusion to the Board, stating that:

a.  nothing has come to the auditor’'s attention that causes the
auditor to believe that the relevant non-exempt continuing
connected transactions have not been approved by the
Company’s board of directors.

b.  nothing has come to the auditor’'s attention that causes the
auditor to believe that the transactions were not entered into,
in all material respects, in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing such transactions.

C. with respect to the aggregate amount of the relevant non-
exempt continuing connected transactions, nothing has come
to the auditor’s attention that causes the auditor to believe
that the relevant continuing connected transactions have
exceeded the annual cap as set by the Company.

Save as disclosed above, there is no contract of significance
between the Group and a controlling shareholder of the Company
(as defined in the Listing Rules) or any of its subsidiaries, including
the provision of services by the controlling shareholder or its
subsidiaries to the Group.

Saved as disclosed above, there has also been no transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance subsisting during or at the
end of the year ended December 31, 2019 in which a Director or
an entity connected with a Director is or was materially interested,
either directly or indirectly.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS

Brief biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 13
to 16.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION
As at December 31, 2019, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and the chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations, within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"), which will have to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which he/she is taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), or which will be required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to
therein, or which will be required to be notified to the Company

EERTETHRAERAEQAHEM
HEEBE RS - HERO REEE
FEENERR KR

R-EBE-NF+-A=+—H ARAEEK
FETHRAEBRARBIREEEEZE(TER
BHERBAEGG ([EHRBEEG ) EXVED)
M HERD REREFREREES K
HIEIEPIEXVERE 7 M8 EBME AR A K
BRFREm AR (BRREREBEESARBEK
DI IE X B ES AR B A NS KA
B) HIREESF M EIEFIF 352 1KMRE
BEDNRZIGFFIENETHMANERIAR
SAREH AN EMARBA EHEITAERHEITE
FRGEZESTA([BESFR ) BME AR AT

and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities — MBE3T PREYREZS SR B =Fuian T -
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)

contained in the Listing Rules, were detailed as follows:

Number of ordinary Approximate
shares (including total percentage

Name of Capacity/ options to be of interest in the
Name of Director Corporation Nature of interest exercised) corporation
ROEE hEEREEN
BEEpg EEAR 53 REME (BETTRERE) BRETE
Mr. Zhang Ruilin Our Company Interest of controlled 1,577,095,234 (L) 48.23%
RAFALE VNN corporation (Note 2)
Rzt EEER (fa2)
Interest of controlled 88,621,234 (S) 2.70%
corporation (Note 3)
Rzt EEER (H53)
Beneficial owner (Note 4) 7,987,000 (L) 0.24%
BERBEAA(H4)
Mr. Zhao Jiangwei Our Company Interest of controlled 1,577,095,234 (L) 48.23%
TS VAN/NE| corporation (Note 2)
Rt EEER (3t 2)
Interest of controlled 88,621,234 (S) 2.70%
corporation (Note 3)
Rt =R R (f573)
Beneficial owner (Note 4) 10,987,000 (L) 0.33%

BRBAANMT4)
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Number of ordinary
shares (including

Approximate
total percentage

Name of Capacity/ options to be of interest in the

Name of Director Corporation Nature of interest exercised) corporation
RGO EE hEEEEN
ESpg EEER B3 RnME (BREUTRERE) BHBEA
Mr. Zhang Ruilin Far East Energy Interest of controlled 8,999 9.99%
RAFRAE Limited (“FEEL") corporation (Note 2)
Rzt EEER (3t 2)
Mr. Zhao Jiangwei FEEL Interest of controlled 9,000 10%
HIRLE corporation (Note 2)
Rzt EERR (f52)
Mr. Mei Jianping Our Company Beneficial owner 2,067,933 (L) 0.06%
iR EsE PN ERBEAA
Mr. Jeffrey Willard Miller Our Company Beneficial owner 2,611,333 (L) 0.08%
Jeffrey Willard Miller %4 VYN EREBA
Ms. Xie Na Our Company Beneficial owner 800,000 (L) 0.02%
#ifz+ /NG ERBEBA
Mr. Guo Yanjun Our Company Beneficial owner 800,000 (L) 0.02%
PEELE VNG ERBEAA
Mr. Mei Liming Our Company Beneficial owner 15,000,000 (L) 0.45%
GRS E /NG| ERBEAA
Notes: Hiet -
(1) The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in the shares of the (1) FTELIEEMALTRARTRNDFNGTE - T
Company. The letter “S” denotes the person’s short position in the shares of [SIEEMALTRERRIBRDPENAE ©
the Company.

(2) FEEL is held by Ms. Zhao Jiangbo (“Mrs. Zhang"), Mr. Zhang Ruilin (“"Mr.  (2) FEELHBTE ([FRERAL - RAREE([REE]D

Zhang") and Mr. Zhao Jiangwei (“Mr. Zhao") as to 80%, 9.99% and 10%,
respectively. On May 24, 2013, 72,000 shares in FEEL were issued to Mrs.
Zhang, 399,070,000 shares in the Company were transferred from FEEL to
Champion International Energy Limited (“Champion”), 399,070,000 shares in
the Company were transferred from FEEL to Orient International Energy
Limited (“Orient"”), 475,000,000 shares in the Company were transferred from
FEEL to New Sun International Energy Limited (“New Sun”) and 141,460,000
shares in the Company were transferred from FEEL to Power International
Energy Limited (“Power"”). Each of Champion, Orient, New Sun and Power is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Sunrise Glory Holdings Limited, which is itself a
wholly-owned subsidiary of FEEL. Mrs. Zhang, Mr. Zhang and Mr. Zhao have
entered into an Acting-in-Concert Agreement under which they agreed to act in
concert in relation to all matters that require the decisions of the shareholders
of FEEL. Pursuant to the Acting-in-Concert Agreement, if a unanimous opinion
in relation to the matters that require action in concert is unable to be reached,
Mr. Zhang shall be allowed to vote on his, Mrs. Zhang's and Mr. Zhao's shares.

R IHEE(THEE]) D RIFEAFS0% » 9.99% K&
10% e RZT—=FhA=-+MA  FEELHK)
72,000 % B& 15 %17 F 3R X A - FEELD I AS A R 7
399,070,000 % + 399,070,000 fi% * 475,000,000 % %
141,460,000 % % 19 3 F Champion International
Energy Limited([ Champion|) * Orient International
Energy Limited ([Orient]) * New Sun International
Energy Limited ([ New Sun ) } Power International
Energy Limited ([Power]) = Champion * Orient *
New Sun K PowerJ /& Sunrise Glory Holdings
Limited By 2 & fff @2 @) ° i1 Sunrise Glory Holdings
Limited Bl BFEELHI 2 BB A A - )RR A » R %
ERBEEBITL —BITHHE - Bt HERE
HAFEELIRFRESN — ) RE—ITH) - BIF—
BATE M WREEERBRET —BITSHEEN —
WER REEBERHE REARBETENRS
EITRERR -
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The long interests which FEEL, Mr. Zhang and Mr. Zhao have in the
1,577,095,234 shares in the Company include (i) the beneficial interests which
FEEL has (and in the case of Mr. Zhang and Mr. Zhao, the indirect beneficial
interests which they have (through their shareholdings in FEEL)) in the
1,469,600,000 shares in the Company held by FEEL through its subsidiaries, (i)
the 7,887,000 share options granted to Mr. Zhang, (iii) the 7,887,000 share
options granted to Mr. Zhao, (iv) the put option granted by FEEL, Mr. Zhang
and Mr. Zhao, pursuant to a put and call option agreement, over the 88,521,234
shares in the Company held by Mr. Ho Chi Sing through Celestial Energy
Limited (“Celestial”), as further described in note (3) below, (v) the 100,000
shares owned by Mr. Zhang himself and (vi) 3,100,000 shares owned by Mr.
Zhao himself.

The Company was informed on November 8, 2014 that TPG Star Energy Ltd.
and Celestial had entered into a sale and purchase agreement pursuant to
which Celestial had acquired and TPG Star Energy Ltd. has sold 211,855,234
ordinary shares in the Company.

On November 8, 2014, FEEL, Mr. Zhang, Mr. Zhao, Mrs. Zhang and Celestial
entered into a put and call option agreement in relation to certain of shares (the
“PCA"), pursuant to which the parties to the put and call option agreement
have agreed to grant each other certain rights in relation to their shares, and
section 317(1)(a) of the SFO applies. Mr. Ho Chi Sing is the sole shareholder of
Celestial.

In particular, Mr. Ho Chi Sing, through his holdings in Celestial, is beneficially
interested in 211,855,234 shares in the Company. Pursuant to the
abovementioned put and call option agreement, Mr. Ho Chi Sing and Celestial
have been granted a put option to resell/put 211,855,234 shares to FEEL, Mr.
Zhang and Mr. Zhao.

On January 6, 2017, FEEL, Mr. Zhang, Mr. Zhao, Mrs. Zhang and Celestial
entered into a letter agreement in relation to the put and call option. The Board
was also informed that Great Harmony International Ltd (“Great Harmony")
and Celestial have entered into a sale and purchase agreement pursuant to
which Great Harmony has agreed to acquire (or procure its affiliate or other
person or company designated by it to acquire) and Celestial has agreed to sell
211,855,234 ordinary shares in the Company.

On January 18, 2017, February 23, 2017 and March 7, 2017, Celestial had
ceased to have 53,334,000 shares, 40,000,000 shares and 30,000,000 shares
in long and short positions, respectively.

On May 17, 2017, FEEL, Mr. Zhang, Mr. Zhao, Mrs. Zhang (collectively, the
“Controlling Shareholders”) and Celestial entered into a second letter
agreement in relation to the put and call option agreement. For further details,
please refer to the Company’s announcement dated May 17, 2017.
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On November 30, 2017, the Controlling Shareholders and Celestial entered into
the supplemental agreement to the second letter agreement in relation to the
put and call option agreement. For further details, please refer to the
Company's announcement dated November 30, 2017.

On April 14, 2018, the Controlling Shareholders and Celestial entered into the
second supplemental agreement to the second letter agreement in relation to
the put and call option agreement. For further details, please refer to the
Company's announcement dated April 15, 2018.

On November 26, 2018, the Controlling Shareholders and Celestial entered into
the third supplemental agreement to the second letter agreement in relation to
the put and call option agreement. For further details, please refer to the
Company's announcement dated November 26, 2018.

On May 30, 2019, the Controlling Shareholders and Celestial entered into the
fourth supplement agreement to the second letter agreement in relation to the
put and call option agreement. For further details, please refer to the
Company's announcement dated May 30, 2019.

(4) These interests represent interests in outstanding stock options under the Plan
and the Scheme. For further details, please refer to the section headed “Share
Options”. Mr. Zhang's interests includes the 100,000 shares held by himself.
Mr. Zhao's interests includes the 3,100,000 shares held by himself.

Save as disclosed above and in the section headed “Share
Options”, as at December 31, 2019, none of the Directors or the
chief executives of the Company had any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
he/she had taken or was deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO) or which were required to be entered into the register
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code; nor had there been any
grant or exercise of rights of such interests during the year ended
December 31, 2019.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND/
OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

So far as the Directors are aware of, as at December 31, 2019, the
following persons (other than the Directors, chief executive(s) or
members of the Group) who had interests and/or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions
two and three of Part XV of the SFO, or, which would be required,
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO, to be entered into the register
referred to therein, were as follows:

FERRAEQRTHRMD - HERS
REENERR KR

MEEM R-E—NF+-_A=1+—H"
THAL(BREE - TETHRABRANERER
BRARIIN RARR ZBRHSABBR O ER
RIFFEAENEAEIEFEXVEE 2 30 E AR
ARRBRBEOER R KR - IREBEFHFR

BRE 1601 55 336 (5 ZA B e IV RZ I P48 2 B 5 it
mme SKSSRBINT ¢

Total number of
Shares (including

Approximate
percentage of

Party Capacity/ options to be interest in
Name of Interested Nature of interest exercised) company
BRGEE  ERARERN
BHE A% 513 RRME (BEMTEERE) BARDL
Ms. Zhao Jiangbo Interest of controlled corporation (Note 2) 1,677,095,234 (L) 48.23%
HIRZT REEtEEER (5 2) 88,521,234 (S) 2.70%
FEEL Interest of controlled corporation (Note 2) 1,577,095,234 (L) 48.23%
T EEER (HiE2) 88,521,234 (S) 2.70%
Mr. Ho Chi Sing Interest of controlled corporation (Note 3) 1,677,095,234 (L) 48.23%
fAIEKEE SEG)EEER (HE3) 88,521,234 (S) 2.70%
Celestial Energy Limited Interest of controlled corporation (Note 3) 1,577,095,234 (L) 48.23%
("Celestial") T EE S (T 3) 88,521,234 (S) 2.70%
Billion Capital Shine Inc. Person having a security interest in Shares 1,472,300,000 (L) 45.03%
(Note 4)
HAROERERNAL (Ht4)
China Orient Asset Management Interest of controlled corporation (Note 4) 1,472,300,000 (L) 45.03%
(International) Holding Limited T EE R (M 4)
REIRGEEEE (BR) 3K
BB ARA
China Orient Asset Management Interest of controlled corporation (Note 4) 1,472,300,000 (L) 45.03%

Co., Limited
FERFTEEEERROAERAA

THlEE RS (AiE4)
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Total number of
Shares (including

Approximate
percentage of

Party Capacity/ options to be interest in

Name of Interested Nature of interest exercised) company

ROBE  ERARERD

BHEERB 13 RmME (BIET{TRREEARAE) BAE

Dong Yin Development (Holdings) Interest of controlled corporation (Note 4) 1,472,300,000 (L) 45.03%
Limited REt LR R (ffat4)

RRVE (BB ERA

Wise Leader Assets Ltd. Interest of controlled corporation (Note 4) 1,472,300,000 (L) 45.03%
Rt EEER (it 4)

Flying Investments Limited Beneficial owner 199,160,000 (L) 6.09%

ESBEBA
Fung Wing Nam Florence Interest of controlled corporation 199,160,000 (L) 6.09%

bt

Notes:

(1)

XEHEEER

The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in the shares of the
Company. The letter “S” denotes the person’s short position in the shares of

the Company.

FEEL is held by Mrs. Zhang, Mr. Zhang and Mr. Zhao as to 80%, 9.99% and
10%, respectively. On May 24, 2013, 72,000 shares in FEEL were issued to
Mrs. Zhang, 399,070,000 shares in the Company were transferred from FEEL
to Champion, 399,070,000 shares in the Company were transferred from FEEL
to Orient, 475,000,000 shares in the Company were transferred from FEEL to
New Sun and 141,460,000 shares in the Company were transferred from FEEL
to Power International Energy Limited (“Power”). Each of Champion, Orient,
New Sun and Power is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Sunrise Glory Holdings
Limited, which is itself a wholly-owned subsidiary of FEEL. Mrs. Zhang, Mr.
Zhang and Mr. Zhao have entered into an Acting-in-Concert Agreement under
which they agreed to act in concert in relation to all matters that require the
decisions of the shareholders of FEEL. Pursuant to the Acting- in-Concert
Agreement, if a unanimous opinion in relation to the matters that require action
in concert is unable to be reached, Mr. Zhang shall be allowed to vote on his,
Mrs. Zhang's and Mr. Zhao's shares.

et -

FRILIBRUALRARTARNTHNEFER - F8
[S]HRAMALTRARFRMDFHIXR

FEELEHRAA » RAEERBEED RIEES0%
9.99% K 10% i - R-T—=4FRA=-+mWA -
FEEL #972,000 f% i 19 8 47 T 5k = A * FEEL% &l
#2271 399,070,000 % + 399,070,000 f% -
475,000,000 % % 141,460,000/% A& 15 & & T
~ Orient
Champion * Orient * New Sun % Power ] /& Sunrise
Glory Holdings Limited ¥y & i EB-A &) il Sunrise
Glory Holdings Limited 8| % FEELK) 2 & ME R 7] ©
%E%}\ CREAERBAEADI L —BITEHE - &

CWERERFAFEELRIREN — ) =E
ﬁ@J RIE—ITEN % - MARAEENERTE —
THEEN—BER REEEERE - RXAR
I EMRRD EITIRZER R ©

Champion  New Sun K Power °
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The long interests which FEEL, Mr. Zhang and Mr. Zhao have in the
1,577,095,234 shares in the Company include (i) the beneficial interests which
FEEL has (and in the case of Mr. Zhang and Mr. Zhao, the indirect beneficial
interests which they have (through their shareholdings in FEEL)) in the
1,469,600,000 shares in the Company held by FEEL through its subsidiaries, (ii)
the 7,887,000 share options granted to Mr. Zhang, (iii) the 7,887,000 share
options granted to Mr. Zhao, (iv) the put option granted by FEEL, Mr. Zhang,
Mr. Zhao and Mrs. Zhang, pursuant to a put and call option agreement, over
the 88,521,234 shares in the Company held by Mr. Ho Chi Sing through
Celestial, as further described in note (3) below, (v) the 100,000 shares owned
by Mr. Zhang himself and (vi) 3,100,000 shares owned by Mr. Zhao himself.

The Company was informed on November 8, 2014 that TPG Star Energy Ltd.
and Celestial had entered into a sale and purchase agreement pursuant to
which Celestial had acquired and TPG Star Energy Ltd. has sold 211,855,234
ordinary shares in the Company.

On November 8, 2014, FEEL, Mr. Zhang, Mr. Zhao, Mrs. Zhang and Celestial
entered into the PCA in relation to certain of the shares, pursuant to which the
parties to the put and call option agreement have agreed to grant each other
certain rights in relation to their shares, and section 317 (1)(a) of the SFO
applies. Mr. Ho Chi Sing is the sole shareholder of the Celestial.

In particular, Mr. Ho Chi Sing, through his holdings in Celestial, is beneficially
interested in 211,855,234 shares in the Company. Pursuant to the
abovementioned put and call option agreement, Mr. Ho Chi Sing and Celestial
have been granted a put option to resell/put 211,855,234 shares to FEEL, Mr.
Zhang and Mr. Zhao.

On January 6, 2017, FEEL, Mr. Zhang, Mr. Zhao, Mrs. Zhang (collectively, the
"Controlling Shareholders”) and Celestial entered into the letter agreement
in relation to the put and call option. The Board was also informed that Great
Harmony International Ltd (“Great Harmony") and Celestial have entered into
a sale and purchase agreement pursuant to which Great Harmony has agreed
to acquire (or procure its affiliate or other person or company designated by it
to acquire) and Celestial has agreed to sell 211,855,234 ordinary shares in the
Company.

On January 18, 2017, February 23, 2017 and March 7, 2017, Celestial had
ceased to have 53,334,000 shares, 40,000,000 shares and 30,000,000 shares
in long and short positions, respectively.
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FEEL * 3R 5 4 R 8 ¢ A IR AR 2 811,577,095,234 %
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mkREERBAE - A ARSHERE G FEEL
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7,887,000 {5 i At - (jii) it 55 A2 112 /9 7,887,000 19
BEARHE - (iv) FEEL » sSREERBEEEARKEAR
BRERABHRBEARDHAEXNEEEB
Celestial T35 AN A 788,521,234 B A7 &0 525 H HAtE -
BE—SHARTXWER)  VMREERFFTERR
100,000% f% 1+ RV £ £ A F BT #E B 0
3,100,000 A& &5 °

ARARRZZT—NF+—HA/N\NBEE  TPG Star
Energy Ltd. £ Celestial 5] 32 B & # &% © ¥ Ut -

Celestial R E Y H & TPG Star[E & H % 211,855,234
AR A R A% o

RZZE—NF+—ANHR FEEL - 5R%&4E - #B%E
4 3R K A K Celestial gt % T A& 10 7] 3L 320 K R0
R B ZRRZAINARELEZEE
PREERNZETENLERAZS RAEKHE

317(1)(@) 1&#R T o 1] A K 55 A /% Celestial 89 M — %
o
TEHER—IROZ - KL A& I8 ETE Celestial

E’J%Hﬁ ¥ B RAE] 211,855,234 fEHERS o R Lt

ol R REBE RS WEK L EMCelestial i B
ROn AR BAFEEL  SRAEMB A LS EH
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On May 17, 2017, the Controlling Shareholders and Celestial entered into a
second letter agreement in relation to the put and call option agreement. For
further details, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated May 17,
2017.

On November 30 2017, the Controlling Shareholders and Celestial entered into
the supplement agreement to the second letter agreement in relation to the
put and call option agreement. For further details, please refer to the
Company's announcement dated November 30, 2017.

On April 14, 2018, the Controlling Shareholders and Celestial entered into the
second supplement agreement to the second letter agreement in relation to
the put and call option agreement. For further details, please refer to the
Company's announcement dated April 15, 2018.

On November 26, 2018, the Controlling Shareholders and Celestial entered into
the third supplement agreement to the second letter agreement in relation to
the put and call option agreement. For further details, please refer to the
Company's announcement dated November 26, 2018.

On May 30, 2019, the Controlling Shareholders and Celestial entered into the
fourth supplement agreement to the second letter agreement in relation to the
put and call option agreement. For further details, please refer to the
Company's announcement dated May 30, 2019.

Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2019, no person
(other than the Directors or the chief executive of our Company,
whose interests have been disclosed in the above section headed
“Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and/or Short Positions
in the Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company
or Any Associated Corporation”) had an interest or a short position
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in
the register required to be kept by our Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO.

,tg

—tFRA+EH - EARRE K Celestial %
ET; E&uuﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁi SR IR o FEAR(E
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year, the Group purchased around 18.2% of its goods
and services from its five largest suppliers as well as 7.52% of its
goods and services from the largest supplier; and 43.75% and
78.37% respectively of the Group’s revenue are from PetroChina,
its largest customer, and its five largest customers combined.

Save as otherwise disclosed in this report (if any), none of the
Directors, their close associates or any shareholder (which to the
knowledge of Directors owns more than 5% of the Company's
issued share capital) has any interest in the Group’s five largest
suppliers and customers.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, SUPPLIERS
AND CUSTOMERS

The employees, suppliers and customers of the Company play an
important role in the Company’s development and on which the
Company’s success depends. The Company provides competitive
remuneration packages to attract and motivate the employees. The
Company maintains good relationship with customers, suppliers
and other business partners to achieve its long-term goals. In 2019,
there was no material and significant dispute between our Group
and its customers, suppliers and other business partners.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

During the process of hydrocarbon production, the Company highly
values the protection of natural and ecological environment and its
comprehensive environmental protection measures to ensure that
the Company complies with the applicable laws and regulations in
relation to environmental protection. During the process of
construction and production of oilfields, we place environment
impact assessment, compliance with set standards or targets on
pollutant emissions, control on total discharge amount and
reduction on emissions as our priorities.

The Company views energy saving and reduction in emission as an
important aspect of our cost reduction and maintaining high
management standards. We also continue to strengthen efforts on
technical reformation during daily management, which is the key to
improve energy efficiency and reduce carbon emissions.
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For the year ended December 31, 2019, the Company has
constructed oilfields of green environmental protection in
accordance with regulatory requirements and there were no
matters arising from environmental-related regulatory non-
compliances.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

As far as the Board and senior management are aware, the Group
has complied in material respects with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the business and
operations of the Group. During the year ended December 31,
2019, there was no material breach of or non-compliance with
applicable laws and regulations by the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, it is confirmed that
there is sufficient public float of at least 25% of the Company’s
issued shares as required under the Listing Rules during the period
from January 1, 2019 to November 27, 2020 (being the latest
practicable date for ascertaining information prior to the issue of
this annual report).

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

The Company'’s Articles of Association provides that every Director,
auditor or other officer of the Company shall be entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or
liabilities incurred or sustained by him as a Director, auditor or other
officer of the Company in defending any proceedings, in which
judgment is given in his favour, or in which he is acquitted.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors and officers
liabilities insurance coverage for Directors and officers of the
Company.
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COMPETING BUSINESS

A non-competition deed in favor of the Company was entered into
by FEEL, Mr. Zhang and Mr. Zhao on November 23, 2010. Our
independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
compliance and enforcement of the non-competition deed and
were of the view that FEEL, Mr. Zhang and Mr. Zhao were in
compliance with the non-Competition deed during the reporting
period.

None of the Directors of the Company had an interest in a business
which competes with the Company or is likely to compete with the
business of the Group.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Proposed Dividend

The Board did not recommend the payment of final dividend for the
year ended December 31, 2019 (2018: Nil).

GROUP’S EMOLUMENTS POLICY

The emoluments policy of the employees of the Group is set up by
the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are decided by
the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The annual general meeting of the Company is scheduled to be
held on Thursday, January 14, 2021 ("AGM"). For determining the
entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Monday, January 11,
2021 to Thursday, January 14, 2021, both days inclusive, during
which no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to be eligible
to attend and vote at the AGM, all completed transfers of shares,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be lodged
with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Investor Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30
p.m. on Friday, January 8, 2021 (Hong Kong time), being the last
registration date.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers,
who will retire and, being eligible, offered themselves for re-
appointment as the Company’s auditor.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. Zhang Ruilin
Chairman

Hong Kong, November 27, 2020
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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QUALITY OF WORKING ENVIRONMENT

(1) Employment

The Group implements and/or complies with the
following employment policies and regulations for
recruitment and dismissal, remuneration and promotion,
working hours, holidays, diversification and other bonus

and benefits:

The remuneration of employees is in accordance
with the relevant provisions of the Group's internal
policy titled “MIE Holdings Corporation’s
Remuneration Management System”. The
Company provides employees with
comprehensive and competitive packages taking
into account market competition and equality
within the Group. An employee’s remuneration
package is based on an overall evaluation of work
performance, the employee’s relevant rank and
position and capability.

The recruitment, promotion and dismissal of
employees of the Group in China are governed by
the “Labor Law of the People’s Republic of
China", the "Labor Contract Law of the People’s
Republic of China”, the "Policies Governing
Employee Relations of MIE Holdings
Corporation”, other national and regional laws and
regulations, and the Company’s administrative
policies. Recruitment, promotion and dismissal of
employees in Hong Kong are conducted in
accordance with the “Employment Ordinance”
and other relevant Hong Kong laws and
regulations. The recruitment, promotion and
dismissal of employees of Canlin in Canada are
governed by the “Provincial Employment
Standards"”, " Provincial Human Rights Laws”,
“Privacy Laws", " Provincial Case Law", other
national and regional laws and regulations in
Canada, The Company’s administrative policies.
Recruitment, promotion, and termination of
employees in the United States are carried out in
conformity with applicable U.S. national and
regional laws and regulations.
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The working hours for employees in China are
strictly in accordance with the “Labor Contract
Law of the People’s Republic of China", namely
eight hours per day, 40 hours per week and rest
days include statutory holidays, Saturdays and
Sundays. The working hours for employees in
Canada are strictly in accordance with the
" Provincial Employment Standards”, namely eight
hours per day, 40 hours per week and rest days
include statutory holidays, Saturdays and Sundays.

The Group provides its employees in China with
paid holidays in strict accordance with the ”Order
of the State Council of the People’s Republic of
China (No.514) in relation to the Regulation on
Paid Annual Leave for Employees”. For Hong
Kong employees, paid holidays are provided in
strict accordance with the provisions of the
“General Holidays Ordinance” and the
"Employment Ordinance"”. Canlin provides its
employees in Canada with paid holidays in strict
accordance with the Company's administrative
policies in addition to “Provincial Employment
Standards”

Based on the principle of equality and anti-
discrimination, the Group complies with the
"“"Administrative Policies for Employee
Recruitment of MIE Holdings Corporation” for
recruitment matters.

The Group has established a scientific and
reasonable performance appraisal system and an
effective incentive and restraint mechanism to
ensure the joint development of the Company and
its employees. During the year ended December
31, 2019, the Group continued to optimize its KPI
assessment system, improved the quantification
of its evaluation standards and enhanced the
feasibility of its evaluation mechanism.
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The Group had 1,058 employees, comprising 894 males
(84.50%) and 164 females (15.50%) as of December
31, 2019. Due to the nature of the Group’s business,
there are more male employees than female
employees.

Table 1: Staff Numbers by Work Function as of
December 31, 2019

BT hhF+=-_A=+—8"
RNEFEHEEET1,068%  HAE
B T894 A (58450% ' B T
164 A > 1515.50% > IR A& H
¥%HE - THERESRERE - 58
THEZRRETHE -

R BE-F-NF+ A
=+ —AREBHEN S EHET
R

Total

Core Support  Operation
Work Function Technical ~ Production Support Management  production services services Total
HfLER HiE 4ER 35 TREEE  GGERBE  BEA ait
Total =H) 60 52 124 639 183 822 1,058
Table 2: Staff Numbers by Education Background as of X2 HEZZE—hLFE+=A

December 31, 2019

=+- EMETFx%&a%J* s =0) =]
|EJ/

Technical
Secondary Junior
Masters and School & High School
Education Category above Bachelor College High School and below Total
HERE BENE ABRY  ABHEN HF -5 PPRAT &&t
Total B 36 131 387 331 1,058
Table 3: Staff Numbers by Age Group as of December K3 BE_T-NF+ A

31, 2019 =t— EME%FEW‘*EE‘JE\II%/R
55yrs and

Age Group 20-24yrs 25-34yrs 45-54yrs above Total

Fig 202245 25F 345 45545 55mRIULE |

Total At 16 274 322 112 1,058
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R4 BE_ZT-NALF+-A
=t—HRBEMESENETIER

Table 4: Staff Numbers by Geographical Region as of
December 31, 2019

Geographical Region PRC Hong Kong us Total

biuho HEA HEEE EYE] &&t

Total =i 1,049 7 2 1,058
(2) Development and Training (=) BRRE

Throughout the year ended December 31, 2019, the (ZE_T-NFTA=+—HIE

FEAEESMRIZESHE THK
h  RABIIEREEMBESR
B RESEZRRBE  MuER

Group organized tailored training programs based on the
Group's development strategy, employee job
requirements and employees’ personal development
needs to accelerate the growth of employees’ working REAAZERERGRE 2 FEIE
ability and professional quality. Through the various 2| WikstEABSEE TEI
tailored training programs, the Group comprehensively ERAKMZEEYIEE - 2EIEFH
developed the management ability and skill levels of all FHETHERE N FIREEKF -
employees across various positions.

HREBEAR  AEBEHELETEH
HHEMFERAEAOEI > RE N
HEMBAZENE - HEME

Aimed at improving the business standards, and
management ability and also overall ability among
management staff, the Group also offered targeted

professional knowledge training to strengthen their
common general skills. With the purpose of improving
the professional and technical ability of technical
personnel, the Group also placed emphasis on the
cultivation of their business knowledge and ability,
including the learning of basic knowledge, application
software tools, and new technology and cutting-edge
knowledge. As regards operational staff, the Group
aimed to strengthen their operating skills, standardize
the operation process and improve operation ability by
providing various trainings.

Table 5: Staff Training Statistics by Employees Category
as of December 31, 2019

TEE&EE/\E\mﬁﬁ%ﬂ@PﬂE@
7 ERIEREE MR - B
AE  AREBEEHEZEKMERN
XK NNEE  BEERERMN
HEETE - ERASGTIANES -
TR R RS IR e AR B R o H
BN EREEERIITABNERY
ETKREN  ESIERETERKY -
HRRERBAE  AEEETEY
TR ER eI - IREHIRE
IR RS ERRERE S -

R BHE_T— jl¢+ A
=+t RAXJIETEED

Senior Middle
Employees Category management management Others
BI85 SREBARE HREEAE HibAE
Percentage Bkt 12% 15% 73%

x6:BE_ZT-NF+ A
=+ RAXIAENSELADL

Table 6: Staff Training Statistics by Gender as of
December 31, 2019

Gender Male Female
%5l 2] z
Percentage AL 82% 18%
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(3)

Table 7: Staff Training Statistics by Gender and Hours K7 BE-_Z—-hAhE+=A

as of December 31, 2019 E‘l'—EI?%ﬁ% BAFHZIE
&

Gender Male Female

3] E:] z

Average Training Hours FEHEBR 40 18

As there are more male than female employees in the
Group, the number of male employees who have
received training is also higher as compared to the
female employees. Also, due to the business scope and
working environment of the Group, project staff who
work outdoors receive more training opportunities than
the staff based in the office. Given that there are more
male employees working on projects outdoors, the
difference between the number of average training
hours for male and female appear marked.

Labor Standards

The Group primarily implements and complies with the
relevant laws and regulations including the “Labor Law
of the People’s Republic of China” and the "Labor
Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China" for the
prevention of child labor and forced labor.

The Group strictly abides by relevant laws and
regulations and conducts a rigorous inspection of the
identity of employees during recruitment and
employment to ensure that they are above 18 years old,
in an effort to eliminate the employment of child labor
or forced labor with in the Group. During recruitment,
we enter into employment contracts with employees
on the principle of equality and voluntarism and keep
track of work performance to avoid any forced labor
situations.

During the year ended December 31, 2019, the Group
did not have any material violations of the relevant
standards or rules.
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ENVIRONMENT AND OCCUPATIONALHEALTH

(1)

Occupational Health and Safety

Since its establishment, the Group has placed great
emphasis on health, safety and environmental
protection management. It has adhered to the following
core management principles: scientific management,
health upmost, safety first, environmental protection
prioritization and sustainable development. The Group is
dedicated to the creation of a culture rigorous corporate
safety culture and the establishment of a sound
management system. Concurrently, the Group focuses
on increasing employees’ and contractors’ attention
towards safety and environmental protection during the
production process, raising awareness and skills of
employees and contractors on safety risks identification
and awareness, accelerating clean production
management and reducing the business’s
environmental impact.

During the year ended December 31, 2019, the Group's
Daan oilfield's health, safety and environmental
management system was endorsed by the auditors of
the Beijing CNPC Certification Center, and has also
passed its renewal audit.

The Group has consistently implemented and complied
with the “Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Work Safety”, “Law of the People’s Republic of China
on Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases”,
“Provisions on the Supervision and Administration of
Occupational Health at Work Sites”, “Regulations
Governing the Declaration of Projects with Occupational
Hazards"," Regulations Governing the Supervision and
Administration of Occupational Health Surveillance of

Employers”, "Interim Regulations Governing the
Supervision and Administration of “Three
Simultaneities” for Construction Projects”, and national

standards including “Technical Specifications for
Occupational Health Surveillance”,” Regulations on
Labor Protection in Workplaces Where Toxic
Substances Are Used"”, "Regulations on the Control
over Safety of Dangerous Chemicals” and other
relevant laws, regulations, rules, normative documents,
national standards, industry standards and technical
specifications in its provision of a safe working
environment.

RIREZ2RE

(_

) RIREZE

AEEERTARIESEREE -
Z2 BREEIfr BHEHSE
B REEL RRE— - BRE
% BEBEGZOERTH 2
NREIBRFNLEEZ 2T - &
TRARENEERR - A A
EEIERER TRARRELE
{2 BT 7 2 MR BIR A0
X RARTHARRYEZRAR
BN SR AL - 3 IR
EERAEER T REEER
BHERBROTE -

BE_Z-NFt+-_A=1+—8H"
AEBALZHAER 22 RE
EIER I%EK'thE’EP/EEmm D
ZERN—BERA - —RMEEBIL
R AmEERE /uﬁw?c%ﬁ‘lif
% e

REBTEEHARHELE2AETIER
BAMREETIHEBENEEES
H: —ERTWETF(PEARL

Mz EEE) - (REARKLM
BB ERAE) (TIESFTR 2
HEEBEEERE) (BEREE
HB BmpE) (A ABM B ZERE
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The Group strictly enforces the above laws, regulations,
rules, regulatory documents, standards and technical
specifications, strives to provide a safe work
environment for all employees and also protects
employees against occupational hazards. During the
year ended December 31, 2019, the Group did not
violate any relevant laws, regulations, rules, normative
documents, standards and technical specifications.
During the year ended December 31, 2019, the Group
did not have any fatalities from work-related matters.

Table 8: Safety Statistics of the Group

(1) Projects in China:

REBEBREINIT LAUER - AR -
RE - RBE  REREMR
& BhAEZEETRELZETE
RERREETHABERLEE -
BE_Z—NWF+-_A=+—81
FEAKESEEAREEREH
ER R RE RS
EEREMRENIBR - HEZT
—NF+ZA=+—HLEFE K
EEEETRITERELT -

=8 AEER MR

(1) FEEAR

Recordable Lost time

Total Recordable incident  Lost time incident
Scope work hours incidents rate incidents rate Deaths
GRS GRS RI BRI B3
& ATH ELL3 EHE ELLS Bf= A¥
Company staff NEIET 2,016,000 0 0 0 0 0
External contractors ANERFECEL R 196,219 0 0 0 0 0

(2) Project in Canada: (January 1 to September 30)

(2) MEAREBEEMATHZEIAR

30H)

Recordable Lost time

Total Recordable incident  Lost time incident
Scope workhours incidents rate incidents rate Deaths
BIERE S BIERE RI RI ¢4
&E BTk EHhY EfE B0y EHx A
Company staff NEET 640,000 4 1.56 2 0.63 0
External contractors OHNEEBH 650,000 4 165 1 0.31 0
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The occupational health and safety measures, related AREBMEMmNBERERLT D E
implementation and monitoring methods adopted by W BRI THE R FATES
the Group mainly include:

Establish an occupational health and safety
management administration team which is staffed
with full-time employees. The Group currently has
13 registered national safety engineers. Improve
the safety production responsibility system,
improve the occupational health management
archive and management system, strengthen the
basic management of occupational health and
safety measures, strictly implement management
policies, refine the management scope, and
effectively avoid health and safety risks. During
the year ended December 31, 2019, the Group
organized multiple special inspections to
continuously track and rectify any discovered
problems.

Establish occupational health monitoring archives
for employees of the Group, implement the
occupational health notification system, regularly
arrange occupational health examinations for staff
and make corresponding work adjustments for
employees that do not suit their particular
position.

Provide employees with requisite occupational
hazards precaution facilities and labor protection
supplies based on the findings of occupational
health assessment reports. Authorize a third party
occupational disease prevention and control
institution to regularly monitor and assess
potential occupational health hazards of the Group,
and evaluate the Group’s occupational hazards
protection measures and the efficacy of protection
provided.

Provide work injury insurance, basic medical
insurance, serious illness insurance for employees
of the Group to fully protect their interests.

ByfReBERREALEE
MBI REERERE
AE BRIASEEBFREHR
Tz e TIRAIBA - &
TEEERTH TEME
REEEERETEHE -
IR BERREET2EE
REBEETE - BREHT
ZHEEEHE  @EERA
A BRHEBREEZERE
R HE_ZT—NF+_A
z+—a¢¢§$%s%m
A FEIERE - HEB M
B EEITIRM R -

VEBBETITBEERER
BER ZERERRSOG
B THIERE TR
fRERER HNEAMAN
B THEITRM AR -

IRIE B 2 62 R 5 AT AT (B iR
& BRETRERITBE
TRIEE0 R e L BB &
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AR KE TR EERN
BERELCERAZHETE
Al HEEBRESEHER
HE B RE R R T TRIE o
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(2)

5. Since the Group is engaged in oil exploration and
oil has certain dangerous and hazardous
characteristics, such as combustion, explosion
and secondary environmental pollution, the Group
has paid special attention to emergency
management and engaged experts to assess the
sources of hazards and pollution of the Company;
it has also developed contingency plans for major
sources of hazards and key sources of pollution,
and also regularly conducts emergency drills.

During the year ended December 31, 2019, the Group
organized a number of practice emergency drills, to
practice the implementation of plans such as
“Emergency Plan for Fire and Explosion Accidents”,

5. RAAXAKERALMRAKITE
AR EA —TEMRE - IB’IE
MRERB SRS RBRRE
M KREHESEETER
MESR BEEREAARL
B IR )5 R AE T AL - o
BABRIER  E25RRHR
HESTEE THEASET
HESTARETTIRR

BE_ZT-NAF+-A=t+—HLt
FE- Zﬁﬁliﬁiﬁi& RN KR NE
EHERSIAR)ER (RERRE
HRESIEZR)ER - P - o4

"Emergency Plan for Sudden Environmental Incidents”, é.\ié )R iﬁ_r ZIEFEEERR L
“Comprehensive Plan for Flood and Drought B BIBERER  TEE2TER
Prevention”. Results of the practice emergency drills E’jT}f B - ﬂ?ﬁéﬁﬁ% MIRED
were evaluated for feasibility and any plans that were 1TEETEHE »
not applicable to the actual scenarios were revised.
Emissions (Z) e
The emissions discharged during the development and NEEIERB A EBIEFHEREE
production process of the Group’'s projects mainly EYITEL  INIEREINRERE
include: furnace heating exhaust gas and hazardous MM ARFERBEBEPELN A
wastes (such as oil sludge, oil residuals and drilling e M BHEERS) BB
muds generated during oil exploration). Such hazardous FEYDYT IR IR BB PR FE MO R TS P IR
wastes are disposed of by service providers certified by REIE -
environmental protection authorities.
Table 9: Waste Emission Data of Each Project of the :9: AEEKIBER BEMHEREIE
Group
(1) Projects in China (1) HEIEE
Natural ~ Hazardous
Gas Waste Water Power
Consumption Transferred Consumption Drilling Mud Consumption
(Wiv3) (tonnes) (Wive) (IV3) (WKW.h)
ERRAAR REREBHE FAKE ERE HEE
(BYAK) (@) (ByprXK) (XHK)  (BTRE)
Daan K& 1,5679.09 0.00 40.00 6,214 9,315.68
Total B 1,679.09 0.00 40.00 6,214 9,315.68
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
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(2) MEKREEMAITHZEIA

308)
Hazardous

Natural Gas Waste Water Power
Consumption Transferred Consumption Drilling Mud Consumption
(Wive) (VB) (WiV3) (V) (WKW.h)
ERAARR REEBHE AkE RRE HEE
(BB X) (7))  (BurpX) (XHK) (BTRE)
Canlin LB 22,076.06 618.16 40.17 0 8,972.90
Total At 22,076.06 618.16 40.17 0 8,972.90

Environmental protection measures and related
implementation and monitoring methods adopted by
the Group at present mainly include:

Underground environmental protection measures, cyclic
utilization of drilling muds and other measures can
reduce the amount of hazardous waste produced. Any
hazardous waste generated will be disposed of and
recycled by qualified units under the supervision of the
local government environmental protection department.

Production wastewater passes through the sewage
treatment plant for filtering and purification. Part of the
purified water will be heated and enters into the
pipeline for production while the rest will be injected
underground to supplement the formation pressure, so
as to achieve zero emission targets for waste water.

The Company chooses energy efficient furnaces that
can use clean energy as the combustion material and
the fuel used is natural gas, which mainly releases
carbon dioxide and water vapor after combustion.

The Group entrusts third party organizations to regularly
monitor the surface water, ground water, sewage,
noise, soil within the operation boundary and monitor
the environmental changes brought about by the
production and development processes to the
surrounding area.

BRI AN EARNANRERER
It - ERAITEERDEAE RS ¢
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The total amount of hazardous wastes of our projects in
China generated during the year ended December 31,
2019 was 423.06 tons, approximately 16.72 tons less
than that of 2018. The drilling mud wastes of projects in
China produced in 2019 were 6,214M?3; in 2019 about
15.7909 million M2 of natural gas was used by Chinese
projects of MIE group; and greenhouse gas emissions
were about 3,597.16 tons.

The total amount of hazardous wastes of our project in
Canada generated in 2019 was about 618.16 m?,
approximately 645.46 m? less than that in 2018. The
drilling mud wastes produced in 2019 were zero cubic
meters; the amount of sewage efflux is unknown; about
220 million cubic meters of natural gas was used; and
greenhouse gas emissions were about 1,007,556.12
tonnes (CO2e).

In terms of emissions, projects in China mainly
implemented and complied with the “Environmental
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China"”, the
“Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by
Solid Waste", the “Law of the People’s Republic of
China on the Prevention and Control of Water
Pollution”, the “Law of the People’s Republic of China
on the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric
Pollution”, the “Law of the People’s Republic of China
on Promotion of Cleaner Production”, the "Law of the
People’s Republic of China on Environmental Impact
Assessment”, the “Catalog of State Hazardous
Wastes", the" People’s Republic of China’s Emergency
Response Law", the "Interim Regulations Governing
the Sudden Environmental Emergency Contingencies”,
“China’s Oil and Gas Production Enterprises
Greenhouse Gas Emissions Accounting Methods and
Reporting Guidelines (Trial)"; Canadian Projects mainly
implemented and complied with the “Alberta
Environment Protection and Enhancement Act”, “AB
Specified Gas Emitters Regulation”, "AB Specified Gas
Reporting Regulations”, "Alberta Carbon
Competitiveness Incentive Regulation”, "BC
Greenhouse Gas Industrial Reporting and Control Act”,
"BC Greenhouse Emission Gas Reporting Regulation”,
"Canadian Environmental Protection Act", " National
Pollutant Release Inventory” and "ECCC Greenhouse
Gas Reporting Program” .
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Use of resources

The Group has strictly adhered to the “Energy Law of
the People’s Republic of China", the " Water Law of the
People’s Republic of China”, the " Electricity Law of the
People’s Republic of China”, the "Law on Energy
Conservation of People’s Republic of China"; whereas
our Canadian project strictly implemented and complied
with “Alberta Oil and Gas Conservation Act”;
" Sakatchewan Qil and Gas Conservation Act”; " British
Columbia Oil and Gas Activities Act” and " Canada
Water Act"”.

Resource conservation is a fundamental requirement
for the Group to implement scientific management,
improve the economic efficiency of the Group and
enhance the Group’s core competitiveness. To this end,
the Group has done a lot of work in 2019 surrounding
business management, technological innovations and
energy saving goals and has achieved satisfying results.
Details are as follows:

During the year ended December 31, 2019, annual
water consumption by our projects in the PRC was
approximately 0.4 million tons; electricity consumption
was approximately 93.1568 million kWh, whereas our
projects in the PRC consumed 9.0427 million kWh
increase as compared to the year ended December 31,
2018.

The consumption of gasoline by our projects in the PRC
was 174.3 tons in 2019; the consumption of diesel was
156.0 tons, 17.92 tons increase that of 2018.

Annual water consumption of Canlin project in Canada
in 2019 was about 401,748.1 m?, consumption of
gasoline was 678,885.75 liters in 2019; the
consumption of diesel was nil tons.
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Major measures and relevant implementation methods
adopted by the Group in the use and conservation of
resources include:

1. Establish a three-tier energy management
network comprising a supervising manager,
relevant department heads and entry-level
personnel, formulate scientific and strict
management of quantitative energy consumption,
and have a good grasp on the basic assessment
work.

2. Achieve high efficiency using technology and
reduce energy consumption through technological
advances.

(1)  Usage of automatic control frequency
systems, automatically analyze motor
operation parameters, real-time adjustment
of operation parameters, and achieve the
aim of energy saving.

(2)  Strengthen equipment management, e.g.
adoption of high-performance motors;
elimination of high-energy transformers;
timely adjustment of balance rates and other
measures to reduce power consumption.

(3)  As for production wells with poor liquid
supply capacity, optimize the production
parameters, carry out intermittent
production, suspend wells, shut down wells
and implement other measures to reduce
inefficient production rate.
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Table 10: Energy Saving Statistics of Each Project £10: AEEZIEEB #irEH
of the Group Earst
Statistics on Energy Conserving Compared to the MEeEgERLEEBEZ S — N
Year Ended December 31, 2019 F+_A=1+—BIFE
Energy Energy
Conservation Conservation
Natural Gas  on Electricity on Qil
(Wimvi2) (WkW.h) (tonnes)
RAR, s 6
(BT K) (BTEH) (Mg )
Daan A& (121.92) 904.2762 17.92
(121.92) 904.2762 17.92
Note: Canlin does not track or report any data related to energy MiaE - e KELUEEIE B NS AL 2L
conservation ¥ o
The Group strictly observes relevant laws, 7 & B B A 1T - i AR
regulations, rules and regulatory documents of the REER EZH HE#
above mentioned countries and it did not and wHEXH —ZE-NFE
violate any abovementioned laws, regulations, SERBEREER FUE
rules regulatory documents in 2019. BFER - HE REHEX
HEIEMR
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Environment and natural resources

The Group is an enterprise engaged in the oil
exploration business which consumes mineral
resources, land and other natural resources during the
process of oil production. The Group abides strictly by
the "Mineral Resources Law of the People’s Republic
of China"”, the “Land Administration Law of the
People’s Republic of China”, the “Environmental
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China", the
" Canadian Environmental Protection Act, 1999 (CEPA)",
the"” National Energy Board Act” and other related laws,
regulations and requirements. The Group aims to
reduce its impact on the environment and natural
resources via the following: make good use of natural
resources, improve comprehensive recycling ability of
natural resources, reduce the consumption of natural
resources and all kinds of waste emissions.

The Group aims to establish the concepts of conserving
resources, reducing waste emissions, protecting the
ecological environment, increasing investment in new
technology, formulating policies on improving the level
of enterprise technology for comprehensive utilization
of resources, technology innovation, energy
conservation and emissions reduction, constantly
promoting enterprise to improve resource utilization
efficiency, environmental protection compliance in
accordance with the laws and regulations, continual
improving of the regional environment as well as
improving sustainable health development.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
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OPERATIONAL PRACTICES

(1)

Supply chain management

The Group continuously optimized its supply chain
management and established a comprehensive
management mechanism for supplier access, selection,
review and withdrawal. As of December 31, 2019, the
Group has established relationships with 171 suppliers
comprising 155 Chinese suppliers and 16 overseas
suppliers. The Group adopts a prudent attitude and
strict standards on supplier selection. Not only do we
value product quality, service level, business ethics,
corporate reputation, but we also place importance on
their social responsibility performance. At present, the
Group’s supply chain management is carried out in
accordance with the “Contract Law of the People's
Republic of China” and other laws of the countries
where resources are located. The Group has updated
and improved its “Policies Purchase of MIE Holdings
Corporation” and Business management system of
controlled corporation which provides a unified basis
and procedures for the selection and management of
suppliers and contractors. The Group has developed
four supply chain management modules centered on
tender management, contract management, material
management and supplier management. During the
process, suppliers and contractors are provided with an
opportunity for participation based on openness,
fairness and transparency. The Group puts forward the
requirements of honesty, trustworthiness, legal
operation, due attention to health, safety and
environmental protection for our suppliers and
contractors during pre qualification, bidding, provision of
products and services, and performance evaluation. At
the same time, the Group also includes anti-bribery and
anti corruption clauses into contract terms, creating a
clean environment for supply chain management.

The Group implements a unified order system and
makes purchases in accordance with the “Purchase
Plan Order” issued by the material services department.
The relevant order would cover the budget amount,
material model, service contents and specific time
requirements, which subsequently makes the
completion of remaining steps in the supply chain more
smooth and efficient.
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(2)

The Group selects vendors through tendering or price
negotiations. During the procurement process, priority
will be given to those suppliers that offer a more
favorable price for a product of the same quality and
also regular suppliers that have passed the Group's
yearly examination.

Input from multiple departments is tapped during the
acceptance inspection and quality control process to
more effectively control the quality of goods and
services. To confirm the quality of purchased goods,
joint acceptance inspection is conducted by the
procurement department and also the relevant
department that will use the goods. This is
supplemented by quality feedbacks during use. For
service projects, the safety, environmental protection,
production, supervision and other relevant departments
will submit their feedback onsite. A timely feedback
system is implemented to receive information feedback
during the process. Feedback and processing results
are filed for review and integrated into yearly business
evaluations.

To guarantee the overall quality of its suppliers, the
Group organizes an annual assessment of suppliers,
based on their performance of contracts, standards and
quality system certification, health, safety,
environmental protection and other qualifications. The
Group will issue warnings to or remove suppliers who
have failed the assessment from its internal list. The
Group implements a dynamic management system of
registered suppliers and any supplier who demonstrates
serious non-compliance during the business
collaboration or fails the assessment will be dismissed.

Product responsibility
No information is disclosed in this report as the

indicators are not applicable to the industry to which the
Group belongs.
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(3)

Anti-corruption

In accordance with the “Law of the PRC against Unfair
Competition” and " The Basic Norms of Internal
Control”, the Group has formulated and implemented
policies such as the “Internal Audit System of MIE
Holdings Corporation”, the "Audit System for
Management Departures of MIE Holdings Corporation”,
and “Special Audit (Interim) Policies of MIE Holdings
Corporation” and such policies have been in place since
2015 and reviewed in 2019 in order to standardize the
operation and management of the Group, strengthen
internal control and audit supervision, ensure the safety
and integrity of the Group's property and materials, and
ensure the smooth achievement of the Group's
objectives, provide reasonable guarantees for use of
objective, truthful and effective management
information by all levels of management, ensure that
the business activities of various departments and units
are carried out in accordance with the operating
principles and policies of the Group and reduce
operational risks and improve performance.

Whistle blowing, as one of the sources of information in
the audit plan, is set out as part of the “Internal Audit
System of MIE Holdings Corporation”. Whistleblowing
methods includes correspondences, visits, telephone
calls and internet submissions and the abovementioned
policy specifies the reporting hotline and email, and is
distributed as a management policy among all
employees for study and comprehension. During the
year ended December 31, 2019, the Group did not
receive any reports of crimes such as duty-related
crimes, bribery, extortion, blackmail, fraud and money
laundering.
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Iv.

COMMUNITY PARTICIPATION

The Group takes an interest in the spiritual and cultural life of
its employees and has organized a series of cultural and
recreational activities from time to time including hiking,
badminton, autumn outings and sports games which have
been well received by employees. The five-day Chinese New
Year condolence activities were carried out and efforts were
made to improve the working environment for staff through
the provision of staff dormitories, a canteen, and an activity
room and tea parties were held together with local villagers in
villages where the Group has operations.

The Group has solved the employment of 398 local villagers
in villages where the Group has operations.

The Group has organized a series of cultural and recreational
activities including corporate donations and volunteering at
local food banks, homeless shelters and other local charities.
The Group also has an active employee-led Social Committee
that organizes events including Christmas Parties, Calgary
Stampede events and other seasonal activities.

100 MIEHOLDINGS CORPORATION / ANNUAL REPORT 2019

CHEZHE

AEBEBOEIMNBEXUEETE T
H4A4 T — RYI S bR EEE ) - an e
m PERLE N BRESH G
CBETEIMNEZEE - UHESR
%ﬂ%m%%%ﬁ%@ %ﬁa%%z
TEIRE - BETREETIFS -
BE - %I%@; RIZEEUN E%ENH
ERBIIRGS

REEBRAIEIHBLEIB A ©

REEENEREIT— BRI XULIREE
B BECEBRNEZHARYIR
77 EROEFEEBCE BTN E A &
HEWEMEL ~5EBE —EREEHN
ETATEMHELZER  FIBEEE
Jer A FRMEATEaMEME
ERMEES) o



Management Discussion and Analysis

B IR E & wm DT

BUSINESS REVIEW
Overview

Crude oil prices were under downward pressure throughout 2019.
In the first quarter of 2019, international oil prices rebounded from
the lows in late 2018. Brent crude prices reached an annual daily
low of US$55 per barrel in early January and a daily high of
US$75.60 per barrel on April 25. Starting from the second quarter,
oil prices have been falling due to intensifying international trade
disputes, poor global economic data, geopolitical tensions and
weak oil demand. The trend extended to the end of 2019.
Meanwhile, Canadian natural gas market remained weak in 2019.
In response to the complicated economic environment of bearish
global crude oil prices and suppressed Canadian natural gas prices,
the Group reduced its spending in Daan on new drillings and
focused on enhancing production and recovery on old wells. The
Group also reduced capital expenditure on natural gas assets in
Canada, implemented economic production cuts to reduce
operational risk and improve financial performance. In consideration
of the development strategy and working capital needs of the
Group, the Group disposed of Canlin and certain non-core assets in
2019. The disposals represented continued execution of our
strategy to simplify our portfolio and accelerate deleveraging.

During 2019, the oil and gas operated production and net
production of the Group decreased significantly compared with that
of 2018. The Group's oil and gas production decreased by 28.9%
to about 14.86 MMBOE compared with 2018. Net oil and gas
production decreased by 34.1% to about 12.16 MMBOE compared
with 2018. During 2019, crude oil sales decreased by 11.9%
compared to 2018 to approximately 2.75 million barrels, while
natural gas sales decreased to 54,793 MMscf. The Group's oil and
gas reserves, production capacity and sales decreased due to the
disposal of Canlin and its oil and gas assets in September 2019.
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In 2019, the average realized crude oil price decreased by 10.9% to
US$52.66 per barrel as compared with that of 2018, and the
average realized natural gas price dropped to US$1.06 per Mscf. In
2019, the revenue from China decreased by 4.3% to RMB756.1
million as compared with 2018. In 2019, loss for the year from
segments other than North America increased by 75.5% to
RMB1,461.1 million as compared with RMB832.3 million in 2018
and the respective losses per share is RMB0.46 in 2019. Profit for
the year from North America segment is RMB332.2 million and the
respective earnings per share is RMB0.11 in 2019.

In 2019, the EBITDA of the Group from segments other than North
America decreased by RMB622.7 million to negative RMB486.6
million from RMB136.1 million in 2018 and the respective adjusted
EBITDA decreased by RMB85.7 million to RMB323.4 million.

As at December 31, 2019, the Group operated a total of 2,406
wells, all located in China. The total headcount of the Group
reduced from 1,385 as of December 31, 2018 to 1,058 as of
December 31, 2019 under combined effect of asset disposal and
staff adjustment.
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The following table provides a recap of the Group's key operational ~REL T AER - ZE—NFL2FERNEHES
metrics for 2019: BEIREMERER
2019 2018 % Change 2019 Guidance
“E2-NF —ZE-N\E Shphl —E-nEHEI
Average Daily Gross Production (BOE/day) AYhREE:R (BEE/X) 50,158 57,770 -13.2%
Average Daily Net Production (BOE/day) B RRFES (BEE/K) 42,757 50,720 -157%  44,833-48,983
Average Daily Net Oil Production (barrels/day) ~ P¥E@FEE (1K) 8,306 8,777 5.4%
Average Daily Net NGL Production (barrels/day) B XAREITRF E /%) 1,001 1,399 -28.4%
Average Daily Net Gas Production (Mscf/day) ~ BBAZRFES (TUHER/X) 200,700 243,260 -17.5%
Notes: K -
(1) For reference purpose only, barrels of oil equivalent (“BOE") is calculated using (1) hEREEER6TIEELFRRRAR=1RH
the conversion factor of six Mscf of natural gas being equivalent to one barrel HRE L EITRTE - EH2EREN
of ol
(2) Gross Production means total production from all assets of the Group (2) BESE=-AEETZHETRNLES
3) Net Production means entitled production from all assets of the Group B8) FEE=AEECSHEETNFKRRES
(4) For North America segment, only the result for the 9-month period ended (4) LtESHERBEHE_Z—NFNALA=THBA

September 30, 2019 was included because the disposal of 100% equity
interest in Maple Energy Investments Limited (“Maple Energy”) and its
subsidiary Canlin operating in Canada was completed on September 30, 2019.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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The following table sets out the summary of the expenditures
incurred in our exploration, development and production activities

TRBATAEE T -NFEHELENHR -
P3N AEES R ERRUE

for 2019:
Production/
Exploration Development operating
(millions of RMB) expenditures expenditures expenditures
ARBEER BR% R £ERAE
China Onshore Projects (Daan, Moliging) HEIREIEE (K& BREF) - 1M1 157
Canada (Canlin) nex - 97 590
Total At - 208 747

China Operations (Daan, Moliging and South China
Sea)

Under the current environment, the Group is focused on
capital discipline. Through new well drilling, well fracturing
and water injection, our projects in northeastern China
maintained a consistent production level with slight increase
from 2018. During 2019, the total gross operated production
for Daan and Moliging increased by 7.7% from 4.31 million
barrels in 2018 to 4.64 million barrels in 2019. Total net
production allocated to the Group increased by 4.9% from
1.85 million barrels in 2018 to 1.94 million barrels in 2019.
During 2019, the gross operated production per day increased
by 3.9% to 12,720 barrels/day (“BOPD") as compared to
2018, and net production per day allocated to the Group
increased by 1.7% to 5,319 BOPD. The average realized oil
price of Daan and Moliging decreased by 13.4% from
US$64.56/barrel in 2018 to US$55.92/barrel in 2019. Under
falling oil prices, a reduced drilling program of 14 vertical
wells was carried out in Daan in 2019. The Group continued
to control cost and reduce lifting cost for Daan by US$1.65/
barrel, or 13.3%, from US$12.37/barrel for 2018 to US$10.72/
barrel for 2019. EBITDA per barrel for Daan and Moliging
decreased by US$8.30, or 18.1%, from US$45.95/barrel for
2018 to US$37.65/barrel for 2019. The decrease in EBITDA
per barrel was primarily due to the decrease in average
realized oil price.
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On June 4, 2020, the Group successfully extended the term
of the Daan PSC from December 31, 2024 to February 29,
2028 by extending the production period under the PSC.
Pursuant to the extended PSC, the Group continues to
operate the Daan oil field pursuant to the terms of the PSC
and a supplemental overall development plan. The extension
brings the Group additional business certainty and allows it to
invest in Daan oilfield for future production and generate
steady operating cash flow.

At the end of 2019, the Group also held a 34% interest in the
South China Sea Project. The environmental impact report of
the 10-4 oilfield was approved by the Ministry of Ecology and
Environment of the PRC in October 2019, which means the
project is ready for development.

North America Operations (Canlin)

On September 30, 2019, the Group completed the sale of
Canlin and its oil and gas assets in Canada. The disposal
represented continued execution of our strategy to simplify
our portfolio and accelerate deleveraging.

Kazakhstan Operations (Emir-Oil)

We hold an indirect 40% interest in Emir-Oil in Kazakhstan. In
2019, Emir-Qil obtained production contracts for the North
Kariman and Yessen fields, for respective periods of 16 and
25 years starting from January 1, 2020. Currently, Emir-Qil
holds one exploration contract and six production contracts
covering Aksaz, Dolinnoe, Emir, Kariman, North Kariman and
Yessen oilfields. As at the end of 2019, Emir-Oil had a total of
20 producing wells. The daily production of crude oil in 2019
decreased by 17.9% from 2,840 BOPD in 2018 to 2,332
BOPD mainly due to natural decline and uneconomic well
shut-ins.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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Reserves

The Group's net reserves evaluation for 2019 year-end shows a
significant decrease over that of 2018, primarily driven by the
divestment of Canlin which holds the Group’s Canadian assets.
Summaries of the Group's 2019 year-end reserves are as follows:

1. Overall, the Group's total net Proved (“1P") oil, gas and
natural gas liquid (“NGL") reserves decreased by 92% to
18.07 MMBOE (where 1 BOE = 6,000 cubic feet gas), total
net Proved + Probable (“2P") oil, gas and NGL reserves
decreased by 87% to 45.3 MMBOE, and total net Proved +
Probable + Possible (“3P") oil, gas and NGL reserves
decreased by 81% to 69.1 MMBOE' due to the divestment of
Canlin.

2. The Group’s net 1P oil reserves decreased by 36% to 16.07
million barrels, while net 2P oil reserves decreased by 29% to
37.84 million barrels and net 3P oil reserves decreased by
24% to 56.65 million barrels respectively, reflecting the
combined impact of the production related decrease of Daan
oilfield and Emir-Qil, the divestment of Canlin and technical
revision on Emir-Oil’s reserves at 2019 year-end.

3. Based on 2019 year-end reserves estimates reviewed by
independent consultants, the Group’s 2P net present value,
before tax and discounted at 10% (“"NPV10") is
approximately US$669 million, which represents a 61%
decrease from the reported 2018 year-end 2P NPV10 value of
US$1.7 billion.
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Note 1:

As per industry practice, exploration and production companies in Canada do not
prepare or disclose possible reserves and Canlin have followed the same approach.
Accordingly, the Group’s total 3P reserves only include the 2P reserves of Canlin.

Note 2:

As there has been no exploration or development activity for the South China Sea
project in 2019, the reserves remain unchanged from 2018.

Wit -
BAEEM A FBH A H R BB AL RB 0GR - B
Bib IR A0 0% » LA SR A 3P G4 8 16 0 FE BB )
PR -

Witz -

HREEHEE T -NFAREERHRMEETY - HfE
BE T N\FURRARBEEEL -

The following table summarizes the prices used to determine M RAG T DRIARBEE T \FRE-ZF

reserves at the year-end of 2018 and 2019 respectively: —NERRBERMANER

Segment Basin 2019 2018

Bl at “E-hER “EB-N\ER

China — Songliao Escalated price profile based on Escalated price profile based on

Gobi Energy price projections published by price projections published by

Sproule for WTI Crude. An average Sproule for WTI Crude. An average
differential for January to differential for January to December
December of 2019 between WTI of 2018 between WTI Cushing Spot
Cushing Spot and Daging of and Daging of -US$1.00 per barrel
US$0.40 per barrel was used. The was used. The differential is
differential is assumed to remain assumed to remain constant in the
constant in the future. future.

HE — KB RE HR SprouleﬁﬁFEﬁWTlJﬁiﬁfET% 1288 Sproule A Y WTI R E & TE
BE - RAZE—NF—ZET=A A RAZE-N\F—E+=ZAWTI
WTIFEXZ%-?EHDKFJ?EWM? EMXEHMAERAERFHE
19E040E T/ - ZERIBEL -1.00E7,/ 18 - ZERIBRTEIEARR
RRREFEE REFTE

China — Pearl River Escalated price profile based on Escalated price profile based on

Petrobroad Copower Estuary price projections published by price projections published by

Sproule for Brent oil. The Sproule for Brent oil. The differential
differential between Brent oil and between Brent oil and Area 28/03
Area 28/03 oil sales price is oil sales price is -US$6.2 per barrel
-US$6.2 per barrel in the year of in the year of 2019 with 2%
2019 with 2% increase annually. increase annually.

hE — EBERM %10 1% & Sproule A 5 #) Brent 7 i (B 1% B& Sproule 7 ff 8 Brent [ ) {E &

IRIER o R ZZ — LE Brent /R
S A128/03 % 13 R M = B 6.2
/BT BZER S NFRE
FIE2% °
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Segment Basin 2019 2018
B Aty —E-NEXR ZE-\EX
Kazakhstan — Mangistau Export oil at escalated price profile Export oil at escalated price profile
Emir-Oil based on price projections based on price projections published
published by GCA for Brent Crude by GCA for Brent Crude which has
which has been estimated to be been estimated to be US$41.58/
US$54.13/Stock Tank Barrel in Stock Tank Barrel in 2019. Domestic
2020. Domestic oil price is oil price is estimated to be
estimated to be US$20.18/Stock US$23.89/Stock Tank Barrel in
Tank Barrel in 2020. Domestic gas 2019. Domestic gas price US$0.59/
price US$0.54/Mscf has been Mscf has been utilized for solution
utilized for solution gas sales and gas sales and assumed to be
assumed to be constant constant throughout the report.
throughout the report.
b5 5% 72 578 — Emir-Oil Mangistau SN R R B IR IR GCAR B B i fe SNE R R B ISR GCA R M fa 45
FRBZSEROERES =% REZFEERNEERESR —F
Z T F kB R54I3E —NEINEBE AL E8ET, -
T/ —E_EFENHHBER ZTE-NAFAEMHER2389E
20.18% 7T,/ - W R(E120.54 /M NEHREIR059%E T,/ T
En/FURRR - ERERRE NHER - EREFRIFERE
B -
Canada — Canlin Western Escalated price profile based on
Canadian price projections published by
Sproule. Canadian Light Sweet
Crude 40° API oil price is estimated
to be C$75.27/barrel in 2019.
Alberta AECO-C Spot gas price is
estimated to be C$1.95/MMbtu in
2019.
MmEX — EE MRS ESproule A E S HEREE TR

Note:

WTI — West Texas Intermediate

GCA — Gaffney, Cline & Associates
APl — American Petroleum Institute
MMbtu — Million British Thermal Units

Bz < )
(ii)

Al e ZF—LF NS K40°APIEE
FmER AB7527MT,/ B —F
— L% Alberta AECO-C SpotH) &8
B1.95 00T,/ BB RAEBN -

WTI — EBI {852 i B & R
GCA - Gaffney, Cline & Associates A 7]

(i) APl — EBEHiGE
(iv) MMbtu— BEBHEEE R
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2020 Guidance

The following table summarizes our 2020 guidance. The Group will
closely monitor commodity price and other factors and may adjust
our capital program in a timely manner. It is important to keep our
capital program flexible to ensure the stability and profitability of

our business in the current volatile environment.

—E-2FHE3

UATRAKE -—FT-ZFEMES - R
DIREREREMEE - WA S ER R
TV TAERT &) - RAIBEEZAEBHIRE
B REFR AN TR EINEEEHRRER
SEL2FRELRBIIFEEE -

Group Net
Capex
Numbers of Investment
Interest (%) Wells (net) (millions of US$)  Net production
SEEX
HMXREFHE
5 (%) EHYE(O) (BBEZn) FEER
China Onshore Projects Daan foreign 32 20 5,200-5,900 BOPD
(Daan, Moliging) contractor (Note)  5,200-5,9001%,/ %
— Crude oil 100% (K1)
R EIEE RZINE
(K& 58%F) ARE
— R 100%
Moliging foreign 2 3 130-150 BOPD
contractor 130-15018,/&
10%
25N
aR%E
10%
Group Total 34 23 5,330-6,050 BOPD
SEE 5,330-6,0501% /&
Note: The capital expenditures of China Onshore Projects contemplate drilling ~ ffzt - REEFEEEAEIHBETHRE(EEA

(mainly network fracturing), transforming oil wells to water injection wells,

hole filling fracturing , ground engineering and equipment procurement.
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Restructuring of the Company

On May 11, 2020, the Company did not make the scheduled
interest payment in relation to the Senior Notes (the “Default”).
The Default has also triggered cross defaults under loan facilities
entered into between members of the Group and its other lenders.
The Company has assessed that the potential demands for
repayment of loans by the relevant lenders including those yet to
fall due, and the aggregate unfulfilled repayment obligations and
possible breaches of the other loan facilities and notes, amount to
approximately over US$316.6 million in principal amount plus
accrued interest on such principal amount.

The Company has been proactively discussing with various
creditors and the Company’s advisors in relation to the debt
restructuring (“"Debt Restructuring”), including but not limited to
deferral of interest payment, reduction of interest rate and
extension of maturity, which is expected to substantially improve
the Group's financial position and address the Company’s liquidity
concerns. As at December 4, 2020 (being the latest practicable
date for ascertaining information prior to the issue of this annual
report), no agreement in relation to the above arrangements has
been entered into or agreed between the Company and its
creditors.

NEEH

R-ZBE-ZFRA+—H  ARFIREZTE
LEEEFBMFESEL ([BH]) - BHIE
BASEKE ARHEEMER AR LN E KR
BB THRXELY - AARIEFEEBEERA
AL ESKEEER(BREMARBHNER) - U
MABITERETRERLREREMERR
BREEOBBAEEIT3.166E T LA
SHRERTFIS -

ARAHARTER B ERA R AR BBEERER
EAR(EBEA D ETHR  BRETRNE
AR BEMELERIEA - BHEAK
HEAREE NI AR I BORAR DR ERE) 1
FfE - R-Z_TF+_— AWA (FHTIEA
REAIITH) - ARRREEEAZBER R
bt 2 PRz AR ] 1 o
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FINANCIAL RESULTS

As at December 31, 2018, the assets and liabilities relating to
Maple Energy group were presented as held for sale. The disposal
was completed on September 30, 2019. Financial results from
Maple Energy group were recorded as a loss included in the total
profit from discontinued operations.

Continuing operations
Revenue

The Group's revenue generated from sales of oil and gas products,
commodities and provision of services.

The Group's revenue generated from sales of oil and gas was
contributed entirely by our China oil fields. Sales in 2019 decreased
by RMB45.3 million, or 5.8%, from RMB786.8 million in 2018 to
RMB741.5 million, primarily due to lower oil prices partially offset
by higher volumes. The average realized oil price was US$55.92
per barrel in 2019, as compared to US$64.56 per barrel in 2018.
The Group's sales volume increased by 0.1 million barrels or 5.5%,
from 1.83 million barrels in 2018 to 1.93 million barrels in 2019.

The Group’s revenue from commodities sales and rendering of
services was RMB11.4million and RMB3.2 million for 2019,
respectively.

Depreciation, depletion and amortization

The Group’s depreciation, depletion and amortization increased by
RMB19.5 million, or 5.9 %, from RMB329.3 million in 2018 to
RMB348.8 million in 2019. The increase in depreciation, depletion
and amortization was mainly due to the increase in sales and
production volumes in 2019.

Taxes other than income taxes
The Group's taxes other than income taxes decreased by RMB11.0

million, or 58.2%, from RMB18.9 million for 2018 to RMB7.9
million for 2019.
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PRC

With effect from January 1, 2015, the threshold price for special oil
income levy was revised from US$55 per barrel to US$65 per
barrel. During 2019, the realized oil price never reached US$65 per
barrel, and hence special oil income levy was not applicable.

Corporate and other segments
Withholding Tax and others

Withholding tax represents accrual of withholding tax on interest
charged on intercompany loans.

Employee compensation costs

The Group’s employee compensation costs decreased by RMB12.3
million, or 7.9%, from RMB155.7 million for 2018 to RMB143.4
million for 2019. The decrease in employee compensation costs
was primarily due to the decrease of share-based payment to
employees recorded in 2019.

Purchases, services and other expenses

Our purchases, services and other expenses decreased by RMB5.0
million, or 3.6%, from RMB138.0 million for 2018 to RMB133.0
million for 2019. The decrease was primarily due to the stringent
cost control measures and optimization measures on the wells
implemented by the Group.

Distribution costs

The Group's distribution expenses increased by RMBO0.8 million, or
5.1%, from RMB15.8 million in 2018 to RMB16.6 million in 2019.
The increase in distribution expenses was primarily due to the
increase in sales volume.

General and administrative expense

The Group’s general and administrative expenses increased by
RMB37.6 million, or 31.2%, from RMB120.6 million in 2018 to
RMB158.2 million in 2019. The increase in administrative expenses
was primarily due to the increase of fees and expenses related to
debt restructuring or refinancing.

PE

FREE A R L B0 B B 2R 2 A R AME BT A R B
WS BRFRENET, BiReEle5x
T BE-RE—A—B4&KR-BAR=
TN BEENERBENRRED S5
ETTMREE  MNERO RSN ES -

# R R H At > 7B
RARBB R E A

RINRBBIER R REES
RBIH -

KB ERT IR AU HT

BETHMARA

AEBMEIHFMR AR — NP BEEHN
AR®1 557ETE D }\Eﬁ%” ,230%7‘5&7.9%
E-TNMBFEHARE.434ET -

THMRAARLETEHR —F ﬂiﬁﬁm%
BR8N B B RIS AR D

®Rig - R RAEME A

REBEREE  REMEMEBEBRH - N\
BEEHARE1380E TR ARKS00E
TTEk3.6% E-_ZE— NI BFEMNARE1.330
BT BANEZRESAEEERH W RIT
T BAR R R AR S AL IR b o

SHERA

AEBMEEERA_Z—\UBFEHAR
1,580 & LB MARBSOETHS1% 2
E-NUBFEMNARE1,6608T - HEE
Reg =S hREsIEN -

EEER

AEBMNERBRAA_Z— \UBFENAR
#1.20618 LB A R#3,760 8 7L 231.2%
ET-NUBFEMARE 158218 T
BEAMENETEANEEBEABRESR
AR B R -

| BERIZR AR T / 2019 F 3R

111



Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

B E R Mo (8)

Net impairment losses on financial assets

The Group incurred net impairment losses on financial assets of
RMB698.2 million in 2019, which arose primarily from the provision
for impairment losses on the receivables from an associate.

Impairment charges

The Group recognized impairment charges amounting to RMB4.8
million on the investment in PetroBroad Copower Limited.

Other losses, net

The Group incurred other losses of RMB80.7 million for 2019,
compared to RMB41.9 million for 2018. Other losses for 2019
arose primarily from (i) losses on changes in fair value of financial
instruments of RMB71.2 million; (ii) losses on disposal of a
subsidiary of RMB21.2 million; and partially offset by (iii) other
gains of RMB11.6 million.

Finance income/(costs), net

The Group's finance income increased by RMB19.9 million, or
88.1%, from RMB22.6 million for 2018 to RMB42.5 million for
2019.

Finance costs decreased by RMB8.6 million, or 1.4%, from
RMB614.4 million for 2018 to RMB605.8 million for 2019. The
decrease was mainly due to the decrease of borrowings and
partially offset by higher interest rate of the 2022 Senior Notes in
2019.

Loss before income tax

The Group’s loss before income tax was RMB1,398.7 million for
2019, compared to the loss before income tax of RMB785.0 million
for 2018. This was primarily due to the cumulative effects of the
above factors.
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Income tax expense

The Group recorded an income tax expense of RMB62.5 million in
2019, compared to an income tax expense of RMB47.4 million for
2018. The effective tax rate for 2019 is negative 4% compared to
an effective tax rate in 2018 of negative 6%.

Loss for the year from continuing operations

As a result of the foregoing, our net loss from continuing operations
in 2019 was RMB1,461.1 million, compared to a net loss from
continuing operations of RMB832.3 million in 2018.

Profit/(loss) for the year from discontinued operations
Our net gain from discontinued operations in 2019 was RMB332.2
million, compared to a net loss from discontinued operations of
RMB363.5 million in 2018. This was primarily due to the gain
amounting to RMB699.1 million from the disposal of Maple Energy.

Loss for the year

The Group’s net loss in 2019 was RMB1,128.9 million, compared
to the net loss of RMB1,195.8 million in 2018.
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EBITDA AND ADJUSTED EBITDA

We provide a reconciliation of EBITDA and adjusted EBITDA to loss
in 2019, our most direct comparable financial performance
calculated and presented in accordance with IFRS. EBITDA refers
to earnings before finance income, finance costs, income tax and
depreciation, depletion and amortization. Adjusted EBITDA refers
to EBITDA adjusted to exclude non-cash and non-recurring items
such as share-based payment to employees, net impairment losses
on financial assets, impairment charges, losses on changes in fair
value of financial instruments, withholding tax, losses from disposal
of subsidiaries, losses on disposal of an associate and any other
non-cash or non-recurring income/expenses.

The Group's adjusted EBITDA reflects the Group’s recurring cash
flow earnings from its core operations.

We have included EBITDA and adjusted EBITDA as we believe that
EBITDA is a financial measure commonly used in the oil and gas
industry. We believe that EBITDA and adjusted EBITDA are used
as supplemental financial measures by our management and by
investors, research analysts, bankers and others, to assess our
operating performance, cash flow and return on capital as
compared to those of other companies in our industry, and our
ability to take on financing. However, EBITDA and adjusted EBITDA
should not be considered in isolation or construed as alternatives to
profit from operations or any other measure of performance or as
an indicator of our operating performance or profitability. EBITDA
and adjusted EBITDA fail to account for corporate tax, finance
income, finance costs and other non-operating cash expenses.
EBITDA and adjusted EBITDA do not consider any functional or
legal requirements of the business that may require us to conserve
and allocate funds for any purposes.

The following table presents a reconciliation between EBITDA and
adjusted EBITDA from continuing operations and loss before
income tax from continuing operations for the years ended
December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018:

The Group generated EBITDA of negative RMB486.6 million in
2019, compared to RMB136.1 million in 2018. The decrease in
EBITDA in 2019 was primarily due to the decrease in oil price.
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The Group's adjusted EBITDA decreased by approximately
RMB85.7 million, or 20.9%, from approximately RMB409.1 million
in 2018 to approximately RMB323.4 million in 2019. The decrease
in adjusted EBITDA was primarily due to the decrease in oil price.

P IEC

RNEBMKFHAZEBITDAR —T— \HEFEE
WARBEA091EBILR L HARESEI0E T
5209% E =T —NIUHFEMHARES.234
BT o KL EBITDAR A IR EZ AR HER

Year Ended December 31,
BE+=-A=1t—HLEE

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®ET T AREETIT
Loss before income tax from FECERTS R ATEE
continuing operations (1,398,673) (784,960)
Finance income ELT N (42,518) (22,603)
Finance costs % ER 605,803 614,352
Depreciation, depletion and amortization WE - i 348,751 329,318
EBITDA from continuing operations FHEKCZ EBITDA (486,637) 136,107
Share-based payment to employees BIRERTEI TR B IRBAA 10,841 54,743
Net impairment losses on financial assets ERMEERMERELX 698,154 115,978
Impairment charges BERERX 4,826 37,471
Losses on changes in fair value of SRTAMNALBEES
financial instruments lEES 71,159 35,560
Withholding tax IR 3,838 9,301
Losses from disposal of subsidiaries RETARIERK 21,197 -
Losses on disposal of associate interests BEEMERNTEREBX - 19,927
Adjusted EBITDA from continuing operations 4% #8 %4548 45 44 EBITDA 323,378 409,087
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The Group’s EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA from continuing

operations by operating segment are set out below:

SERGEE D HE D MIFELZEBITDAR
B EICE EBITDAII T AR -

Year Ended December 31, 2019
BE-_E-NE+-A=t+—HLEE

Corporate
PRC and others Total
HE] R A &5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TR AR¥TR AR¥TR
Profit/(loss) before income tax from S B ERR FTE R AT
continuing operations Wi (EE) 43,907 (1,442,580) (1,398,673)
Finance income IR ION (27) (42,491) (42,518)
Finance costs H%ER 110,330 495,473 605,803
Depreciation, depletion and amortization #T& - #7785 342,081 6,670 348,751
EBITDA from continuing operations SELE EBITDA 496,291 (982,928) (486,637)
Share-based payment to employees BN FET 8 T R B IR 2,687 8,154 10,841
Net impairment losses on TRAERERKX
financial assets 1,160 696,994 698,154
Impairment charges BERBERARLX - 4,826 4,826
Losses on changes in fair value of SRMIAMNAREBEZEEEX
financial instruments - 71,159 71,159
Withholding tax MBI - 3,838 3,838
Losses from disposal of subsidiaries BEEfAREk - 21,197 21,197
Adjusted EBITDA from continuing (SR FHE IS 2 EBITDA
operations 500,138 (176,760) 323,378
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Year ended December 31, 2018
BE_Z-N\E+_A=1T—-HILEE

Corporate
PRC and others Total
H fBaf N H &&f
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETFT ARETFTT
Profit/(loss) before income tax from ﬁﬁti‘“ ERFTEHIAT
continuing operations i/ (E8) 110,516 (895,476) (784,960)
Finance income I8y L ON (90) (22,513) (22,603)
Finance costs BBER 96,139 518,213 614,352
Depreciation,depletion and amortization  #T& ~ H7#E K8 329,101 217 329,318
EBITDA from continuing operations FHEISE EBITDA 535,666 (399,559) 136,107
Share-based payment to employees BT B T E B RIS AR 1,132 53,611 54,743
(Reversal)/provision of impairment CRAERE
losses on financial assets, net (88E),/3HiR - %A (14,740) 130,718 115,978
Impairment charges BEMEBERK 34,154 3,317 37,471
Losses on changes in fair value of SRMIAMAREEZESEX
financial instruments - 35,560 35,560
Withholding tax MBI - 9,301 9,301
Losses from disposal of associate REBENEIERELR
Interests - 19,927 19,927
Adjusted EBITDA from continuing RS B IS EBITDA
operations 556,212 (147,125) 409,087
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Overview

The Group's primary sources of cash during 2019 were cash
generated from operating activities.

In 2019, the Group had net cash generated from operating activities
of RMB73.6 million, net cash used in investing activities of
RMB119.7 million, net cash generated from financing activities of
RMB31.5 million, an exchange gain on cash and cash equivalent of
RMBO0.2 million, transferred to disposal group classified as held for
sale of RMB15 thousand and a net decrease in cash and cash
equivalent of RMB14.6 million.

Cash generated from operating activities

Net cash generated from operating activities was RMB73.6 million
in the year ended December 31, 2019. In the year ended December
31, 2019, our net cash generated from operating activities included
loss before income tax of RMB1,398.7 million adjusted for,
depreciation, depletion and amortization of RMB348.8 million, net
interest expenses of RMB567.8 million, net impairment losses on
financial assets of RMB698.2 million, impairment charges of
RMB4.8 million, share-based payment to employees of RMB10.8
million, exchange gains of RMB4.5 million, losses on changes in
fair value of financial instruments of RMB71.2 million and losses on
disposal of subsidiaries of RMB21.2 million. The cash movements
from changes in working capital which included an increase in trade
and other receivables of RMB3.7 million and an increase in trade
and other payable of RMB162.8 million, a decrease of inventories
of RMB1.3 million, interest paid of RMB418.2 million and cash
generated from discontinued operations of RMB11.9 million.
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Net cash generated from operating activities was RMB94.1 million
in the year ended December 31, 2018. In the year ended December
31, 2018, our net cash generated from operating activities included
loss before income tax of RMB785.0 million adjusted for,
depreciation, depletion and amortization of RMB329.3 million, net
interest expenses of RMB596.5 million, net impairment losses on
financial assets of RMB116.0 million, impairment charges of
RMB37.5 million, share of losses from investments in associates
of RMB9.3 million, losses arising from disposal of an associate of
RMB19.9 million, share-based payment to employees of RMB54.7
million, exchange gains of RMB4.8 million and losses on changes
in fair value of financial instruments of RMB35.6 million. The cash
movements from changes in working capital which included an
increase in trade and other receivables of RMB22.3 million and an
increase in trade and other payable of RMB108.1 million, an
increase of inventories of RMB1.4 million, interest paid of
RMB479.1 million and income tax paid of RMB52.5 million and
cash generated from discontinued operations of RMB132.1 million.

Cash used in/generated from investing activities

Net cash used in investing activities in the year ended December
31, 2019 amounted to RMB119.7 million, as a result of: (i)
purchases of property, plant and equipment of RMB37.0 million, (ii)
payment for acquisition of foreign contractor’'s participating
interests in PRC of RMB34.6 million, (iiijcontribution and loans to
investments accounted for using equity method of RMB4.9 million
and (iv)cash used in discontinued operations of RMB92.1 million,
which was offset by, (i) proceeds from disposals of subsidiaries of
RMB16.4 million, (iijreceipt of shareholder loans from associate of
RMB27.6 million, and (iiijothers of RMB4.9 million.

Net cash generated from investing activities in the year ended
December 31, 2018 amounted to RMB771.5 million, as a result of:
(i)proceeds from disposals of subsidiaries of RMB186.8 million, (ii)
proceeds from disposal of investment in associate of RMB138.7
million, (iiijdecrease in financial assets of RMB318.8 million, (iv)
received of loans and deposits from third parties of RMB47.8
million, and (v)cash generated from discontinued operations of
RMB355.1 million, which was offset by: (i) purchases of property,
plant and equipment of RMB65.2 million, (iijpayment for acquisition
of foreign contractor’s participating interests in PRC of RMB187.9
million, (iiijpayments for acquisition of subsidiary, net of cash
acquired of RMB18.6 million, (iv)contribution and loans to
investments accounted for using equity method of RMB3.2 million,
and (v)others of RMBO0.8 million.
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Cash generated from/used in financing activities

Net cash generated from financing activities in the year ended
December 31, 2019 amounted to RMB31.5 million primarily due to:
(i) proceeds from borrowings of RMB654.9 million, (i) proceeds
from issuing of new shares of RMB32.5 million and (iii) cash
generated from discontinued operations of RMB80.2 million, offset
by: (i) repayments of borrowings of RMB194.2 million; (ii)
repayments of 2019 senior notes of RMB516.4 million; (i) payment
for loan arrangement and other fees of RMB19.3 million, and (iv)
payment of lease liability of RMB6.1 million.

Net cash used in financing activities in the year ended December
31, 2018 amounted to RMB960.3 million primarily due to: (i)
repayments of borrowings of RMB300.7 million; (i) repayments of
2018 senior notes of RMB1,150.2 million; (iii) payments of loan
arrangement and other fees of RMB214.9 million, (iv) others of
RMB4.4 million, and (v) cash used in discontinued operations of
RMB477.8 million, offset by: (i) proceeds from borrowings of
RMB912.3 million, and (i) proceeds from issue of convertible bond
of RMB275.4 million.

Borrowings

As at December 31, 2019, for the Group's continuing operations,
the borrowings from financial institutions and third parties
amounted to approximately RMB3,999.3 million, representing a
decrease of approximately RMB336.7 million as compared to
December 31, 2018. Among the Group's borrowings, borrowings
repayable within one year amounted to approximately RMB2,278.8
million, representing a decrease of RMB271.1 million as compared
to December 31, 2018. All of the borrowings are denominated in
US dollars and Hong Kong dollars. The borrowings are all at fixed
interest rates. No hedging instruments were used for borrowings.

Our gearing ratio, which is defined as total borrowings less cash
and cash equivalents (“Net Borrowings"”) divided by the sum of
Net Borrowings and total equity, increased from 164.7% as at
December 31, 2018 to 321.0% as at December 31, 2019, primarily
due to the loss incurred in 2019.

Our total borrowings to adjusted EBITDA ratio, which is defined as
total borrowings divided by adjusted EBITDA increased from 10.6
as at December 31, 2018 to 12.4 as at December 31, 2019.
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Market Risks

Our market risk exposures primarily consist of fluctuations in oil
and gas prices and exchange rates.

Oil and gas price risk

Our realized oil and gas prices are determined with reference to oil
and gas prices in the international market, and changes in
international oil and gas prices will have a significant impact on us.
Unstable and highly volatile international oil and gas prices may
have a significant impact on our revenue and profit.

Currency risk

The majority of the Group’s China operation sales are in US dollars,
while production and other expenses in China are incurred in RMB.
The RMB is not a freely convertible currency and is regulated by
the PRC government. Limitations on foreign exchange transactions
imposed by the PRC government could cause future exchange
rates to vary significantly from current or historical exchange rates.

The functional currency of the Canada subsidiary is in Canadian
dollars and all sales are in Canadian dollars. The disposal of Canada
Subsidiary of the Group was completed on September 30, 2019.

The Group currently does not engage in hedging activities designed
or intended to manage foreign exchange rate risk. The Group will
continue to monitor foreign exchange changes to best preserve the
Group's cash value.

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at December 31, 2019, bank accounts, shares of subsidiaries
and oil and gas assets of the Group were pledged to secure
borrowings in the aggregate amount of RMB2,278.8 million.
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EMPLOYEES

As at December 31, 2019, the Company had 1,058 employees,
with 1,056 based in China (Mainland and Hong Kong) and two
based in the United States. There are no material changes to the
information disclosed in the Annual Report 2018 in respect of the
remuneration of employees, remuneration policies and staff
development.

CONTINGENCIES

There were no contingent liabilities of the Group as at December
31, 2019.

DIVIDEND

The Board did not recommend the payment of final dividend for the
year ended December 31, 2019 (2018: NIL).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The annual general meeting of the Company (“AGM") is scheduled
to be held on Thursday, January 14, 2021. For determining the
entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM, the Register of
Members of the Company will be closed from Monday, January
11, 2021 to Thursday, January 14, 2021, both days inclusive, during
which no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to be eligible
to attend and vote at the AGM, all completed transfers of shares,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be lodged
with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Investor Services Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30
p.m. (Hong Kong time) on Friday, January 8, 2021, being the last
registration date.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company has reviewed the consolidated
financial information of the Group for the year ended December 31,
2019 including the accounting policies adopted by the Group and
has discussed the internal controls and financial reporting matters
of the Group.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

MIE HOLDINGS CORPORATION

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements of
MIE Holdings Corporation (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 128 to 308, which comprise:

° the consolidated statement of financial position as at
December 31, 2019;

° the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year then
ended;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended,;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. Because of the potential interaction of
the multiple uncertainties and their possible cumulative effect on
the consolidated financial statements as described in the Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, it is not possible for us
to form an opinion on these consolidated financial statements. In
all other respects, in our opinion the consolidated financial
statements have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

MIE HOLDINGS CORPORATION (Continued)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION
Multiple Uncertainties Relating to Going Concern

As detailed in Note 2.1.1 to the consolidated financial statements,
during the year ended December 31, 2019, the Group incurred a
net loss of RMB1,128.9 million, which comprised of losses of
RMB1,461.1 million from continuing operations and profits of
RMB332.2 million from discontinued operations, respectively. As at
December 31, 2019, the Group had a shareholders’ deficit of
RMB2,744.1 million and its current liabilities exceeded its current
assets by RMB2,842.1 million. As at the same date, the Group had
total borrowings of RMB3,999.3 million, of which approximately
RMB2,278.8 million represented current liabilities, while the Group
had cash and cash equivalents of RMB 59.9 million, of which
RMB13.7 million was unrestricted.

Subsequent to December 31, 2019, the Group did not pay the
interest of RMB120.5 million (US$17.1 million) accrued on the
senior notes in the principal amount of US$248.4 million (equivalent
to approximately RMB1,720.5 million) (the “2022 Senior Notes")
due on April 12, 2020, which resulted in an event of default by the
Group. As a result, the entire balance of the principal and related
outstanding interest due on the 2022 Senior Notes became
immediately repayable if requested by the holders of such notes
(the “Noteholders”). This event of default also triggered the cross-
default of borrowings in the total principal amount of RMB2,262.8
million as described in Note 2.1.1 (the “Cross-Defaulted
Borrowings”) and immediate repayment of such borrowings if
requested by the respective lenders of these borrowings (the
“Lenders”). In addition, the RMB1,868.1 million of the Cross-
Defaulted Borrowings were also subsequently defaulted because
of non-payment at their respective due dates. Furthermore, the
Group's performance subsequent to December 31, 2019 has been
significantly affected by the low commodity price of crude oil.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

MIE HOLDINGS CORPORATION (Continued)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (Continued)

Multiple Uncertainties Relating to Going Concern
(Continued)

These conditions, together with others described in Note 2.1.1 to
the consolidated financial statements, indicate the existence of
material uncertainties which may cast significant doubt over the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern.

Management of the Company has undertaken a number of
measures to improve the Group's liquidity and financial position, to
meet its liabilities as and when they fall due which are set out in
Note 2.1.1 to the consolidated financial statements. The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis, the validity of which depends on the outcome of
these measures, which are subject to multiple uncertainties,
including: (i) the Lenders and the Noteholders not taking any
actions against the Group to exercise their rights to demand
immediate payment of the principals and interest of the Cross-
Defaulted Borrowings and the 2022 Senior Notes before the
finalisation of the debt restructuring plans and execution of the
restructuring agreements; (ii) successfully securing the required
agreement of the Lenders and the Noteholders and completion of
all necessary procedures by the Group for the restructuring
agreements under the debt restructuring plans to be executed; and
the Group's ability to continuously comply with the terms and
conditions stipulated therein upon execution; (iii) actual oil prices
throughout the forecast period up to June 30, 2021 being in line
with the projected levels included in the cashflow projections; and
(iv) the Group's ability to generate operating cash flows and to
obtain additional sources of financing, other than those mentioned
above, to finance the Group's oil exploration and production
business, including capital expenditures needed to drill new wells,
as well as other funding needs.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

MIE HOLDINGS CORPORATION (Continued)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (Continued)

Multiple Uncertainties Relating to Going Concern
(Continued)

Should the Group fail to achieve the above-mentioned plans and
measures, it might not be able to continue to operate as a going
concern, and adjustments would have to be made to write down
the carrying value of the Group's assets to their recoverable
amounts, to provide for any further liabilities which might arise, and
to reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities as current
assets and current liabilities. The effect of these adjustments has
not been reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs") and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

126 MIEHOLDINGS CORPORATION / ANNUAL REPORT 2019

BERAE

B AR E
BMIBEREZERAR D FRE ()
(RAASHEZMA A BRAA])

BERTERNER (&)
EFACERENSETRESE (H)

i EERERGEEK DG E RiER - HATaE
BAERBQENERN FEELE - WAFD
HER BERENEEREEEARZHEAK
&8 FHEREE—FEANBERE R
BiERBEENRFRDREENDERRE
BEMRBEE - ZFRENZERHRARRR
BOH B mEP

EENELZEERGHUMBREREA
AENERE

BERARESARAREB(BERTHREER])
REECRBIGHIDOBEEREREGEEEMF
BOAHMB®RER - UHERRBER G
BROBBE T FERNKGFRERMERNE
REFRBULFAFERAEZES B E -

EREBAHMBRERE  EFAFTNE BEF
BIREQENEE N - WHEBRIEL TR RS
BREEMNER  URERBELE RS
At BIFEZEAEH BEXEEBFRAFLEE
2 RREEMERNERAE -

EZZBRARARE B5ENYHEHREA
12



Independent Auditor’'s Report (Continued)

BN AR ()

_E
pwec

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

MIE HOLDINGS CORPORATION (Continued)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group's consolidated
financial statements in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing and to issue an auditor’s report. We report solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. However, because of the matters described
in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, it is not
possible for us to form an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements due to the potential interaction of the multiple
uncertainties and their possible cumulative effect on the
consolidated financial statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“IESBA Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
|IESBA Code.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is LEONG Kin Bong.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, November 27, 2020
(If there is any inconsistency between the English and Chinese

version of the independent auditor’'s report, the English version
shall prevail.)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
B I &R R

As at December 31,

R+=-—H=+-—H
2019 2018
2019 5 20184F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000

(s AR®TR ARETRE

Assets BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment TEE  THRRHEE B6(A) 1,678,414 1,798,839
Intangible assets | EE 7 94,025 137,351
Right-of-use assets FREEE 6(B) 11,839 =
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTISTE = 24 816 601
Financial assets at fair value through UNARBETEBEZETA
other comprehensive income HiiraamerEE 12 43,754 46,458
Prepayments, deposits and FERT R - RE S R E A R UK
other receivables 14 385,363 357,212
Restricted cash IR HR S 18 - 45,465
2,214,211 2,385,926
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 16 16,370 22,390
Prepayments, deposits and AR - REBE S R HMEBGK
other receivables 14 71,036 615,035
Trade and note receivables FEUR IR SR W = 4 15 61,374 69,791
Financial assets at fair value AR BEFEBEEEH A
through profit or loss EHEENEREE 17 - 17,755
Restricted cash ZBRHIRE 18 46,213 =
Cash and cash equivalents He RIRSZEEY 19 13,711 28,115
208,704 753,086
Assets of disposal group classified as HFEEENEBEEANEE
held for sale 20 - 5,105,887

208,704 5,858,973

Total assets BEEHAE 2,422,915 8,244,899
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)
BRI EARK (B)

As at December 31,

R+=-—HA=+-—H
2019 2018
2019 5 20184F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

(o AR®TR ARETRE

Equity xR
Equity attributable to owners of FERADTMEENER
the Company

Share capital A& X 21 1,101,249 1,068,796

Other reserves H i fE R 23 (90,048) (143,782)

Accumulated losses EFTEE (3,755,333) (2,630,296)
(2,744,132) (1,705,282)

Non-controlling interests Bl Il e - 13,265

Total shareholders’ deficit REREEARE (2,744,132) (1,692,017)

Liabilities aE

Non-current liabilities FREBEE

Borrowings EEN 27 1,720,505 1,786,066

Lease liabilities HEAE 6(B) 4,738 =

Deferred income tax liabilities EEFEH AR 24 173,803 114,669

Trade and note payables e BR BN M PR T 2 4B 25 74,169 65,871

Provisions, accruals and other liabilities *# ~ TR R EMBE 26 143,041 77,252
2,116,256 2,043,858

Current liabilities REBASE

Trade and note payables FENEER R IENZiE 25 386,076 220,283

Provisions, accruals and other liabilities 24& - TBIR R EMEE 26 371,061 272,685

Lease liabilities HEAE 6(B) 8,707 =

Current income tax liabilities EHFSH At 6,185 2,649

Financial liabilities at fair value AARBEGAZEEEEHA

through profit or loss EHEENERAE 13 - 313,969
Borrowings B 27 2,278,762 2,549,888

3,050,791 3,359,474
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)
BB BEARRAEK (B)

As at December 31,

R+=-—H=+-—H
2019 2018
2019 5 20184F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000

(s AR®TR ARETRE

Liabilities of disposal group classified FHSENEBEEANERE

as held for sale 20 - 4,533,584

3,050,791 7,893,058

Total liabilities BEAHE 5,167,047 9,936,916
Total shareholders’ deficit BRREBEREELHE

and liabilities 2,422,915 8,244,899

The accompanying notes on pages 139 to 308 are an integral part 255 139 B & 5 308 B Z M B4 & (81 75
of these consolidated financial statements. MRS S o

The consolidated financial statements on pages 128 to 308 were £ 128 B &5 308 B v & B #5217 2020
approved by the Board of Directors on November 27, 2020 and 11 A27 BEEE e ETIE  TREES

were signed on its behalf. gEE
Zhang Ruilin Zhao Jiangwei
RN i-pAR 5
Director Director
EF EF
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
atsre s
= 7 Ny = I

Year ended December 31,

BE+t=-BA=+—HLFE

2019 2018
2019 % 20184
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000

B E AR®TRT ARETRE

Continuing operations BEgE
Revenue from contracts with EEERBIWA

customers 5 756,094 789,704
Depreciation, depletion and amortisation #T& - 77 5 # 8 (348,751) (329,318)
Taxes other than income taxes TIE (TEF RN 29 (7,859) (18,875)
Employee benefit expenses 8 T A 32 (143,367) (155,747)
Purchases, services and other R RIS R E A E BN

direct costs (133,007) (138,013)
Distribution costs $HE BN (16,642) (15,792)
General and administrative expense EEEH (158,160) (120,551)
Net impairment losses on SREEREBEREK

financial assets 3 (698,154) (115,978)
Impairment charges BERERX 6(A), 7, 8 (4,826) (37,471)
Other losses, net HpiEk  FE 28 (80,716) (41,852)
Finance income U A 30 42,518 22,603
Finance costs B 15 & A 30 (605,803) (614,352)
Share of losses of investments EEMECERENERH

in associates 8 - (9,318)
Loss before income tax MRETEHAIER (1,398,673) (784,960)
Income tax expense FrIBHEHR 33 (62,453) (47,412)

Loss for the year from continuing REFELERBER

operations (1,461,126) (832,372)
Discontinued operations wirge
Profit/(loss) for the year from RERIHEEETSFE,(B18)

discontinued operations 20 332,177 (363,463)
Loss for the year REEE (1,128,949) (1,195,835)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (Continued)
Hara ek (8)

Year ended December 31,

BE+-A=t+—ALEE

2019 2018
2019 2018 €
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

B AR®TR ARETRE

Other comprehensive losses HitnimE 58
Continuing operations BFELSEDRD
Items that may be reclassified to BEAEEEs BZ B
profit or loss HyE B
Transfer to profit or loss upon disposal R EH &P EIRERETIEZ
of investments in associate - (2,602)
Currency translation differences INEATH ERE (59,103) (143,667)

Items that will not be reclassifiedto B#TEESEFTE=ER

profit or loss
Change in the fair value of equity AR EEF=ZBEETA

instruments at fair value through HEfira gz TAM

other comprehensive income NABEE (3.428) (19,900)
Discontinued operations wILRER D
Items that may be reclassified to BENEEESHZAn

profit or loss HIHE B
Currency translation differences HNEE YT BT = R - (129,629)
Other comprehensive losses for BRERFEHMEZEESER

the year, net of tax (62,531) (295,798)
Total comprehensive losses for REGREBFERERE

the year (1,191,480) (1,491,633)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (Continued)

aftira ek (8

Year ended December 31,

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2019 2018
20195 20184
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B =E AR¥T T ARETT
Loss for the year attributable to: AREHEEEBR :
Owners of the Company RABITEE (1,125,037) (1,195,793)
Non-controlling interests eSS MR (3,912) (42)
(1,128,949) (1,195,835)
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable SEBRAXQTRAEENAE
to owners of the Company arising FE,(BK) BRR :
from:
Continuing operations BHEgE (1,457,214) (832,330)
Discontinued operations gl 332,177 (363,463)
(1,125,037) (1,195,793)
Total comprehensive losses for TEREBERAERER -
the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company NARIFIBEE (1,187,568) (1,491,591)
Non-controlling interests FESE S MR (3,912) (42)
(1,191,480) (1,491,633)
Total comprehensive income/(losses) FEBRAATAEENEKE
for the year attributable to owners & W (I8%k) %258
of the Company arising from: R -
Continuing operations B A (1,519,745) (998,499)
Discontinued operations gl 332,177 (493,092)
(1,187,568) (1,491,591)
Ml BERIEERBBRAF / 2019 F 5
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (Continued)
Bt e K (8

Year ended December 31,

BE+t=-BA=+—HLFE

2019 2018
2019 2018 €
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

B AR®TR ARETRE

Earnings/(losses) per share for RERQTE AR REMN
profit/(loss) attributable to @ (R WERKE
ordinary equity holders of (BR)(ERARE)

the Company for the year
(expressed in RMB per share)

Basic earnings/(losses) per share EXRSRWKE (5E) 35

Continuing operations SEKE (0.46) (0.29)

Discontinued operations B 0.11 (0.12)
(0.35) (0.41)

Diluted earnings/(losses) per share mEsRrRkE (FE) 35

Continuing operations BEgE (0.46) (0.29)

Discontinued operations b 0.11 (0.12)
(0.35) (0.41)

The accompanying notes on pages 139 to 308 are an integral part {2 {55 139 &5 & 55 308 B ~ M i+ & AN &R &=
of these consolidated financial statements. gk pa n s o

iERE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in

= N\ 7 4=y
1; /\%D/n\%}]%

Attributable to owners of the Company

Equity

GENALNRMEE
Non-
Ordinary Share Other  Accumulated controlling Total
shares premium reserves losses Total interests Equity
Lk RAHE Eftffe ZiER @i JEERIES BnEs
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETE ARETT ARETE ARETR ARETE ARETR
Balance at December 31,2017 20174512 A31 B R
as originally presented =Yk 19489 1,049,307 47,265 (1,384,495) (268,434) (27) (268,461
Change in accounting policy SHHRE - - 4,848 (4,848) - - -
Restated total equity as 2018F1A1RER#E
at January 1, 2018 HERAR 19,489 1,049,307 52113 (1,389,343) (268,434) (27) (268,461)
Comprehensive losses for rEGAEE
the year
Loss for the year REEE - - - (1195793 (1,195,793) (42 (1,195,835)
Change in the fair value of equity AR/ BB ERES
instruments at the fair value AR EA RS
through other comprehensive BERTENALER
income £ = - (19,900 - 19,900) - (19,900)
Transfer to profit or loss upon BEREOERER
disposal of investments in BRER
associate - - 2,602) = (2,602) = (2,602)
Currency translation differences ~ SMEFTEZHE = - (273,296 - (273,296 - (273,296
- - (95798)  (1,195793)  (1,491591) W) 11491,6%3)
Transactions with owners in HREENEREED
their capacity as owners SRETHRS
Employees stock option schemes 1B 8 B kiE:t2]
— value of employee services —EERKER
(Note 32) (B32) = - 54,743 - 54,743 - 54,743
Non-controlling interests arising ~~ EHAGEEAEEH
from business combinations Bx - - - - 13,334 13,334
Disposal of subsidiaries RETAT - - 45,160 (45,160) - - -
- - 9903 w5160 54743 13334 68,077
As at December 31,2018 R2018%12831R 19,489 1,049,307 (143782)  (2,630,29)  (1,705,282) 13265 (1,692,017)

| BERIZERR SRR A F / 2019 3R



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)
B EREER(E)

Attributable to owners of the Company

BRRADAfREE
Non-
Ordinary Share Other Accumulated controlling Total
shares premium reserves losses Total interests Equity

BER  BARE ARG RiER B SRR RGEE
RMB000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AR®TR ARETR ARRTn AREBTR ARMTR ARRTn  ARETR

As at January 1, 2019 B2019E181R 19,489 1,049,307 (143,782)  (2,630,296)  (1,705,282) 13,265  (1,692,017)
Comprehensive loss REGEFE

for the year
Loss for the year TEEE - - - (1125,037)  (1,125,037) (3912)  (1,128,949)

Change in the fair value of equity A% BfE:H 8 B HEE

instruments at the fair value AR ARG ER

through other comprehensive ~ TEHMAABES

income - (3,428) - (3,428) - (3,428)
Currency translation differences  HMEHTEZE - - (59,103) - (59,103) - (59,103)

- - (62531)  (1,125,037)  (1,187,568) (3912)  (1,191,480)

Transactions with ownersin ~ EfEENEREENSH
their capacity as owners ETHRS

Employees stock option schemes (& & & fkigst 2]
— value of employee services  — EERIEE (fit32)

(Note 32) - - 10,841 - 10,841 - 10,841
Issue new shares (Note 21) BT (B3 21) 2,263 30,190 - - 32,453 - 32,453
Disposal of subsidiaries RETAA - - 105,424 - 105,424 (9,353) 96,071
2,263 30,190 116,265 - 148,718 (9,353) 139,365
As at December 31, 2019 201945128318 21752 1,079,497 (90,048)  (3.755,333)  (2,744,132) - (2744132)

The accompanying notes on pages 139 to 308 are an integral part {1398 £ F 308 B 7 Mt A AB &Rk
of these consolidated financial statements. HyFE BB 2T o
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

aftRERER

Year ended December 31,

BE+-—A=+—HLEE

2019 2018
2019 & 20184
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B =E AR¥T T ARET T
Cash flows from operating activities K& EENRESHRE
Continuing operations BERE
Cash generated from operations BT EANIRE 479,913 493,495
Interest paid BARFE (418,196) (479,093)
Income taxes paid BERPTEH - (52,450
Discontinued operations KRR 11,911 132,127
Net cash inflow from operating KRETHEENRSEEHE
activities 36 73,628 94,079
Cash flows from investing activities REZFZEHNEEHRE
Continuing operations BHERE
Payments for property, plant and BETIE « THMRME
equipment (37,012) (65,242)
Decrease in financial assets SRIEERRD - 318,834
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries W2 E A RIS KIE 16,355 186,835
Net proceeds from disposal of BB B E VS R FOE
investment in associate (kR ZEREFE) - 138,655
Payment for acquisition of foreign S U R R B B9 N T
contractor’s participating interests & RE 2B IE
in PRC (34,643) (187,881)
Receipt of loans and deposits from WEE = ERANRE S
third parties - 47,814
Payments for acquisition of subsidiary, X {tUthEF A BIHFRIA
net of cash acquired (F0BREBIR &) - (18,5689)
Receipt of shareholder loans Ui BB 8 1 FE BB R IR B X
from associate 27,578 -
Contribution and loans to investments % A ARz E A BRHYIEE
accounted for using equity method RER (4,883) (3,199
Others Hip 4,936 (845)
Discontinued operations RIE R (92,059) 355,114
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from REFTEH(EM) BEEWN
investing activities REFE (119,728) 771,496
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

SR RER (B)

Year ended December 31,

BE+-—A=+—HLEE

2019 2018
2019 F 20184
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B =E ARMT T AR®ET T
Cash flows from financing activities FETHHEEHRE
Continuing operations BHERE
Repayments of borrowings BEBER (194,183) (300,747)
Proceeds from borrowings B R G IE 654,891 912,252
Repayments of 2018 senior notes FIE(EIE 2018 B L=
upon maturity - (1,150,179)
Repayments of 2019 Senior Notes EE 20198 EEE (516,424) -
Proceeds from issuing of new shares 21Tk E| MR & 32,453 -
Proceeds from issue of convertible TR TS FRIA
bonds - 275,436
Payments for loan arrangement SHERLHEE RAEE R
and other fees (19,284) (214,903)
Payment of lease liability SHNEESE (6,145) =
Others Hfth - (4,431)
Discontinued operations R 80,163 (477,763)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from BMEEBHELE (FR)H
financing activities HEREE 31,471 (960,335)
Net decrease in cash and cash RERRESEWHNED FHR
equivalents (14,629) (94,760)
— Net decrease included in cash and ~ — BEEAHHMGRIE
cash equivalents per the HIRE RIS ZEYH
consolidated statement of Rk A EE
financial position (14,644) (104,238)
— Net increase included in the assets — BEEREZENRE
of disposal group classified as HEERHIEINFEE
held for sale 15 9,478
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning F#HE & RIEELEED
of the financial year 28,115 132,172
Effects of exchange rate on cash and HERBRESEBYHEN
cash equivalents bi=End=0)-% 240 (7,183)
Transferred to disposal group classified i ZEFEFERRER
as held for sale (15) (2,114)
Cash and cash equivalents FRESRESEEY
at end of the year 19 13,711 28,115

The accompanying notes on pages 139 to 308 are an integral part

%M 5139 A E 5308 A 2 i ARG G875
of these consolidated financial statements. @

HROBEE D
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GENERAL INFORMATION

MIE Holdings Corporation (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally engaged
in the exploration, development, production and sale of oil in
the People’'s Republic of China (the “PRC") under production
sharing contract (the “PSC"). The Group also participates as
associates in the exploration, development, production and
sale of petroleum and other petroleum products located in
the Republic of Kazakhstan (the “Kazakhstan”) and the
northern part of the South China Sea in the PRC.

On September 24, 2018, the Group entered into an
agreement with Far East Energy International Limited
("FEEIL"), a company controlled by Mr. Zhang Ruilin, the
controlling shareholder and chairman of the Company, for the
sale of its entire 100% equity investment in Maple Energy
and its subsidiaries (collectively as the “Disposal Group”).
The associated assets and liabilities were consequently
presented as held for sale in these financial statements. The
disposal was completed on 30 September 2019. Further
information about the Disposal Group is set out in Note 20.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office is
Maples Corporate Services Limited, P.O. Box 309 Ugland
House, Grand Cayman KY1-1104, Cayman Islands.

The Company's shares were listed on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“SEHK") on December 14, 2010.

The financial statements are presented in Chinese Renminbi
("RMB") unless otherwise stated. These financial statements
have been approved for issue by the board of directors of the
Company (the “Board of Directors”) on November 27, 2020.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B I IR M5

—REHR

MIBETRIZERL AR AR (A T [ A
ADREFRAR(SHE [ ARE]) TBH
hE ARAME (AT [HE])ZR

mo KA R REUGSE  KELRY
®H% SERHEHE AKEBRBEH
&b 2 B HG E e A E KA E
(MapE s 818 1) M Bl F /8 4t BF i @ &Y
AMMEM A HERDR FAE £E
K SHERE) -

20185 F9 A 24 A » REE BN RIIZERK
IR R E B F oK Py mr i il A9 Far East
Energy International Limited ( LA T~ £5 7@
[FEEIL])) # &K # &% @ & & H £ Maple
Energy X EF AR (ETB[BREH])HE
E8100% IR HERE - Eit - M EE M
BEEUBREPEINARFBFENE
B4 o ZBREN 201949 A30 AR &5
K o REARE BB 20HE -

ARAR—FRRFASHESTMKINE
(R A &) o 7 b4k & Maples Corporate
Services Limited, P.O. Box 309 Ugland
House, Grand Cayman KY1-1104,
Cayman Islands °

RATHRMGBAR2010FE12 8148 &S
BHMARXZHERAR LM (A TS
[EBHRAT])

KM BRERAAREINR(BRIESEH

BH) - ABMEHRERELEHEARTESTER
2020511 A 27 BHLETI -

MIBERIER AR A E / 2019 3k

139



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BB HRRN T (8)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS") issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB"”). The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except as disclosed
in the accounting policies below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBERBE(H)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 REBIET(E)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Going Concern 211 BELSE

In the recent years, the Group’s performance was
significantly affected by the relatively low
commodity prices of oil and gas and the high
borrowing costs for general funding and re-
financing purposes. During the year, the Group
incurred a net loss of RMB1,128.9 million, which
comprised losses of RMB1,461.1 million from
continuing operations and profits of RMB332.2
million from discontinued operations (Note 20),
respectively.

As at December 31, 2019, the Group had a
shareholders’ deficit of RMB2,744.1 million and
its current liabilities exceeded its current assets
by RMB2,842.1 million. As at the same date, the
Group had total borrowings of RMB3,999.3
million. Included in the current liabilities as at
December 31, 2019 were (1) a secured borrowing
of US$60.0 million (equivalent to approximately
RMB394.7 million), repayable on demand (the
"On-Demand Borrowing”) (Note 27(b)); and (2)
secured borrowings of RMB1,868.1 million which
were repayable within twelve months from
December 31, 2019 (Note 27(c)). In addition, as at
December 31, 2019, the Group had non-current
borrowings of RMB1,720.5 million, representing
the senior notes listed on the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited in the principal amount
of US$248.4 million with a contractual due date
on April 12, 2022 (the “2022 Senior Notes”) (Note
27(a)). As at December 31, 2019, the Group had
cash and cash equivalents of RMB59.9 million, of
which RMB13.7 million was unrestricted.

MER  AEENEESTA
MR A RIRIEA R RER -
UKk A—RRIERENRBREB
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBEBE(E)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 REERE(E)
2.1.1 Going Concern (Continued) 211 HELE (&)

Subsequent to December 31, 2019, the Group
paid RMB8.4 million as partial repayments of the
principals and RMB42.0 million for interest due on
the borrowings under (1) and (2) mentioned in the
preceding paragraph. The Group however did not
pay the interest accrued on the 2022 Senior Notes
of RMB120.5 million (US$17.1 million) due on
April 12, 2020, which resulted in an event of
default by the Group after the expiry of the grace
period to May 11, 2020. As a result, the entire
balance of the principal and related outstanding
interest due on the 2022 Senior Notes became
immediately repayable if requested by the holders
of such notes (the “Noteholders”). This event of
default also triggered the cross-default of the
borrowings under (1) and (2) (the “Cross-Defaulted
Borrowings"”) and immediate repayment of all
such borrowings if requested by the respective
lenders of these borrowings (the “Lenders”). In
addition, the secured borrowings under (2) were
also subsequently defaulted because of non-
payment at their respective due dates. Up to the
date of approval of these financial statements, the
Noteholders and the Lenders have not requested
immediate repayments of any of the funding
provided to the Group, nor any written waiver has
been obtained from them. No additional
borrowings were undertaken by the Group
subsequent to December 31, 2019.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ﬁﬁ#&%ﬁﬁﬂlf (Il\/\>

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Continued)

Eggﬁﬁk jﬁg(nﬂ)

21 wREWR (R

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Going Concern (Continued) 211 HELE (8)

Furthermore, the Group’s performance subsequent
to December 31, 2019 has been significantly
affected by the low commodity price of crude oil as
a result of the breakdown of production reduction
negotiations amongst the Organisation of Petroleum
Exporting Countries (the “OPEC"), coupled with the
unfavorable outlook for the global economy due to
the outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019 (the
“"COVID-19") in early 2020.

The above conditions indicate the existence of
material uncertainties which may cast significant

it - B 2019412 A31 H
218 B AR F AR A
([OPEC ) fil JR ek B 7 I %
SUPTE B ROl B S T Bk
& 12020 F ¥ & E /492019
FEAEMRRES E B
([COVID-19)) ¥ 2 Bk 48 75 78
HERN TR E  A5E
720194512 A31 H % 1 ¥
Zé JEK—/ﬁo

EFRARBTRIFEERTHE
ERZ AR AKERE

doubt regarding the Group's ability to continue as KERBENELEERNRE -

a going concern. In view of such circumstances, ERZEBR BEEBEN
management has given careful consideration to BRAREEREERENTHE
the future liquidity and performance of the Group BRUBBELER  BE8E
and its available sources of financing in assessing EERNEFBRLRBESD

whether the Group will have sufficient financial
resources to continue as a going concern, and
have taken the following measures to mitigate the

¥EURHEESARE R
TR e REBEBHEE TH i
uﬁ%ﬁ@ﬁ%%rﬁmﬁ

liquidity pressure and to improve its cash flows: ZHRERE

(a) The Group will continue its ongoing efforts (a) AEEBEERFED
in convincing the Lenders and the RHEE AAMEERFE
Noteholders not to take any actions against AT A S B REME
the Group for immediate payment of the AITTEI A B K7 BNE
principals and interest of the Cross- R X iE #4918 51 2022
Defaulted Borrowings and the 2022 Senior fﬁ S EBE A A
Notes. Based on latest communications o IRIBAEEEHER
with the Lenders and certain key /\%D%B TEERIEH
Noteholders, there is no indication that AR RFEB  REH
these parties have any current intention to RERPE B AIAEMA

take action against the Group to demand
immediate payment;

BEZUAEERNT
B AESKIZBVERK
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ﬁﬁ#&%ﬁTTﬂf(/w\)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Going Concern (Continued)

(b)

The Group has been in active negotiations
with the Lenders and certain key
Noteholders for a debt restructuring of the
Cross-Defaulted Borrowings and the 2022
Senior Notes (the “Debt Restructuring
Plans"”) to revise certain key terms and
conditions of the original borrowing
agreements and indenture, including but not
limited to extension of principal and interest
payment schedules and reduction in
applicable interest rates. The Debt
Restructuring Plans will involve entering into
restructuring agreements (the
“Restructuring Agreements”) among the
Group, the Lenders and the key Noteholders
participating in the negotiations; and the
execution of such Restructuring Agreements
is subject to, among others, the necessary
legal proceedings and ultimate approval by
Noteholders representing over 50% by
number and 75% by value of the holders of
the 2022 Senior Notes participating in the
voting;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Continued)

EZETTHRABE (&)

21 wREWR (R

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Going Concern (Continued) 211 HELE (8)

(c) On June 4, 2020, the Group successfully () M2020F6H4H @ &
obtained approval from its production SEKNESEERD
sharing counterparty, China National KERBEIEETE A
Petroleum Corporation (the “CNPC"), to MAAREEERA A
extend the expiry date of the production (T aEHER]D /it
period from December 31, 2024 to February o BERAKE R
29, 2028 (the “Supplemental Production 4 EH B B 1#£2024
Sharing Contract”) on the condition that the F12H31H & & &
Group shall drill @ minimum number of new 20284F2 A29R8 ([#7
wells in the Daan oilfield as agreed within a EmOKER]) - AIiE
period of three years from June 2020. As a EHEBEANEBEER
result, the Group will be able to improve its 202056 A REHISFA -
operating cash flows through increased XL RETTAZEL
production; and TE B H B H &K T 1E

2 HABINFILIAL
H - ANEE G mA
ENESRKEHLE
HEmE - UK

(d) The Group will also continue to seek other d AEEEBBEESKE

alternative financing, including proceeds

fERBESN - B

from the disposal of assets, to finance the BANEEENRFE
settlement of its existing financial obligations & UETHEIRAENE
and future operating and capital EEENU N mEREKR

expenditures.

The Directors have reviewed the Group’s cash
flow projections prepared by management, which
cover a period of not less than twelve months
from January 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021. They are
of the opinion that, taking into account the above-
mentioned plans and measures, the Group will
have sufficient working capital to finance its
operations and to meet its financial obligations
when they fall due within the period up to June
30, 2021. Accordingly, the Directors are satisfied
that it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated
financial statements on a going concern basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SRR T (8)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
2.1.1 Going Concern (Continued)

Notwithstanding the above, significant uncertainties
exist as to whether management of the Company
will be able to achieve its plans and measures as
described above. Whether the Group will be able to
continue as a going concern would depend upon the
following:

(i) the Lenders and the Noteholders not taking
any actions against the Group to exercise
their rights to demand immediate payment
of the principals and interests of the Cross-
Defaulted Borrowings and the 2022 Senior
Notes before the finalisation of the Debt
Restructuring Plans and execution of the
Restructuring Agreements;

(i) successfully securing the required agreement
of the Lenders and the Noteholders and
completion of all necessary procedures by
the Group for the Restructuring Agreements
to be executed; and the Group's ability to
continuously comply with the terms and
conditions stipulated therein upon execution;

(i) actual oil prices throughout the forecast
period up to June 30, 2021 being in line with
the projected levels included in the cashflow
projections; and
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BB HRRNE (8)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
2.1.1 Going Concern (Continued)

(iv) the Group's ability to generate operating
cash flows and to obtain additional sources
of financing, other than those mentioned
above, to finance the Group’s oil exploration
and production business, including capital
expenditures needed to drill new wells, as
well as other funding needs.

Should the Group fail to achieve the above-
mentioned plans and measures, it might not be
able to continue to operate as a going concern,
and adjustments would have to be made to write
down the carrying value of the Group's assets to
their recoverable amounts, to provide for any
further liabilities which might arise, and to
reclassify non-current assets and non-current
liabilities as current assets and current liabilities.
The effect of these adjustments has not been
reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

EZETTHRABE (&)

21 wREWR (R

211 HELE (&)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBEBE(E)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 RBER(E)

2.1.2 New and amended standards adopted by the 212 A EEEHMWWF T NES

Group

The Group has applied the following standards
and amendments for the first time for their annual
reporting period commencing January 1, 2019:

° IFRS 16 “Leases”

o Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation — Amendments to IFRS 9

o Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint
Ventures — Amendments to IAS 28

o Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards
2015-2017 cycle

° Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement
— Amendments to IAS 19

o Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income
Tax Treatments

The Group had to change its accounting policies
as a result of adopting IFRS 16. The Group elected
to adopt the new rules retrospectively but
recognised the cumulative effect of initially
applying the new standard on January 1, 2019.
This is disclosed in Note 2.2. Most of the other
amendments listed above did not have any impact
on the amounts recognised in prior periods and
are not expected to significantly affect the current
or future periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERKI T (B

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.3 New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

(BERFBHRELANE 75D RBRER

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 Definition of Material

EZETTHRABE (&)

21 wREWR (R

2.1.3 [& RERANHY T 2 BRI R 12

Effective for annual
periods beginning
on or after
RTIABARZE
BN FEERRE
EN

January 1, 2021
(likely to be extended
to January 1, 2022)
2021F1 A 1H
(RATBEHEIE R
202241 A18)
January 1, 2020

(BB g RIS 1 5%) [EZMINER 20201 A1H
(EIRR & 5T 4 RIS 857 ) VB RT

Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business January 1, 2020

IR B Hs i 5 2E RIS 358 ) [E%]EE 20201 A1 H
BEET

Revised Conceptual Framework Revised Conceptual Framework for January 1, 2020
for Financial Reporting Financial Reporting

SRS BB SAESR (1B RThR) IS ERE BB AE SR (B RThR) 20201 A1H

Certain new accounting standards and
interpretations have been published that are not
mandatory for December 31, 2019 reporting
periods and have not been early adopted by the
Group. These standards are not expected to have
a material impact on the entity in the current or
future reporting periods and on foreseeable future
transactions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBEBE(E)
POLICIES (Continued)

22 B HEEE

2.2 Changes in accounting policies

This note explains the impact of the adoption of IFRS
16 “Leases” on the Group's financial statements.

As indicated in Note 2.1.2 above, the Group has
adopted IFRS 16 “Leases” retrospectively from January
1, 2019, but has not restated comparatives for the 2018
reporting period, as permitted under the specific
transition provisions in the standard. The
reclassifications and the adjustments arising from the
new leasing rules are therefore recognised in the
opening balance sheet on January 1, 2019. The new
accounting policies are disclosed in Note 2.30.

On adoption of IFRS 16, the Group recognised lease
liabilities in relation to leases which had previously been
classified as ‘operating leases’ under the principles of
IAS 17 “Leases”. These liabilities were measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments,
discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing
rate as of January 1, 2019. The weighted average
lessee's incremental borrowing rate applied to the lease
liabilities on January 1, 2019 was 14.02%.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(i)

Practical expedients applied

In applying IFRS 16 for the first time, the Group
has used the following practical expedients
permitted by the standard:

° applying a single discount rate to a portfolio
of leases with reasonably similar
characteristics

o relying on previous assessments on whether
leases are onerous as an alternative to
performing an impairment review — there
were no onerous contracts as at January 1,
2019

o accounting for operating leases with a
remaining lease term of less than 12 months
as at January 1, 2019 as short-term leases

o excluding initial direct costs for the
measurement of the right-of-use asset at
the date of initial application, and

° using hindsight in determining the lease
term where the contract contains options to
extend or terminate the lease.

The Group has also elected not to reassess
whether a contract is, or contains a lease at the
date of initial application. Instead, for contracts
entered into before the transition date the Group
relied on its assessment made applying IAS 17
and Interpretation 4 Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease.

2. EESHHRREE &)

22 EIEERSE(H)

(i)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BB HRRN T (8)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EEEHBREEE)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued) 22 SEHHEBE (E)
(ii) Measurement of lease liabilities (i) HESEBENE
2019
2019 £
RMB’ 000
AR®T T
Operating lease commitments disclosed 2018412 A 31 BiRFEH
as at December 31, 2018 LS E A 18,310
Discounted using the lessee’s incremental & /X EEF B {2 A A &
borrowing rate of at the date of B EERAEEITITR
initial application 10,204
(Less): short-term leases not recognised ORE) : RIERBEEM
as a liability MHIEE (3,148)
Lease liability recognised as at 201961 A1 BEREN
January 1, 2019 HEAE 7,056
Of which are; B
Current lease liabilities mEBHEEAG 4,810
Non-current lease liabilities FERBEEEE 2,246
7,056
(iii) Measurement of right-of-use assets (iii) FEAEEENGE

The associated right-of-use assets for property
leases were measured on a retrospective basis as
if the new rules had always been applied. Other
right-of use assets were measured at the amount
equal to the lease liabilities, adjusted by the
amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments
relating to that lease recognised in the balance
sheet as at December 31, 2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

Adjustments recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position on January 1,
2019

The change in accounting policy affected the
following items in the consolidated statement of
financial position on January 1, 2019:

o right-of-use assets — increase by
RMB7,528,000

o prepayments, deposits and other receivables
— decrease by RMB472,000

o lease liabilities — increase by RMB7,056,000
There was no impact on retained earnings on
January 1, 2019.

Lessor accounting

The Group did not need to make any adjustments
to the accounting for assets held as lessor under

operating leases as a result of the adoption of
IFRS 16.

2. EESHHRREE &)

22 EIEERSE(H)

(iv)

(v)

Ml
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BB HRRN T (8)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Consolidation and subsidiaries
2.3.1 Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ﬁﬁ#&%ﬁﬁﬂlf (Il\/\>

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Consolidation and subsidiaries (Continued)

2.3.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to
account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the
former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement.
|dentifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially
at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-
acquisition basis. Non-controlling interests in
the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the entity's net
assets in the event of liquidation are
measured at either fair value or the present
ownership interests’ proportionate share in
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at
their acquisition date fair value, unless
another measurement basis is required by
IFRS. Acquisition-related costs are expensed
as incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ﬁﬁ#&%ﬁTTﬂf(/w\)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Consolidation and subsidiaries (Continued)

2.3.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

Business combinations (Continued)

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value
at the acquisition date; any gains or losses
arising from such re-measurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the Group is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the
fair value of the contingent consideration that
is deemed to be an asset or liability is
recognised in accordance with IAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
(“IAS 39") either in profit or loss or as a
change to other comprehensive income.
Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the
acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwvill.
If the total of consideration transferred, non-
controlling interest recognised and
previously held interest measured is less
than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recognised
directly in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

156 MIEHOLDINGS CORPORATION / ANNUAL REPORT 2019

2. BEESHEE

jﬁg (IIE)

23 BHRFAR ()

2.3.1 A6 (&)

(a)

RBEO ()

W%%éﬁ B B

- W 75 2 B IR
%E%ﬁ%\F%$E
HIMBREE - W E A
B BEEH
& ENFFEEAMNT
A B EE R HER o

NEEEEENEAIEL
BHEERKEBEHBRNA
REBEENFE - WHRAEE
EXEENXEHER
REEMNEEZE R
% B PR & 5t 2E B 8539
e TA : ERME
E([IAS 39)) R E -
fEBEFh e EAEMER
ABWEN BB ER - D
HARRNRAHETR
EHFE H2BOE
BERERPARE -

PREEEE  REES
B ] FE 122 1 1 s B
B RERWIET 2 Al
EfI R W B HIm
NAEE BBEBAR
PERFEEQEERN
BB REE - WP
EENE - mRHEM
FEPEFIMERE a1 S 2 AU HF
BoEmc 8 - BERE
FREVFEEMN DR
BE  ASZBBER
A PR A e R T A

e



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BB HRRNE (8)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Consolidation and subsidiaries (Continued)

2.3.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(a) Business combinations (Continued)

Intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. WWhen
necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries
have been adjusted to conform with the
Group’s accounting policies.

(b) Changes in ownership interests in
subsidiaries without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions — that
is, as transactions with the owners of the
subsidiary in their capacity as owners. The
difference between fair value of any
consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying amount of net
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-
controlling interests are also recorded in

equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ﬁﬁ#&%ﬁTTﬂf(/w\)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Continued)

Eggﬁﬁy jﬁjg<nﬂ)

2.3 Consolidation and subsidiaries (Continued) 23 AHRFLR(ME)

2.3.1 Consolidation (Continued) 2.3.1 88t (&)

(c) Disposals of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control any
retained interest in the entity is remeasured
to its fair value at the date when control is
lost, with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is
the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate, joint venture or
financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.

2.3.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving a dividend
from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary
in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount
in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee's net assets including goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBERBE(H)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 Associates 24 HE&NTF

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased
or decreased to recognise the investor's share of the
profit or loss of the investee after the date of
acquisition. The Group's investments in associates
include goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon the
acquisition of the ownership interest in an associate,
any difference between the cost of the associate and
the Group's share of the net fair value of the associate’s
identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for as
goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.

The Group's share of post-acquisition profit or loss is
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, and its share of post-acquisition
movements in other comprehensive income is
recognised in other comprehensive income with a
corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the
investment. When the Group’s share of losses in an
associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBEBE(E)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 Associates (Continued) 24 BT (HE)

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and
its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent
to ‘share of profit/(loss) of investments accounted for
using equity method’ in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and its
associate are recognised in the Group’'s financial
statements only to the extent of unrelated investor's
interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of associates have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates
are recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BB HRRNE (8)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Joint arrangements

The Group applies IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements (“IFRS
11") to all joint arrangements. Under IFRS 11
investments in joint arrangements are classified as
either joint operations or joint ventures depending on
the contractual rights and obligations of each investor.
The Company has assessed the nature of its joint
arrangements and determined them to be joint
operations.

2.5.1 Joint operations

The Group's development and production
activities in the PRC are conducted, through its
subsidiaries, jointly with others through PSCs.
These PSCs establish joint control over the
development and production activities. The assets
are not owned by a separate legal entity but are
controlled by individual participants in the PSCs.
Each participant is entitled to a predetermined
share of the related output and bears an agreed
share of the costs.

The consolidated financial statements reflect:

° the Group's share of any assets used in the
joint operations;

o any liabilities that the Group incurred;

° the Group's share of any liabilities incurred
jointly with the other PSC partners in relation
to the joint production;

° any income from the sale or use of the
Group's share of the output of the
production, together with its share of any
expenses incurred in the production; and

o any expense that the Group has incurred in
respect of its interests in the production.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The functional currency of the
Company is United States dollar (“US$”). The
presentation currency of the consolidated financial
statements is RMB.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are
recognised in profit or loss. Foreign exchange
gains and losses that relate to borrowings and
cash and cash equivalents are presented in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income
within ‘finance income’ or ‘finance costs'.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value
was determined. Translation differences on assets
and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as
part of the fair value gain or loss. For example,
translation differences on non-monetary assets
and liabilities such as equities held at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in profit or
loss as part of the fair value gain or loss and
translation differences on non-monetary assets
such as equities classified as fair value through
other comprehensive income are recognised in
other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyper-inflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of the statement
of financial position;

(i) income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the
dates of the transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate. Currency translation differences
arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(d)

Disposals of foreign operation and partial
disposal

On the disposals of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposals of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposals involving loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
a disposals involving loss of joint control over a
joint venture that includes a foreign operation, or a
disposals involving loss of significant influence
over an associate that includes a foreign
operation), all of the currency translation
differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposals that does not
result in the Group losing control over a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation, the proportionate
share of accumulated currency translation
differences are re-attributed to non-controlling
interests and are not recognised in profit or loss.
For all other partial disposals (that is, reductions in
the Group’s ownership interest in associates or
joint ventures that do not result in the Group
losing significant influence or joint control) the
proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
differences is reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Continued)

EZETTHRABE (&)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment 27 T8BHE - - IREEE

Property, plant and equipment, including oil and gas
properties, are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation, depletion, amortisation and impairment.
Historical cost includes expenditures that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of any replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to profit or loss during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

The cost of oil and gas properties is amortised at the
field level based on the unit of production method. Unit
of production rates are based on oil and gas proved and
probable developed producing reserves estimated to be
recoverable from existing facilities based on the current
terms of the respective production agreements. The
Group’s reserves estimates represent crude oil and gas
which management believes can be reasonably
produced within the current terms of their production
agreements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7

2.8

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate their cost or revalued
amounts, net of their residual values, over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings and improvements 7-10 years
Office equipment 3 years
Motor vehicles and production equipment 10 years

The asset’s residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period. An asset’s carrying amount is
written down immediately to its recoverable amount if
the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognised within ‘Other (losses)/gains, net’ in profit
or loss.

Exploration and evaluation expenditure

The successful efforts method of accounting is used for
oil and gas exploration and production activities. Under
this method, all costs for development wells, supporting
equipment and facilities, and proved mineral interests in
oil and gas properties are capitalised. Geological and
geophysical costs are expensed when incurred. Costs
of exploratory wells (including certain geophysical costs
which are directly attributable to the drilling of these
wells) are capitalised as exploration and evaluation
assets pending determination of whether the wells find
proved oil and gas reserves. Proved oil and gas reserves
are the estimated quantities of crude oil and natural gas
which geological and engineering data demonstrate
with reasonable certainty to be recoverable in future
years from known reservoirs under existing economic
and operating conditions, i.e., prices and costs as of the
date the estimate is made. Prices include consideration
of changes in existing prices provided only by
contractual arrangements, but not on escalations based
upon future conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Continued)

EZETTHRABE (&)

2.8 HERMFHES L (F)

2.8 Exploration and evaluation expenditure

(Continued)

Exploratory wells in areas not requiring major capital
expenditures are evaluated for economic viability within
one year of completion of drilling. The related well costs
are expensed as dry holes if it is determined that such
economic viability is not attained. Otherwise, the related
well costs are reclassified to oil and gas properties and
subject to impairment review. For exploratory wells that
are found to have economically viable reserves in areas
where major capital expenditure will be required before
production can commence, the related well costs
remain capitalised only if additional drilling is under way
or firmly planned. Otherwise the related well costs are
expensed as dry holes. The Group does not have any
costs of unproved properties capitalised in oil and gas
properties.

Identifiable exploration assets acquired are recognised
as assets at their fair value, as determined by the
requirements of business combinations. Exploration and
evaluation expenditure incurred subsequent to the
acquisition of an exploration asset in a business
combination is accounted for in accordance with the
policy outlined above.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BB HRRN T (8)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Intangible assets

Intangible assets represent computer software, mining
rights and goodwvill.

(a) Computer software

Acquired computer software licences are
capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to
acquire and bring to use the specific software.
These costs are amortised over their estimated
useful lives of three years.

(b) Mining rights

Mining rights are amortised based on the unit of
production method.

Unit of production rates are based on oil and gas
proved and probable reserves estimated to be
recoverable from existing facilities based on the
current terms of the respective production
agreements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.9

(c)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries
and represents the excess of the consideration
transferred over the Company'’s interest in net fair
value of the net identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated to
each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs"), or
groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination. Each unit or
group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the entity at
which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at
the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate a potential impairment.
The carrying value of goodwill is compared to the
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value
in use and the fair value less costs to sell. Any
impairment is recognised immediately as an
expense and is not subsequently reversed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EEETBERAE(E)

POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets 210 FEMEERE
Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or FRETTNRENERLEENH X
intangible assets not ready to use are not subject to A ERNELEEESHY B
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. FEAGRBEETIE o BTE
Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for MEESNEESEENE R HIRE
impairment whenever events or changes in b M@ REERLEHKER - 5
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may HELSHE - BREEXZEHAEE
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised W TE {8 6B 280 L AT UK [B] < BB MO SRR R
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount ReonkbcBAEENANLEE
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable WEHER AR FREBERE RS
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs & o ETREER - EELA
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing B ERESRENR/NERM (R
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for SELEEN)DE - HIRBERHIE
which there are separately identifiable cash flows. Non- SREE (BEBRIN RS 2R E H
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an TR Al REETTRIERE T -

impairment are reviewed for possible reversal at each
reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Continued)

EZETTHRABE (&)

2.11 Disposal groups classified as held for sale and 21N HFEGENEBANKLEE

discontinued operation

Disposal groups are classified as held for sale when
their carrying amount is to be recovered principally
through a sale transaction and a sale is considered
highly probable. The disposal group, are stated at the
lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to
sell. Deferred tax assets, assets arising from employee
benefits, financial assets (other than investments in
subsidiaries and associates), which are classified as
held for sale, would continue to be measured in
accordance with the policies set out elsewhere in Note
2.

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group's
business, the operations and cash flows of which can
be clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and
which represents a separate major line of business or
geographic area of operations, or is part of a single co-
ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of
business or geographical area of operations, or is a
subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

When an operation is classified as discontinued, a single
amount is presented in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, which comprises the post-tax
profit or loss of the discontinued operations and the
post-tax gain or loss recognised on the measurement to
fair value less costs to sell, or on the disposals of the
assets or disposal group(s) constituting the discontinued
operations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBEBE(E)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.12 Investments and other financial assets 212 REMEMESMEE
2.12.1 Classification 2121 98

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

° those to be measured subsequently at fair
value (either through OCI or through profit or
loss), and

o those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity's
business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and
losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or
OCI. For investments in equity instruments that
are not held for trading, this will depend on
whether the Group has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition to account
for the equity investment at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI").

The Group reclassifies debt investments when
and only when its business model for managing
those assets changes.

172 MIEHOLDINGS CORPORATION / ANNUAL REPORT 2019

AEEKESHEEDER
AT E 28R :

e HERAAMBETAR
@t E (A EER
ARAAERE WK E B
BEEtEl R

o  IREMKAE -

DERARAEEEE SR
BEMNEBEARRESRE

BB KUK -

HRUARRBEFENSHE
BE  HMFMBEXRFAR
sk H AR A Was o BN IE
RHUNERTERE  H
M MB R ERBIURR
AREBENRERR S
AN R JBSH B 2 1 W R L A
ERARREBEFAEARE
BEt AR AR S as -

EEEEZEEENEBR
ABLEEE  AEEAY
BEREREETENE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

2122

2123

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the financial
assets have expired or have been transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of
a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL"), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried
at FVTPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BB HRRN T (8)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

2.12.3 Measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’'s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

o Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in other (losses)/gains together
with foreign exchange gains and losses.
Impairment losses are presented as
separate line item in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BB HRRNE (8)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Investments and other financial assets

(Continued)

2.12.3 Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the
financial assets, where the assets’ cash
flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest, are measured at FVOCI.
Movements in the carrying amount are
taken through OCI, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses,
interest income and foreign exchange gains
and losses which are recognised in profit or
loss.

When the financial asset is derecognised,
the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OCl is reclassified from equity
to profit or loss and recognised in other
(losses)/gains. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method.
Foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in other (losses)/gains and
impairment expenses are presented as
separate line item in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BB HRRN T (8)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

2.12.3 Measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)

o FVTPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria
for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured
at FVTPL. A gain or loss on a debt
investment that is subsequently measured
at FVTPL is recognised in profit or loss and
presented net within other (losses)/gains in
the period in which it arises.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2.

RS AT (8)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

2.12.3 Measurement (Continued)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group's
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in OCI,
there is no subsequent reclassification of fair
value gains and losses to profit or loss following
the derecognition of the investment. Dividends
from such investments continue to be recognised
in profit or loss as other income when the Group's
right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at
FVTPL are recognised in other (losses)/gains in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as applicable. Impairment losses (and
reversal of impairment losses) on equity
investments measured at FVOCI are not reported
separately from other changes in fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBEBE(H)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Investments and other financial assets

212 REMEMEREE (&)

(Continued)

2124 Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its
debt instruments carried at amortised cost and
FVOCI. The impairment methodology applied
depends on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by IFRS 9, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised
from initial recognition of the receivables, see
Note 15 for further details.

2.13 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the statement of financial position
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not
be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the
event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
company or the counterparty.

2.14 Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised
at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently re-measured at their fair
value. The Group has not designated any derivative
financial instruments as hedging instruments. Changes
in the fair value of these derivative instruments are
recognised immediately in profit or loss with ‘Other
(losses)/gains, net'.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBERBE(H)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.15 Inventories 215 78

Inventories are crude oil and materials and supplies
which are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable
value. Materials and supplies costs are determined
using the first-in first-out method. Crude oil costs are
determined using the weighted average cost method.
The cost of crude oil comprises direct labour,
depreciation, other direct costs and related production
overhead, but excludes borrowing costs.

2.16 Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course
of business. They are generally due for settlement
within one year and therefore are all classified as
current.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they
contain significant financing components, when they
are recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade
receivables with the objective to collect the contractual
cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
See Note 15 for further information about the Group's
accounting for trade receivables and Note 3.1 for a
description of the Group’s impairment policies.

2.17 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held
at call with banks or other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBEBE(E)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Share capital 2.18 A

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Mandatorily
redeemable preference shares are classified as
liabilities.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the Company's
equity share capital (shares held in trust), the
consideration paid, including any directly attributable
incremental costs (net of income taxes) is deducted
from equity attributable to owners of the Company until
the shares are cancelled or reissued. Where such
ordinary shares are subsequently reissued, any
consideration received, net of any directly attributable
incremental transaction costs and the related income
tax effects, is included in equity attributable to the
Company's equity holders.

Where the Company’s shares are acquired from the
market by trust under the employee share scheme, the
total consideration of shares acquired from the market
(including any directly attributable incremental costs) is
presented as shares held for employee share scheme
and deducted from total equity. Upon vesting, the
related costs of the vested shares for employee share
scheme purchased from the market are credited to
shares held for employee share scheme, with a
corresponding decrease in employee share-based
compensation reserve for employee share scheme.

180 MIEHOLDINGS CORPORATION / ANNUAL REPORT 2019

EBBR ) Rt o SRR
EEEESERAE-

BEEBRBN BTSRRI
FX 7N A #E 25 R 51 A P15 3RO R
(FEEBIR) °

T EERRBARNR R ED
BA(ERFARD) - A fTaY
(B BREMERMTENFIGKRAR
(FBRFA1SHL) - B BRBRA R BT
BENRRPNG  AERMEOE
HREMBTRL - MM EREK
BHET A WEEIE (0
BRAEMBERMENITIERZER R
HEXTZENMEN) BRERB
RARBIRBENEEA °

EREBRDFET @ BBEEHE
AN SERNARRE  #A
RME LERNEENHE(ES
EAEZRNA D ERIEEKA)
18 B B0 5t Bl P #F A A (A8 Y
Pk - —B17H# - REER
ErBIE AFR™S LBENDTE
PR HERA A AT AR B B FT &l
AR - R R8RSl
T EY R B B S RV R AR FE RO R

Do



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BB HRRNE (8)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case
the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

(i) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period in the
countries where the Company’s subsidiaries
operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to
be paid to the tax authorities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(ii)

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated
statement of financial position. However, deferred
income tax liabilities are not recognised if they
arise from the initial recognition of goodwill, and
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it
arises from the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax
rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of reporting
period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilized.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BB HRRNE (8)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements,
except for deferred income tax liability where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference
is controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
arrangements only to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary difference will reverse in the
future and there is sufficient taxable profit
available against which the temporary difference
can be utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income tax
assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the same
taxable entity or different taxable entities where
there is an intention to settle the balances on a
net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Borrowings

2.21

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for
liquidity services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ﬁﬁ#&%ﬁﬁﬂlf (Il\/\>

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Continued)

Eggﬁﬁk jﬁg(nﬂ)

2.22 Trade payables 2.22 EFERRX

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Trade payables are classified
as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or
less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if
longer). If not, they are presented as non-current
liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

2.23 Provisions

Provisions are recognised, when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation, and the amount
can be reliably estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as
a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item included in
the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the
provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBEBE(E)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.23 Provisions (Continued) 2.23 %45 ()

Asset retirement obligations (including future
decommissioning and restoration) which meet the
criteria of provisions are recognised as provisions and
the amount recognised is the present value of the
estimated future expenditure determined in accordance
with local conditions and requirements, while a
corresponding addition to the related oil and gas
properties of an amount equivalent to the provision is
also created. This is subsequently depleted as part of
the costs of the oil and gas properties. Interest
expenses from the assets retirement obligations for
each period are recognised with the effective interest
method during the useful life of the related oil and gas
properties.

2.24 Employee benefits

(a) Defined contribution plan

The Group has various defined contribution plans
for state pensions, housing fund and other social
obligations in accordance with the local conditions
in the PRC and practices in the municipalities and
province in which they operate. A defined
contribution plan is a pension and/or other social
benefits plan under which the Group pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity (a fund) and
will have no legal or constructive obligations to
pay further contributions if the fund does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employees benefits
relating to employee service in the current and
prior periods. The contributions are recognised as
employee benefit expense when they are due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.24 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Other post-employment obligations

Some group companies provide post-retirement
healthcare benefits to their retirees. The
entitlement to these benefits is usually conditional
on the employee remaining in service up to
retirement age and the completion of a minimum
service period. The expected costs of these
benefits are accrued over the period of
employment using the same accounting
methodology as used for defined benefit pension
plans. Actuarial gains and losses arising from
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are charged or credited to equity in
other comprehensive income in the period in
which they arise. These obligations are valued
annually by independent qualified actuaries.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group before
the normal retirement date, or when an employee
accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for
these benefits. The Group recognises termination
benefits at the earlier of the following dates: (a)
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer
of those benefits; and (b) when the entity
recognises costs for a restructuring that is within
the scope of IAS 37 and involves the payment of
termination benefits. In the case of an offer made
to encourage voluntary redundancy, the
termination benefits are measured based on the
number of employees expected to accept the
offer. Benefits falling due more than 12 months
after the end of the reporting period are
discounted to their present value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BB HRRN T (8)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.24 Employee benefits (Continued)
(d) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

2.25 Share-based payments

(a) Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

(i) Employee stock option

The Group operates a number of equity-
settled,share-based compensation plans,
under which the entity receives services
from employees as consideration for equity
instruments (options) of the Group. The fair
value of the employee services received in
exchange for the grant of the options is
recognised as an expense. The total amount
to be expensed is determined by reference
to the fair value of the options granted:

° including any market performance
conditions (for example, an entity’s
share price);
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERKI T (B

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.25 Share-based payments (Continued)

(a)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions (Continued)

(i)

Employee stock option (Continued)

° excluding the impact of any service
and non-market performance vesting
conditions (for example, profitability,
sales growth targets and remaining an
employee of the entity over a specified
time period); and

° including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the
requirement for employees to save or
holding shares for a specific period of
time).

In addition, in some circumstances
employees may provide services in advance
of the grant date and therefore the grant
date fair value is estimated for the purposes
of recognising the expense during the period
between service commencement period
and grant date.

At the end of each reporting period, the
Group revises its estimates of the number
of options that are expected to vest based
on the non-marketing performance and
service conditions. It recognises the impact
of the revision to original estimates, if any,
in profit or loss, with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ﬁﬁ#&%ﬁTTﬂf(/w\)

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.25 Share-based payments (Continued)

(a)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Employee stock option (Continued)

When the options are exercised, the shares
under exercise are transferred from trust
under employee share scheme to
employees. The proceeds received net of
any directly attributable transaction costs are
credited to share premium.

Share award scheme

The fair value of shares granted to
employees for nil consideration under stock
incentive compensation plan is recognised
as an expense over the relevant service
period, being the year to which the bonus
relates and the vesting period of the shares.
The fair value is measured at the grant date
of the shares and is recognised in equity in
the share-based payment reserve. The
number of shares expected to vest is
estimated based on the non-market vesting
conditions. The estimates are revised at the
end of each reporting period and
adjustments are recognised in profit or loss
and the share-based payment reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.25 Share-based payments (Continued)

(b)

()

Cash-settled share-based compensation

Compensation under the stock appreciation rights
is measured based on the fair value of the liability
incurred and is expensed over the vesting period.
The liability is remeasured at each reporting period
to its fair value until settlement with all the
changes in liability related to the vested portion
recorded as employee benefit expense in profit or
loss, the related liability is included in the salaries
and welfare payable.

Share-based payment transactions among
group entities

The grant by the Company of options over its
equity instruments to the employees of subsidiary
undertakings in the Group is treated as a capital
contribution. The fair value of employee services
received, measured by reference to the grant date
fair value, is recognised over the vesting period as
an increase to investment in subsidiary
undertakings, with a corresponding credit to
equity in the parent entity accounts.

2.26 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, and represents
amounts receivable for goods supplied, stated net of
discounts returns and value added taxes. The Group
recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured; when it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the entity; and when
specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s
activities, as described below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BB HRRN T (8)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.26 Revenue recognition (Continued)
Accounting policy on the recognition of sales income:

Revenue is recognised upon the satisfaction of
performance obligations, which occurs when control of
the good or service transfers to the customer.

Control can transfer at a point in time or over time. A
performance obligation is satisfied over time if one of
the following criteria is met:

— The customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits of the entity's
performance as the entity performs (e.g., certain
services).

— The entity's performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls.

—  The entity’s performance does not create an asset
with alternative use to the entity and the entity
has an enforceable right to payment (cost plus a
reasonable profit margin) for performance
completed to date.

A performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time if
it does not meet one of the criteria above.

All revenues of the Group are recognised at a point in
time.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Continued)

EZETTHRABE (&)

2.27 Interest income 2.27 R BWA

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost
and financial assets at FVOCI is calculated using the
effective interest method is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as
part of other gains/(losses) .

Interest income is presented as finance income where
it is earned from financial assets that are held for cash
management purposes(see Note 30 below). Any other
interest income is included in other gains/(losses).

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset except for financial assets that subsequently
become credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial
assets the effective interest rate is applied to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset (after deduction
of the loss allowance).

2.28 Dividend income

Dividends are received from financial assets measured
at FVTPL and at FVOCI. Dividends are recognised as
other income in profit or loss when the right to receive
payment is established. This applies even if they are
paid out of pre-acquisition profits, unless the dividend
clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of an
investment. In this case, the dividend is recognised in
OCI if it relates to an investment measured at FVOCI.
However, the investment may need to be tested for
impairment as a consequence.

2.29 Repairs and maintenance

Repairs and maintenance are recognised as expenses
in the year in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBEBE(E)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.30 Leases 2.30 fHE

As explained in Note 2.2 above, the Group has changed
its accounting policy for leases where the Group is the
lessee. The new policy is described below and the
impact of the change in Note 2.2.

The Group leases various offices and cars. Rental
contracts are typically made for fixed periods of 1 to 5
years. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis
and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any
covenants, but leased assets may not be used as
security for borrowing purposes.

Until December 31, 2018, leases in which a significant
portion of the risks and rewards of ownership were not
transferred to the Group as lessee were classified as
operating leases (Note 37). Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) were charged to profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease.

From January 1, 2019, leases are recognised as a right-
of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at
which the leased asset is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to the lease and non-lease components
based on their relative stand-alone prices. However, for
leases of real estate for which the Group is a lessee, it
has elected not to separate lease and non-lease
components and instead accounts for these as a single
lease component.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBERBE(H)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.30 Leases (Continued) 2.30 HE (&)

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease
payments:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

° variable lease payment that are based on an index
or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at the commencement date;

° amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;

° the exercise price of a purchase option if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise that
option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if
the lease term reflects the Group exercising that
option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement
of the liability. The lease payments are discounted using
the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot
be readily determined, which is generally the case for
leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing
rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee
would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to
obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset
in a similar economic environment with similar terms,
security and conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EESHBEBE(E)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.30 Leases (Continued) 2.30 fHE (&)

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the
Group:

° where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting
point, adjusted to reflect changes in financing
conditions since third party financing was
received;

° uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-
free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases
held by the Group, which does not have recent
third party financing, and makes adjustments
specific to the lease, e.g. term, country, currency
and security.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in
variable lease payments based on an index or rate,
which are not included in the lease liability until they
take effect. When adjustments to lease payments
based on an index or rate take effect, the lease liability
is reassessed and adjusted against the right-of-use
asset. Lease payments are allocated between principal
and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit
or loss over the lease period so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising
the following:

° the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives

received;

o any initial direct costs, and restoration costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RS AT (8)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.30 Leases (Continued)

2.31

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a
straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain to
exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of
equipment and vehicles are recognised on a straight-
line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term
leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or
less.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group
is a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line
basis over the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in
obtaining an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the underlying asset and recognised as
expense over the lease term on the same basis as
lease income. The respective leased assets are included
in the balance sheet based on their nature. The Group
did not need to make any adjustments to the accounting
for assets held as lessor as a result of adopting the new
leasing standard.

Dividend distributions

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group's and the
Company's financial statements in the period in which
the dividends are approved by the Company's
shareholders.

2.32 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating
decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the Board of Directors
of the Company (Note 5).
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2.31

2.32
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ﬁﬁ#&%ﬁTTﬂf(/w\)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. BXEKRER

31K REBEE

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk, fair
value interest rate risk, oil price risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group's financial performance. The Group uses
derivative financial instruments to hedge certain risk
exposures, but hedge accounting had not been applied.

Risk management is carried out by the Company
headquarter financial department (“Group Finance
Team”) on a regular basis under policies approved by
the Board of Directors. Group Finance Team identifies,
evaluates and hedges financial risks in close co-
operation with the Group’s operating units. The Board
of Directors provides written principles for overall risk
management, as well as written policies covering
specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest
rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative financial
instruments and non-derivative financial instruments,
and investment of excess liquidity.

(a) Market risk
(i)  Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and is
exposed to foreign exchange risk arising
from various currency exposures, primarily
with respect to the US dollar (US$),
Canadian Dollar (“C$") and Hong Kong
Dollar (HK$). Foreign exchange risk arises
from future commercial transactions,
recognised assets and liabilities and net
investments in foreign operations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

RMB is not a freely convertible currency and
is regulated by the PRC government.
Limitation in foreign exchange transactions
imposed by the PRC government could
cause future exchange rates to vary
significantly from current or historical
exchange rates. Management is not in a
position to anticipate changes in the PRC
foreign exchange regulations and as such is
unable to reasonably anticipate the impacts
on the Group’s results of operations or
financial position arising from future changes
in exchange rates.

The Group has certain investments in
foreign operations, whose net assets are
exposed to foreign currency translation risk.
Currency exposure arising from the net
assets of the Group's foreign operations is
managed primarily through borrowings
denominated in the relevant foreign
currencies.

At December 31, 2019, if US$ had
weakened/strengthened by 1% against the
HK$ with all other variables held constant,
the Group’s pre-tax loss for the year ended
December 31, 2019 would have been
RMB8.2 million higher/lower respectively,
mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains/
losses on translation of HK$ denominated
borrowings.

3. MEBEREE(E)

3.1 MBEREZ(E)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)
3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3.

M EREE ()

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

3.1 MBEREZ(E)

(a) Market risk (Continued) (a) THER(HE)
(i)  Foreign exchange risk (Continued) (i) SMERE (&)
The above analysis represents AR T ERE
management’s assessment of reasonably HEET—EEEAE
possible changes in foreign exchange rates *BFEINESEEL

(ii)

over the period until the next annual balance
sheet date. The analysis is performed on the
same basis for the years presented.

Fair value interest rate risk
The Group's interest rate risk arises from

borrowings, including bank loans and senior
notes payable. The Company's 7.5%, 5

(ii)

AIREMERRT G DT
B EL R B DA R IR E R
— o

RABEFIFRE
AEBEHNNXEBRKE

&K BIERITHE M
ENBEAERE - AR

years senior notes, which was due and BEITHE R20194F
exchanged in 2019, and the Company’s BBRHNEBRTLS% &
13.75%, 3 years senior notes due 2022 are HSFEMEBEZEEUR

collectively referred to as “Senior Notes”.
Borrowings issued at variable rates expose
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk
which is partially offset by cash held at
variable rates. Borrowings issued at fixed
rates expose the Group to fair value interest
rate risk. During year 2019, the borrowings
carrying fixed rates, were denominated in
US$ and HK$, while the borrowings carrying
floated rates, were denominated in C$.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. BERER(E)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

3.1 MBEREZ(E)

(a) Market risk (Continued) (a) THER(H)

(ii)

Fair value interest rate risk (Continued)

The Group analyses its interest rate
exposure on a dynamic basis. Various
scenarios are simulated taking into
consideration refinancing, renewal of
existing positions, alternative financing and
hedging. Based on these scenarios, the
Group calculates the impact on profit and
loss of a defined interest rate shift. For each
simulation, the same interest rate shift is
used for all currencies. The scenarios are run
only for liabilities that represent the major
interest-bearing positions.

The Group has no material interest bearing
cash assets. The Group's income and
operating cash flows are substantially
independent of the changes in market rates.
The Group's interest rates risk arises from
borrowings. A detailed analysis of the
Group's borrowings, together with their
respective effective interest rates and
maturity dates, are included in Note 27.

(ii)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BT BEmERN T (8)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. BXERER (&)
3.1 BBEREZ (&)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

%k ()

(a) Market risk (Continued) (a)

(iii)  Oil price risk

The Group is engaged in crude oil
development, production and selling
activities. Prices of crude oil are affected by
both domestic and global factors which are
beyond the control of the Group. The
fluctuations in such prices may have
favourable or unfavourable impacts to the
Group. Therefore the Group was exposed to
general price fluctuations of crude oil and
natural gas.

(b) Credit risk

(i)

Risk management

As the majority of the cash at bank balance
is placed with major PRC state-owned banks
and financial institutions, the Directors are of
their opinion that the corresponding credit
risk is relatively low. Therefore, credit risk
arises primarily from trade and other
receivables and risk management contracts.
The Group has controls in place to assess
the credit quality of its customers and
closely monitor significant counterparties
and dealing with a broad section of partner’s
that diversify risk within the sector. The
carrying amounts of cash and cash
equivalents, pledged deposits, amounts due
from related parties and trade and other
receivables and risk management contracts
included in the consolidated statements of
financial position represent the Group's
maximum exposure to credit risk. At
December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Group
has no significant concentration of credit risk
for its cash and cash equivalents.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)
3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3.

M EREE ()

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

3.1 MBEREZ(E)

(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) AR (&)
(i)  Risk management (Continued) (i) EBEEEE)

During the year ended December 31, 2019,
the Group has one customer in China and

B E2019F12A31H
HEE AEEE—E

customers and joint operation partners REEEMERRINE
concentrated within western Canada which RAZHEE KR LK

in aggregate accounts for 78.4% (2018:
64.6%) of the Group’s revenue and as such,
has concentration of credit risk for its trade

BEEE  BETREY
HAREEKZA78.4%
(20184 : 64.6%)

and other receivables. However, the Group I 7S £5 B Y e U R EL A
regards it as low risk as the customer in JEWBR RN FEE R ES

China is PetroChina Company Limited

R - AT ARAE

(“PetroChina”) , a PRC state-owned BEFRENE—RFA
enterprise with high credit rating in China BEERERIHRNES
who have credit ratings which are deemed 12 B B R AR

acceptable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BT BEmERN T (8)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. BXERER (&)
3.1 BBEREZ (&)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) {=HEBE(H)

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group has three types of financial
assets that are subject to the expected
credit loss model:

° trade receivables

o other receivables

° debt investments carried at FVOCI.

While cash and cash equivalents are also
subject to the impairment requirements of
IFRS 9, the identified impairment loss was
immaterial.

Trade receivables

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit
losses which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all trade receivables.

To measure the expected credit losses,
trade receivables have been grouped based
on shared credit risk characteristics and the
days past due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BB HRRNE (8)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. BERER(E)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BEEREEE(E)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(ii) Impairment of financial assets
(Continued)

On that basis, the loss allowance was
determined as follows for trade receivables:

(b) AR (8

(i) & mEE i ()

By - NEERERTE
WERRMBREE A

BER :
Over
0-30days  31-180 days 180 days Total
iR R R
0-30% 31-180 % BB180 X @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTTL ARETT ARETT
As at December 31, 2019 R2019%12A31H
Expected loss rate BHERERAX - - 0%
Gross carrying amount FRAE
— trade receivables — WS 61,238 - 136 61,374
Loss allowance BXEE - - - -
As at December 31, 2018 R2018%12A31H
Expected loss rate BHERBRLXR - - 23%
Gross carrying amount EaED
— trade receivables — IR 66,862 1,000 2,514 70,376
Loss allowance BREE - - 585 585
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)
3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3.

M EREE ()

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

3.1 MBEREZ(E)

(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) AR (&)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (i) ZFEERE (&)
(Continued)

The loss allowances for trade receivables
reconcile to the opening loss allowances as

follows:

AR e W AR SRR 2K
BEAREHTIERE
- REEWT :

2019 2018
2019 & 20184F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%ET R ARETIT
Opening loss allowance 181 BB LRE
at 1 January 585 22,530
Increase in the loss allowance  ARNEEzt ABZEHY
recognised in profit or loss 18 S B Y I AN
during the year
— Continuing operations — REgE 1,160 585
— Discontinued operations — R - 11,769
Receivables written off during  ZN4E E #% 85 B0 A U4 [E] Y
the year as uncollectible e (1,745) (1,109)
Exchange difference b H ZRE - (706)
Transfer to held for sale HERBHE - (32,484)
Closing loss allowance 12 A 31 HEIRB L EE
at 31 December - 585

Trade receivables are written off when there
is no reasonable expectation of recovery.
Indicators that there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery include, amongst
others, the failure of a debtor to engage in a
repayment plan with the Group.

Impairment losses on trade receivables are
presented as net impairment losses within
operating profit. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited
against the same line item.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BB HRRNE (8)

31

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

(ii) Impairment of financial assets

(Continued)

Debt investments

All of the entity’s debt investments at FVOCI
are considered to have low credit risk. Other
instruments are considered to be low credit
risk when they have a low risk of default and
the issuer has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near

term.

Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost
include loans to related parties and other

receivables.

3.

M EREE ()

3.1 MBEREZ(E)

(b)

= ARk (4)

(ii)

& bl (AR

BERKE

ITRBMBENRAREE
FHEREEBE AKM
FAEWANERRER
REBBIEERRRN
TREE MREMT
HEHRRSEL A 2%
TAEBAERHAE
TERRSREEHH
BoRpe S - BB RA
BERIEERER o

A BB A 5T B B E At
TREE

PABERRA AN ST E R ELA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3.

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets

(Continued)

Other financial assets at amortised cost

(Continued)

The loss allowance for other financial assets
at amortised cost reconciles to the opening

loss allowance as follows:

M EREE ()
3.1 HHEREZR(E)
(b) AR (8
(i) & mEE i ()

BB A Gt B BYE At
TREE (&)
ARE B G A B AR AR
ENHMSBEENRE

REBHEARERIEX
B BT

Related Other
parties receivables Total
BEE  HthERER &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETL
Opening loss allowance as 201818 1A
at 1 January 2018 FUNBRABE 297,357 594,616 891,973
Increase in the loss allowance AEEFTABRL
recognised in profit or loss BARBENEM
during the year
— Continuing operations — RERE 12,797 196,875 209,672
Reclassification of related party B HENSE (176,219) 176,219 =
Receivables written off during REE A E LR R
the year as uncollectible FEUR (107,711) (33,276) (140,987)
Unused amount reversed BONAAEE - (94,279) (94,279)
Exchange difference P =R 2,818 37,161 39,979
Closing loss allowance as 2018%12A31H
at December 31, 2018 FEREBREBE 29,042 877,316 906,358
Increase in the loss allowance REEFTABRM
recognised in profit or loss B EBRE N
during the year
— Continuing operations — R 698,758 14,079 712,837
Receivables written off during REFZHRNEZWRE
the year as uncollectible JRE IR (207,439) (408,298) (615,737)
Unused amount reversed BEMWARSH = (15,843) (16,843)
Exchange difference PE =R 13,632 11,068 24,700
Closing loss allowance as 20196 12A31H
at December 31, 2019 FRBABE 533,993 478322 1,012,315
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (Continued)

(ii) Impairment of financial assets
(Continued)

Debt investments at FVOCI/

Debt investments at FVOCI include unlisted
debt securities. The loss allowance for debt
investments at FVOCI is recognised in profit
or loss and reduces the fair value loss
otherwise recognised in OCI. There is no
loss allowance recognised in profit or loss
during the year.

Liquidity risk

Management aims to maintain sufficient cash to
meet funding requirement for operations and
monitors rolling forecasts of the Group’s cash on
the basis of expected cash flow.

3. UHEREEGR)
3.1 HHEREZR(E)
(b) fERER )

(i) & mEE i ()

URARBEHEARE
B AR A A MR
ERRE

AAnBEAEAHS
BEt AH ARG das i
BEREREREIFLHE
e URREEFER
HEFH A ARMMERA I
mAEEREBRERE
At AR FEE A
RAG AR S Wat
MAREBEERRX - KNF

BT ABRWBRE
1 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BB HRRN T (8)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

As described in Note 2.1.1, the Directors closely
monitors the Group’s cash flow projections, which
cover a period of not less than twelve months
from January 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021, to enable
it to meet its liabilities and obligations through:

(i) the Lenders and the Noteholders not taking
any actions against the Group to exercise
their rights to demand immediate payment
of the principals and interests of the Cross-
Defaulted Borrowings and the 2022 Senior
Notes before the finalisation of the Debt
Restructuring Plans and execution of the
Restructuring Agreements;

(i) successfully securing the required agreement
of the Lenders and the Noteholders and
completion of all necessary procedures by
the Group for the Restructuring Agreements
to be executed; and the Group's ability to
continuously comply with the terms and
conditions stipulated therein upon execution;

(i) actual oil prices throughout the forecast
period up to June 30, 2021 being in line with
the projected levels included in the cashflow
projections; and

(iv)  the Group's ability to generate operating
cash flows and to obtain additional sources
of financing, other than those mentioned
above, to finance the Group’s oil exploration
and production business, including capital
expenditures needed to drill new wells, as
well as other funding needs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

31

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(c)

3. MEBEREE(E)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 H¥EMEE(E)
Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) FREMEREM ()
The table below analyses the Group's financial TRERNEERNAKR G
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based ETES BB EIRRBEBEN
on the remaining period from the balance sheet | EAZE R - R S HI R
date to the contractual maturity date. As the 24 A 2 5 B 89 7 £ HA R &Y
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual DT RABENSEASE
undiscounted cash flows, these amounts will not R RA € FF S ARITIR
reconcile to the amounts disclosed on the BERE o
consolidated balance sheets for borrowings.
Less than Between 1 Between 2
1year and2years and5years Overb years
PR-F —-EWE —ZhE BERE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETT AR¥Tn AR¥Tn AR¥Tn
As at December 31, 2019 R2019F12A 318
Borrowings fa 1,832,831 396,248 1,732,846 -
Interest payables on borrowings  f&#(FI & 413,625 254,469 66,612 -
Trade and notes payable ERERRENZE 386,076 81,470 - -
Provisions, accruals and k- BREEMEE
other liabilities 162,191 - - 217,077
Lease liabilities HEARE 10,180 4,339 693 -
As at December 31, 2018 R2018F12A31H
Borrowings B 2,591,377 1,761,074 - -
Interest payables on borrowings  fE#(FI & 292,548 126,550 - -
Financial liabilities at FVTPL URREEEEAE
SARHERNEREE
— Principal — X% 297,908 = = =
— Interest payables — EIHE 37,239 = = =
Trade and notes payable ERERRERNRE 220,283 70,732 = -
Provisions, accruals and £ BREEMAE
other liabilities 177,167 - - 12,414
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of Debt over
EBITDA. Debt is calculated as total borrowings including
‘current and non-current borrowings’ as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position. EBITDA is
determined as loss before income tax from continuing
operations, before finance income, finance cost and
depreciation, depletion and amortisation.

The Debt over EBITDA ratios were as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

M EREE ()

32 BXER

AEENEREEYBER - RREAN
SEEEFELE  ARBRFRIRMHE
BMREAFNSREERERAME
R @R R ENENEBAREE
ZNDFN

AEBENEBHERNEZERT
(LA T~ f78 [EBITDAL) Lt & A E 2
ERFHEA - BHERERER
(BRAFIFBWRKRAIIRE R
BMIEMEER D) ° EBITDAFR
BRMBIA - MBER - TE
FE K SH AT YR N 5 BB A I BR AT
BEAER -

& 75 4 %8 B2 EBITDA A £k 51 & 41
™

2019 2018
2019 F 20184
RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR®BTRT ARETET

Total borrowings (Note 27) B4 5E (M3 27) 3,999,267 4,335,954
Loss before income tax from TR B KR

continuing operations P15 %% Bl B 1E (1,398,673) (784,960)
Finance income (Note 30) BRI (BT 5 30) (42,518) (22,603)
Finance cost (Note 30) 1758 A (£ 30) 605,803 614,352
Depreciation, depletion and e - P EEE

amortisation 348,751 329,318
EBITDA EBITDA (486,637) 136,107
Debt over EBITDA ratio EIS4AREEL EBITDA Ky LL R (8.2) 31.9

The Debt over EBITDA ratio changes from positive 31.9
to negative 8.2 was mainly due to the increase of loss
before income tax from continuing operations, as
compared to December 31, 2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

Financial assets and liabilities

(i)

Fair value hierarchy

The table below analyses the Group's financial
instruments carried at fair value as at December
31, 2019 by level of the inputs to valuation
technigues used to measure fair value. Such
inputs are categorised into three levels within a
fair value hierarchy as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (that is, as
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from
prices) (level 2).

° Inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs) (level 3).

3. MEBEREE(E)

3.3 AREEME

ERMEENTHEAE

(i)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. MBEREE(E)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AREEME (E)
Financial assets and liabilities (Continued) tREENEREE (E)
(i)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued) (i) AAEEERE)
The following table presents the Group’s financial TREJNAEBEUNAREE
assets that are measured at fair value. FTENERMEE -
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F-Bf E-ER FZEHR @t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARET:R

Financial assets tREE
As at December 31, 2019 R2019%12 5 31H
Financial assets at FVOCI WARBEGEAEE
STAE M ARA KER
— Equity investments (Note 120~ — iz % & (fitsE12) - - 41,491 41,491
— Debt investments (Note 12) —BRRE(HF12) - - 2,263 2,263

- - 43,754 43,754
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BB HRRNE (8)

31

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3.

(i)

M EREE ()

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 DAREEME (E)
Financial assets and liabilities (Continued) tREENEREE (E)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) (i) RAAEEERE)
The following table presents the Group’s financial TRV RNEBRR2018F 12
assets and liabilities that are measured at fair A31THUAARBETENS
value at December 31, 2018 MEEMSRAE -
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FER F_ER FZER a5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Financial assets SREE
As at December 31, 2018 R2018% 128 31H
Financial assets at FVTPL AR BETEALE
SAEHERNEREE
— Equity investments (Note 17)  — 4% & (B 17) 17,755 = - 17,765
Financial assets at FVOC| AR BENEAEEY
STAR AR A Wast
— Equity investments (Note 12) ~ — RE&53& & (FitiE12) - - 44,231 44,231
— Debt investments (Note 12) — EERE (fi312) = = 2,227 2227
17,755 - 46,458 64,213
Financial liabilities SRERE
As at December 31, 2018 R2018%12A 318
Financial liabilities at FVTPL AR BEGZAHZS
(Note 13) STAEHERRNERAR
(WizE13)
— The Public Notes — DRES - - 313,969 313,969
- - 313,969 313,969

There were no transfers between level 1, level 2

and level 3 during the year.

AEERE—ER B

AIAR B =B RE SR o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ﬁﬁ#&%ﬁTTﬂf(/w\)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. BKERER(E)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AREEMES(E)

Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

TRHEENSREE (H)

(i)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

(i) RAEEERE)

(a)  Financial instruments in level 1 @) HEE—ERANZET
A
The fair value of financial instruments traded TEERMBERRSNE
in active markets is based on quoted market BT EAREHRHA
prices at the end of reporting period. A AEBEEBENRT SR
market is regarded as active if quoted prices B WS HMESHNE
are readily and regularly available from an A S AT %&ﬁﬁ?&lﬁ
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, LA TTEDHE - T
pricing service, or regulatory agency, and Eﬁﬁ%%%?g#ﬂ&%
those prices represent actual and regularly EE  AZERNREKE
occurring market transactions on an arm's ﬁ%%ﬁ&%ﬁ%%ﬁéifﬂ@ﬁ
length basis. BR5  AZmERE
RS o
(b)  Financial instruments in level 2 b) HEE_EBRALEHT
A

The fair value of financial instruments that
are not traded in an active market (for
example, over-the-counter derivatives) is
determined by using valuation techniques.

REEABMBEERN

% & T A (Plans5 587
ETHR)NRAEEMN
RS ERMEE - fE

These valuation techniques maximise the RS R A HEm
use of observable market data where it is BER(ME) 2D
available and rely as little as possible on KRB ERRS T[T o
entity specific estimates. If all significant MEtE—SBMITAENRD
inputs required to fair value an instrument REBEEAENMEER

are observable, the instrument is included in
level 2. If one or more of the significant
inputs is not based on observable market
data, the instrument is included in level 3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERKI T (B

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. BERER(E)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3

D EEMSE (8

Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

TRHEENSREE (H)

(i)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

(c)

Financial instruments in level 3

With respect to the level 3 fair value

(i) RAEEERE)

(c)

HEE=ZERATEHT
A

~

HRAEBUARREE

measurement for the Group’s financial HAENERMEERIUE
assets at fair value that are unlisted equity “ERARBERERZE

investments and debt investments with no
active market exists, the Group’s finance
department benchmark to the market price
of certain comparable listed companies
within the same or similar operation/industry
and apply certain adjustments/discount for
non-marketability. At December 31, 2019,
the Directors are of their opinion that there
is a wide range of possible fair value
measurements and cost represents the best
estimate of fair value within that range.

MIBERIER AR A E / 2019 3k
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3. BBmEEEE(H)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

3.3 AREEME ()

Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

TRHEENSREE (#)

(ii)

Valuation techniques used to determine fair
values

Specific valuation techniques used to value
financial instruments include:

o the use of quoted market prices or dealer
quotes for similar instruments

o other valuation techniques, such as binomial
model is used to determine the fair value of
the share based payment, and market
approach is used to determine the fair value
of the equity investment in common shares
of unlisted company accounted at FVOCI.

Valuation process

The valuations as of the December 31, 2019 and
2018, respectively, performed by independent
professional valuer was adopted by the Group for
financial reporting purposes, including the equity
investment at FVOCI accounted for as level 3 fair
values. The external experts report directly to the
CFO.

The main level 3 inputs used by the Group are
derived and evaluated as follows:

o Enterprise value/proved and probable
reserve multiples (EV/2P reserve) used in
the valuation of the common shares of
unlisted company are estimated by making
reference to comparable trading multiples.

° Discounts for lack of marketability (DLOM)
are estimated based on European Put
Option model.
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3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(ii) Valuation techniques used to determine fair

values (Continued)

Valuation process (Continued)

Changes in level 3 fair values are analysed at the
end of each reporting period during the valuation
discussion between the CFO and external experts.
As part of this discussion the external experts
presents a report that explains the reason for the

fair value movements.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

3. UHEREEGR)
3.3 AAEEMAE (&)

SHEENSBER(R)
(i) PR A R B EE
i ()
(BB (4

REE®RER BFEMBE
TSN B B K I (B 51w P 4
FZEBNAREBEZI®
MDA o VB R w8 — B
Do NREREAT HRERE
BTAREBEEINRA -

Fair value at Range of inputs
RTSIRHAAEE 2HEM
Significant Relationship of significant
December 31, December 31, un-observable December 31, December 31, un-observable inputs
Description 2019 2018 Inputs* 2019 2018 to fair value
2019% 018  FE3 2019% 018F  FUHRLHENAEE
i 12A318 12318 FHE2H* 124318 12A318  H#E&
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TT AREFT
Equity investment in 41,491 44,231 EV/2P reserve 6.68 753 December 31, 2019:
common shares of multiples Increased EV/2P reserve multiples
the unlisted company REE/FA (1), would increase the fair value
HIEEMARLBR RAREE by RMB7.6 million. Increased
HERRE ES DLOM (5%), would decrease the
fair value by RMB2.8 million.
DLOM 18% 19% 2019128318 :
nB TR REBE/RARTEEEREA

There were no significant inter-relationships between
unobservable inputs that materially affect fair values.

BE BHARBEMARK 76
BB mBMAER% 8
BARBERSARE28BET

December 31, 2018:
Increased EV/2P reserve multiples
(1), would increase the fair value
by RMB6.5 million. Increased
DLOM (5%), would decrease the
fair value by RMB2.8 million.

2018%12A318 :
PEBE/RARTEEEREA
B8 BHAABEMARKGS
BET - RBIETEA 0% &
HOABERSARK28BET ©

* FAEBES B MBS AN

BEEMENE AR EBEES
N2 X
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BB HRRN T (8)

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be

reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year are addressed below.

(i) Going concern consideration

In the process of applying the Group's accounting
policies, apart from those involving estimates,
management has prepared the consolidated financial
statements on the assumption that the Group will be
able to operate as a going concern in the coming year,
which is a critical judgement that has the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements. The assessment of the going
concern assumption involves making a judgement by
the Directors, at a particular point of time, about the
future outcome of events or conditions which are
inherently uncertain. The Directors consider that the
Group has the capability to continue as a going concern
and the major events or conditions, which may give rise
to business risks, that individually or collectively may
cast significant doubt upon the going concern
assumption are set out in Note 2.1.1 to the consolidated

financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(ii)

Estimation of proved and probable reserves

Proved reserves are those quantities of petroleum that
by analysis of geoscience and engineering data can be
estimated with reasonable certainty to be commercially
recoverable, from a given date forward, from known
reservoirs and under defined economic conditions,
operating methods, and government regulations.
Economic conditions include consideration of changes
in existing prices provided only by contractual
arrangements, but not on escalations based upon future
conditions. Proved developed producing reserves are
expected to be recovered from completion intervals
that are open and producing at the time of the estimate.
Proved undeveloped reserves are quantities expected
to be recovered through future investments: from new
wells on undrilled acreage in known accumulations,
from extending existing wells to a different (but known)
reservoir, or from infill wells that will increase recovery.
Probable reserves are additional reserves that are less
certain to be recovered than proved reserves but which,
together with proved reserves, are as likely to be
recovered.

The Group's reserve estimates were prepared for each
oilfield and include only reserves that the Group
believes can be reasonably produced within current
economic and operating conditions.

4. BARSEHETRHE (&)

(ii)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(ii)

Estimation of proved and probable reserves
(Continued)

Proved and probable reserves cannot be measured
exactly. Reserve estimates are based on many factors
related to reservoir performance that require evaluation
by the engineers interpreting the available data, as well
as price and other economic factors. The reliability of
these estimates at any point in time depends on both
the quality and quantity of the technical and economic
data, and the production performance of the reservoirs
as well as engineering judgement. Consequently,
reserve estimates are subject to revision as additional
data become available during the producing life of a
reservoir. When a commercial reservoir is discovered,
proved reserves are initially determined based on
limited data from the first well or wells. Subsequent
data may better define the extent of the reservoir and
additional production performance. Well tests and
engineering studies will likely improve the reliability of
the reserve estimate. The evolution of technology may
also result in the application of improved recovery
technigues such as supplemental or enhanced recovery
projects, or both, which have the potential to increase
reserves beyond those envisioned during the early
years of a reservoir’s producing life.

In general, changes in the technical maturity of reserves
resulting from new information becoming available from
development and production activities and change in oil
and gas price have tended to be the most significant
cause of annual revisions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERKI T (B

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4,
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

BARE T ET R Al ()

(ii) TBE - THRREUAREL

(iii) Depletion, depreciation and amortisation of

property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets

In addition to the depletion, depreciation and
amortisation of oil and gas properties, mining extraction
and mining rights using the unit of production method
(Notes 2.7 and 2.8) based on the estimated reserves as
disclosed in Note 4, management of the Group
determines the estimated useful lives and related
depreciation and amortisation charges for other
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets.
This estimate is based on the historical experience of
the actual useful lives of property, plant and equipment
of similar nature and functions, or based on value-in-use
calculations or market valuations according to the
estimated periods that the Group intends to derive
future economic benefits from the use of intangible
assets.

Management will adjust the estimated useful lives
where useful lives vary with previously estimated useful
lives. It is reasonably possible, based on existing
knowledge, that outcomes within the next financial year
that are different from assumptions could require
material adjustments to the carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets.
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E - IRMEREMETEEMNE
AR &R T E MBI ETT(S
At o AR FHRFER B EUEE M)
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RERNESL LR HEERER
BEZHAEEBEF EAZETLE
EERARBHAELALEEENTS
BEZX-

ERERBLRDAHERFRE
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REME BEER A ERFRE
THE - ERHRBRERN T
ANAEENRSTBE - THER
BIET & EMRRE EER R
BEEHRTRMNERRIGES TR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4,
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

BARE a4 R Al ()

(iv) T8E IK REBERELE

(iv) Estimation of impairment of property, plant

(v)

and equipment and intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment, including oil and gas
properties, and intangible assets are reviewed for
possible impairments when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. The Group tests whether goodwill
has suffered any impairment on an annual basis. The
recoverable amount of a cash generating unit (CGU)
was determined based on value-in-use calculations
which require the use of assumptions. Determination
as to whether and how much an asset is impaired
involve management estimates and judgements such
as forecast crude oil prices, forecast production
volumes, forecast operating costs and capital
expenditures and discount rates. However, the
impairment reviews and calculations are based on
assumptions that are consistent with the Group's
business plans. Favourable changes to some
assumptions may allow the Group to avoid the need to
impair any assets, whereas unfavourable changes may
cause the assets to become impaired.

Provision for remediation and restoration

Provision for remediation and restoration included
environmental remediation costs, assets retirements
obligation and similar obligation in relation to the
Group's operations. Provision is made when the related
environmental disturbance and present obligations
occur, based on the net present value of estimated
future costs. The ultimate cost of environmental
disturbances, asset retirement and similar obligation are
uncertain and management uses its judgment and
experience to provide for these costs over the life of
operations. Cost estimates can vary in response to
many factors including changes to the relevant legal
requirements, the Group's related policies, the
emergence of new restoration techniques and the
effects of inflation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(v)

(vi)

Provision for remediation and restoration
(Continued)

Cost estimates are updated throughout the life of the
operation. The expected timing of expenditure included
in cost estimates can also change, for example in
response to changes in reserves, or production volumes
or economic conditions. Expenditure may occur before
and after closure and can continue for an extended
period of time depending on the specific site
requirements. Cash flows must be discounted if this
has a material effect. The selection of appropriate
sources on which to base calculation of the risk free
discount rate used for this purpose also requires
judgment. As a result of all of the above factors there
could be significant adjustments to the provision for
close down, restoration and clean-up costs which would
affect future financial results.

The Group currently operates mainly in PRC. The
outcome of environmental and other similar obligations
under proposed or future environmental legislation
cannot reasonably be estimated at present, and could
be material. Under existing legislation, however, the
Directors of the Company are in their opinion that there
are no probable liabilities that are in addition to amounts
which have already been reflected in the financial
statements that will have a materially adverse effect on
the financial position of the Group.

Impairment of financial assets

The loss allowances for financial assets are based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss
rates. The Group uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on the Group’s past history, existing
market conditions as well as forward looking estimates
at the end of each reporting period.

4. BARSEHETRHE (&)

(v)

(vi)
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management has determined the operating segments based
on the reports reviewed by the Board of Directors of the
Company that are used to make strategic decisions.

The Board of Directors considers the business performance
of the Group from a geographic perspective being the PRC
and North America. The PRC segment derives its revenue
substantially from the sale of oil. Revenue is realised from the
sale of the Group’s share of crude oil to PetroChina pursuant
to respective PSCs (Note 9). Before the disposal of 100%
equity interest in Maple Energy Investments Limited (“Maple
Energy”) (“Maple Energy Disposal”) as disclosed in Note 20,
the North America segment derives its revenue from the sale
of oil and natural gas in Canada.

The Board of Directors assesses the performance of the
operating segments based on each segment’s operating
result.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BHEHRERNFE(E)

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5.

The segment information provided to the Board of Directors
for the reportable segments is set out follows:

2EER (&)

North Corporate

AEFSRENEEDBEBMT ¢

PRC America and others Total
H % BERHM @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TR ARBT ARBTR ARETR
Year ended December 31,2019  EHZ2019F12A31BLLEE
Continuing operations BELE
Segment revenue paRzill G 756,094 - - 756,094
Depreciation, depletion and WE - FEREHE
amortisation (342,081) - (6,670) (348,751)
Taxes other than income taxes PR (TS TR AN
(Note 29) (H#3E29) (4,021) - (3,838) (7,859)
Employee benefit expenses 8 THMA (64,321) - (79,046) (143,367)
Purchases, services and R RBREMERMA
other direct costs (133,007) - - (133,007)
Distribution costs SHEMK (16,642) - - (16,642)
General and administrative expense &2 & H (24,268) - (133,892) (158,160)
Net impairment losses on SRBERERXE
financial assets (1,160) - (696,994) (698,154)
Impairment charges BERERX - - (4,826) (4,826)
Other losses , net HihiRk - #E (16,384) - (64,332) (80,716)
Finance income IHBA 27 - 42,491 42,518
Finance costs &R (110,330) - (495,473) (605,803)
Profit/(loss) before income tax B FTEHAFE/(FE) 43,907 - (1,442,580) (1,398,673)
Income tax (expense)/credit FrER (BA), Mk (62,456) - 3 (62,453)
Loss for the year from KERBREMEER
continuing operations (18,549) - (1,442,577) (1,461,126)
Discontinued operations RiERE
Profit for the year from AFL HEE PR
discontinued operations - 332,177 - 332,177
Profit/(loss) for the year RERE/(FE) (18,549) 332,177 (1,442,577) (1,128,949)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BFHTEHRERNE(E)

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. ZEEE (&)
Corporate
PRC and others Total
] BmE R EAh st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT AR®TR ARBTR

As at December 31, 2019 2019412831 H

Total assets EERE 1,980,084 442,831 2,422,915
Total assets includes: BEBBELIE

Property, plant and equipment — AEhEE « TR & & 1,677,627 787 1,678,414
Intangible assets EREE 78,980 15,045 94,025
Additions to non-current assets  JEREIE E LN (178,621) 14,870 (163,751)
Total liabilities =Rt bo| 1,834,547 3,332,500 5,167,047
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. 7EEE(E)
North Corporate
PRC America and others Total
H I B R EAM Bat
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT AREFTT AREFT
Year ended December 31,2018  EHZ2018F 12 A31 B LLEE
Continuing operations BERE
Segment revenue iRl 6 789,704 - - 789,704
Depreciation, depletion and & - RN EH

amortisation (329,101) = (217) (329,318)
Taxes other than income taxes BB (AT HipR M) (B3 29)

(Note 29) (9,574) = (9,301) (18,875)
Employee benefit expenses BTHMAA (52,024) - (103,723) (155,747)
Purchases, services and 5 R REMERKA

other direct costs (138,013) = - (138,013)
Distribution costs HERA (15,792) = = (15,792)
General and administrative expense E32 & (19,768) = (100,783) (120,551)
Reversal/(provision) of impairment £ R & A& FEEE /(5112 -

losses on financial assets, net FE 14,740 - (130,718) (115,978)
Impairment charges EEREEX (34,154) - 3,317) (37,471)
Other gains/(losses) , net Httlzs /(1B%) - FE 547 - (42,399) (41,852)
Finance income FHBWA 92 - 22,5613 22,603
Finance costs M%ER (96,139) - (518,213) (614,352)
Share of losses of investments FEBECEREN

in associates BEMhE - - (9,318) (9,318)
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRETEHRAIFIE/ (&E) 110,516 - (895,476) (784,960)
Income tax (expense)/credit FisH (BR), ks (50,404) = 2,992 (47,412)
Profit/(loss) for the year from REFBICEE

continuing operations Yozt / (B18) 60,112 = (892,484) (832,372)
Discontinued operations RiEgE
Loss for the year from RER HEEFEERE

discontinued operations = (363,463) = (363,463)
Profit/(loss) for the year KEFE/(E8) 60,112 (363,463) (892,484) (1,195,835)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. o ER (&)
Corporate
PRC and others Total
s 4R N A FEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBETT ARBTT ARETRT

As at December 31, 2018 M 201812 A31H

Total assets EEHEE 2,129,227 1,009,785 3,139,012
Total assets includes: BEBBELIE

Property, plant and equipment — AEhEE « TR & & 1,797,877 962 1,798,839
Intangible assets EREE 137,351 - 137,351
Additions to non-current assets  JEREIE E LN 143,534 (148) 143,386
Total liabilities BEARE 1,459,940 3,943,392 5,403,332
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

All segment information above represented segment results
after elimination of inter-segment transactions, which
primarily include interest income or expense from intra-group
accounts and loans.

The revenue reported to the Board of Directors is measured
consistently with that in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. The amounts provided to the Board
of Directors with respect to total assets and total liabilities are
measured in a manner consistent with that of the
consolidated financial statements. These assets and liabilities
are allocated based on the operations of the segment and the
physical location of the asset.

Entity-wide information

Analysis of revenue by category

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

2EER (&)

ERAPFEERED R AR ZEHE
BETIR - NHHRZIERBESE
B AR B AR B RS SRE £ 8RB UK
AT e

MEFSRENRDENTENEZEEH
HEKRBZERNFTESEA B - WEES
RUAMEEMBGBRBENGE ER
B BBRERNABTE R - HFE
ERABERED MOLEMEENELR
(VA=

TEEEER
LON:& Vb

Year ended December 31,
BE12A3MBLLEE

2019 2018
2019 F 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMT T ARETIT

Timing of revenue recognition LT A T SR R )

At a point in time R —RE

— Sales of oil and gas — HERBRAAR 741,459 786,768
— Provision of services and others — AR R E A 14,635 2,936
756,094 789,704

For the year ended December 31, 2019, total revenue from
crude oil sales in the PRC amounting to RMB741.5 million
(2018: RMB786.8 million) are derived solely from PetroChina.
Crude oil sales revenues from PetroChina accounted for
98.1% (2018: 99.6%) of the Group's total revenue from
continuing operations for the year ended December 31, 2019.

HE2019F 1231 BIEEE » K&EH
EFREMNRREERASCEAARKE
7415 BET(20184F : AR 786.8H
Bn) M AEER T AR EUSHUL
A HE2019F12 A31 B L EE# S
B0 A% 10 BYAS 89 R iR AL 78 5 B 35 4R
g4I A\ #998.1% (20184F : 99.6%) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

6(A).PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 6(A).FBE - THKREZE
Veehicles, office,
Exploration production
and evaluation QOil and gas Buildingsand  equipment and Construction
assets properties  improvements turnarounds in progress Total
B AR
R R EER
TEAE HREE  BRENRD SRR IR @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARETTL ARETT ARBTT ARBTFT ARBTT

Year ended December 31, HE2018F

2018 12B3NALEE
Opening net book amount FNEmFE 871,293 6,700,794 7,521 135,958 4,293 7,719,859
Exchange differences EREE (27,082) (133,415) = (3,968) = (164,465)
Additions #10 34,871 61,667 - 72,797 99,362 268,697
Acquisition through business (M A GHEHAE]

combination - 219,188 - 2,650 699 222,537
Disposals RE (24,150) (481,707) = = - (505,857)
Disposals of subsidiaries RETRHE - (1,599) - - - (1,599)
Transfers Eh - 88,978 - - (88,978) -
Depreciation charge (Note (@)~ HrEER (FizE ()

— Continuing operations —REge - (308,545) (1,038) (4.543) = (314,126)

— Discontinued operations — R R - (422,528) - (47,542) - (470,070)
Lease expiries RAEIH (26,447) - = = = (26,447)
Change in accounting estimate &5t %

— Discontinued operations — R - (886,504) - - - (886,504)
Transferred to disposal group ~ ERZEAFENRER

classified as held for sale (FizE20)

(Note 20) (828,485) (3,075,681) = (139,020 = (4,043,186)
Closing net book amount EREAFE - 1,760,648 6,483 16,332 15,376 1,798,839
As at December 31, 2018 #2018%1231A
Cost R - 6,892,368 10,375 66,264 15,376 6,934,383
Accumulated depreciation RETERAE

and impairment = (5,131,720) (3.892) (49,932) = (5,185,544)
Net book amount REFE - 1,760,648 6,483 16,332 15,376 1,798,839
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BHEHRERNFE(E)

6(A).PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 6(A). TEIE - TRRRRME (&)

(Continued)
Vehicles, office,
production
equipment
Oil and gas Buildings and and Construction
properties improvements turnarounds in progress Total
RE - HAE
&fE - £ERE
HREE BENR R kAR EEIR @5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT ARBTR ARETR ARETR
Year ended December 31, HZ20195

2019 12A3NALEE
Opening net book amount ENEEFE 1,760,648 6,483 16,332 15,376 1,798,839
Exchange differences EXES - - 13 - 13
Additions =0 74,761 - 1,661 120,750 197,172
Disposals RE - - (81) - (81)
Disposals of subsidiaries REFAR (FrE20)

(Note 20) - - (449) - (449)
Transfers K 112,756 - - (112,756) -
Depreciation charge (Note (a)) &2 (i3 (@)

— Continuing operations —RELE (311,790) (1,038) (4,252) - (317,080)
Closing net hook amount EREEE 1,636,375 5,445 13,224 23370 1,678,414
As at December 31, 2019 R2019612F31H
Cost AR 7,079,884 10,374 65,529 23,370 7,179,157
Accumulated depreciation ZHFTERAE

and impairment (5,443,509) (4,929) (52,305) - (5,500,743)
Net book amount BEFE 1,636,375 5,445 13,224 23,370 1,678,414
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BB HRRN T (8)

6(A).PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

6(A).FTEE - THRRE (&)

(Continued)
Year ended December 31,
BE12A3MHLEFE
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T AREFIT
(a) Depreciation charge: (a) WEEM:
Charged to loss for the year ST ARFEE
— Continuing operations — EEKE 317,080 314,126
Released from/(capitalised in) #H (B AN) EfEH
oil in tank 1,173 (431)
318,253 313,695
(b) Asset retirement obligations: (b) BEEBHK :
— Additions of oil and — ey hRE E (MiEE26)
gas properties (Note 26) 73,378 154
— Acquisition through business — REES BRI
combination - 345
73,378 499
() Assets directly used in and (¢) AEBEEAPAHERFIZA
operated under the Group's Ema KA RIERE T
PSCs with CNPC in the PRC LA RIRIENEE
— Cost — AN 7,165,598 6,968,470
— Accumulated depreciation — BRI EXRE
and impairment (5,493,425) (5,177,757)
1,672,173 1,790,713
(d) Subsequent to December 31, 2019, the Group has (d) M®2019%F12 A31H%E @ KEER

performed impairment assessment on its property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets in the PRC
on June 30, 2020, and an impairment provision of
RMB529.0 million was recognised in the unaudited
management accounts for the six months ended June
30, 2020 (Note 41(b)), including impairment provision of
RMB501.5 million recognised in the property, plant and

equipment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BB HRRNE (8)

6(B). LEASES

This note provides information for leases where the Group is

6(B). HE

AHEREERNAREEREBEANE

a lessee. EE8 -
(i) Amounts recognised in the balance sheet (i) EEEBERABRNEEHE
The balance sheet shows the following amounts BEABBERYW RN Ty SEEERE
relating to leases: B -
As at
i
December 31, January 1,
2019 2019
2019 20194F
12A31H 1H1H
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREFTT
Right-of-use assets EREEE
— Buildings —RBE 11,839 7,528
Lease liabilities HEaE
— Current — nE 8,707 4,810
— Non-current — ERH 4,738 2,246
13,445 7,056
Additions to the right-of-use assets during the 2019 2019 B FEEN - FHEEE

financial year were RMB15,960,000.

1#4115,960,000 7T °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

6(B). LEASES (Continued) 6(B). HHE
(i) Amounts recognised in the statement of profit (i) BRRABIANESE
or loss
The statement of profit or loss shows the following BHRIWAHN T eEEHEES
amounts relating to leases: 7
Year ended
December 31,
2019
BZE 20195
12831H
IHFEE
RMB’000
AR® TR
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets FEREEENITEER
— Buildings —BREE 9,678
Interest expense (included in finance cost) FEEAGIAMBKER)(MFE30)
(Note 30) 2,615
Expense relating to short-term leases B AHERBENER GTAEIEER)
(included in administrative expenses) (P¥EE31)
(Note 31) 8,386
The total cash outflow for leases in 2019 was 209 FEAHERXRENRESRE S
RMB14,860,000. &1/ 14,860,000 7T °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
B B 7 R R B

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 7. BREE
Mining
Goodwill rights Software  Technology Total
HE  BERRE it b5} @5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT AR%®Tr ARETT ARET:
Year ended December 31, HZ2018%F12A31H

2018 LLFE
Opening net book amount FBREFE 705,146 - 3,047 - 708,193
Transferred to disposal group ~ EEZHHFEN

classified as held for sale FEER (Fi5E 20)

(Note 20) (614,635) = = = (614,635)
Acquisition through business A GHEFHIE N

combination 39,584 123,783 11,617 9,200 184,084
Disposals RE (69,284) = = - (69,284)
Amortisation charge (Note 31)  #35%& F ([ft:F 31)

— Continuing operations — BERE - (12,295) (3,328) - (15,623)
Impairment charges RERE (32,122) (2,035) - - (34,157)
Exchange differences BEHER (21,227) - - - (21,227)
Closing net book amount FERIEEFE 7,462 109,453 11,236 9,200 137,351
As at December 31, 2018 R2018%12A31H
Cost B AR 39,584 123,783 40,477 9,200 213,044
Accumulated amortisation ST EERAE

and impairment (32,122) (14,330) (29,241) = (75,693)
Net book amount REFE 7462 109453 11,236 9200 137351
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SRR T (8)

performed impairment assessment on its property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets in the PRC
on June 30, 2020, and an impairment provision of
RMB529.0 million was recognised in the unaudited
management accounts for the six months ended June
30, 2020 (Note 41(b)), including impairment provision of
RMB27.5 million on intangible assets.
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7. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 7. BREE#E)
Mining
Goodwill rights Software  Technology Total
BHE RERRE B il st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARBTRT AR®BTRT ARBTRT AR®T:R
Year ended December 31, BZE2019%F12A31H
2019 ILEE
Opening net book amount FOREFAE 7,462 109,453 11,236 9,200 137,351
Disposal of subsidiaries REFAR(FFE20)
(Note 20) (7,462) - (6,764) (8,280) (22,506)
Amortisation charge (Note 31) B E R (Fff:E 31)
— Continuing operations —HERE - (15,428) (4,472) (920) (20,820)
Closing net book amount FERIEEFE - 94,025 - - 94,025
As at December 31,2019 R2019F12A31H
Cost (&N 32,122 123,783 29,241 - 185,146
Accumulated amortisation and 25+ 8 K RE
impairment (32,122) (29,758) (29,241) - (91,121)
Net book amount REFEE - 94,025 - - 94,025
(a)  Amortisations of the Group’s intangible assets for the a) AEEREE2019EF20184E 12
years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 have been HA31H iﬁa’;ﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁ@gﬁ
charged to the consolidated statement of DEASEERAT AL HED
comprehensive income as general and administrative = o
expenses.

(b)  Subsequent to December 31, 2019, the Group has (b) 2019412 831 %  AEER®

2020F6 A0 R HEEF HH T
BE - THRSENEREEET
TRERE - WEEZE 2020566 A
0BMGEANAKEETNERRE
HEPER T REEBEARE
529.0 B & T (MisE41(b) - EFRE
EHEREEMTRAREERA
R¥275EETT -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERKI T (B

8. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 8 HMELERE
2019 2018
2019 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%ET ARETIT
As at January 1, M1B1H - 182,541
Additions b il 4,713 3,199
Disposal RE - (141,652)
Share of losses for the year FAFE(G I EE - (9,318)
Impairment VERIE] (4,826) (3,314)
Exchange differences P 5 =5 113 (1,229)
Reclassification ENE - (34,259)
Others Hip - 4,032
As at December 31, M12H31H - =
(a) Details of investments in associates (a) HEOEREFE
% of
Place of business/ interest
country of held Measurement
Name of entity incorporation Principal activities indirectly method
g BERE
NGIEE i E Mtk TEER R BREAE
Palaeontol B.V. ("PBV") Netherlands Exploration and production of 40.0%  Equity
I8 oil in Kazakhstan BiE
through associate
ARBErENAERERINE
B R EER
PetroBroad Copower Limited ~ PRC/Hong Kong Exploration of petroleum 34.0%  Equity
(“PetroBroad”) mE products in the northern part x5
of the South China Sea
pursuant to the PSC with
China National Offshore Qil
Corporation (“CNOOC")
RRAEREGFOhEE
BRARN[HEH]) T8
EmAKERAEETEREE
R B EE ERAIEE
ETHIR
I gEEERAERAR /201968 239



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BB HRRN T (8)

8. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(b) Fair value
PBV and PetroBroad are private companies and there
are no quoted market price available for its shares.

(c) Contingent liabilities
As December 31, 2019 and 2018, there are no
contingent liabilities relating to the Group's interest in
its associates.

(d) Summarised financial information

Summarised consolidated statement of
comprehensive income

8. mg

(b)

(c)

(d)

ERE (#)

5

REE

PBV & PetroBroad &3E_FH AT
AL B8 B Rl E AR T iHE
1% o

REEE
M2019%F M 2018F12 A31H » I
fEE N B RS A R A8
FkBEEE -
REMKEROT

BREHEERER

Year ended December 31, 2019
HZE20195 12831 BEE

Palaeontol B.V. Others Total
PBV Hith #st
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AR¥ET T ARETT
Revenue A 284,383 - 284,383
Depreciation and amortisation 75 &i# 5 E A
expense (94,589) - (94,589)
General and administration EEER
expenses (7,832) (48) (7,880)
Taxes other than income taxes [& PS8t IMNEL fth 7 & (92,699) (2) (92,701)
Impairments charges BERMERK (453,311) - (453,311)
Others Hit (192,773) (5,480) (198,253)
Loss before income tax MRETSHATE X (556,821) (5,530) (562,351)
Income tax credit Frig Bl e 73,522 - 73,522
Loss for the year REE K (483,299) (5,530) (488,829)
Total comprehensive loss KELGIBREE
for the year (483,299) (5,530) (488,829)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERKI T (B

8. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 8 HELERE(HE)
(d) Summarised financial information (Continued) (d) WEFBKERWMT (&)
Summarised statement of financial position BEWBRIER

As at December 31, 2019
R2019%12A831H

Palaeontol B.V. Others Total
PBV Hit st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T ARBTR AR® TR

Current TED

Cash and cash equivalents BeRESZEY 23,438 3,139 26,577
Other current assets Hingh&eE 37,961 26,437 64,398
Total current assets RBEERE 61,399 29,576 90,975
Trade payables FEFTBR 5K (72,274) (31,725) (103,999)
Other current liabilities EnEasE (43,162) (259,646) (302,808)
Total current liabilities FEBEEAE (115,436) (291,371) (406,807)
Non-current FERE

Property, plant and equipment B « T M &E 1,634,625 249,992 1,884,617
Other non-current assets Hi3EnaEE 171,376 - 171,376
Total non-current assets FREBEEMTE 1,806,001 249,992 2,055,993
Total non-current liabilities FERBEERLLE (2,322,425) - (2,322,425)
Net liabilities FEE (570,461) (11,803) (582,264)
The information above reflects the amounts presented PA_E SR I B Bt £ SR A B 7
in the financial statements of the associates adjusted RAZINBR(AFAREEE
for differences in accounting policies between the HEHBENNRE)  XERAEE
Group and the associates (if any), and not the Group's HEEE PR BB BRNERE
share of those amounts. HFHE(nE) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BB HRRN T (8)

8. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 8. HELERE(E)
(e) Reconciliation of summarised financial (e) WEHMKERMNFAGH
information
Year ended December 31,
BZ12A31ALEE

2019 2018

2019 & 20184

Total Total

#et @t

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARMT T ARET T

At January 1, W1A1A8 - 182,541
Loss for the year RFEE (488,829) (139,057)
Currency translation differences HNEEHTE Z R (93,435) 46,279
Disposals BE - (141,652)
Reclassification ENHE - (34,259)
Closing net liabilities EXRBERE (582,264) (86,148)
Interest in associates Hek 8 2 - -
Carrying value FREEE - -

9. JOINT ARRANGEMENTS 9. AEZTH
(a) Joint operations (a) HERE

During the year ended December 31, 2019, through its
subsidiaries, the Group has the following joint
arrangements which are accounted for as joint operation
in accordance with IFRS 11 “Joint arrangements”.

Daan and Moliqing PSCs
As at December 31, 2019, the Group holds the entire
100% and 10% shares of the Foreign Contractor’s

interests in the Daan PSC and Moliging PSC,
respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

9. JOINT ARRANGEMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Joint operations (Continued)

The Daan and Moliging oilfields had been in the
commercial production phase since 2005 and 2008,
respectively, the Daan and Moliging PSCs would expire
after about nine years in 2028. The Group conducts the
development and production activities under the Daan
PSC and Moliging PSC jointly with CNPC as a 100%
Foreign Contractor and a 10% Foreign Contractor
respectively. The remainder 90% Foreign Contractor of
Moliging PSC is Riyadh Energy Limited (“Riyadh
Energy"”). These PSCs establish joint control over the
development and production activities. The assets are
not owned by a separate legal entity but are controlled
by individual participants in the PSCs. Each participant is
entitled to a predetermined share of the related output
and bears an agreed share of the costs.

On June 4, 2020, the Group successfully obtained
approval from its production sharing counterparty,
CNPC, to extend the expiry date of the production
period from December 31, 2024 to February 29, 2028
on the condition that the Group shall drill a minimum
number of new wells in the Daan oilfield as agreed
within a certain period (Note 2.1.1, 41(d)).

Pursuant to the respective PSCs with CNPC the annual
gross production of the crude oil shall, after payment
for value added tax and royalty, be firstly deemed as the
cost recovery oil and shall be used for cost recovery in
the following sequence:

(i) Payment in kind for the operating costs actually
incurred by Foreign Contractors and PetroChina.

NLFE B F i /i {E & 38 5 Bl 7E
2005 F12008 F = A EAEH o
AREMEBBNEMRD KA RGN
2028 F B Hf - & A F &4 A AR
HABIF - NEBE S RIIER100%
M10% B 58T & RE - B AH
SEERETAZERD KA R
EEFEMOKERMEEM
o BEFEMDKA RMNFIRD
90% B EERIING & [RE BTSSR
RAE ([FHESEEIR]) o B Lt
EmoKERNFAENMEESZHE
ITHREES - L EETBRER
HERER  MOBREROKE
BAREA2EEER - GEERZ
B3 2 49 FE 10 RRE BRAE B8 =
A WAEIELTE R A RE

MR 202056 A48 - REED K
HEERDKERBNEERPAH
SEESHE - SEERRNEBUH
#2024 12 A31H & & £2028
F2H29H - HilREAEEELE—
TE HABR A FE K % F R iE RR
BAENRLEE(HFE2.1.1
41(d)) °

REBEDAARENBBEER DX
AR RANFEREEEIE
ERMERERER  BELERSG
REREYCH - WM T ZRA
REREUL :

() BINT & RE RPAHRD

EREENRERFELED
5K
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

9. JOINT ARRANGEMENTS (Continued)

(a) Joint operations (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

The remainder of the cost recovery oil shall, after
payment for the operating costs, be deemed as
investment recovery oil. Such investment
recovery oil shall be used for the simultaneous
recovery of the pilot test costs and the
development costs incurred by Foreign
Contractors and predevelopment costs spent by
PetroChina in proportion of 20% by PetroChina
and 80% by Foreign Contractors. The unrecovered
costs of the parties shall be carried forward to and
recovered from the investment recovery oil in
succeeding calendar years until being fully
recovered.

After all pilot test costs and development costs
incurred up to that time have been recovered, the
remainder of the gross production of crude oil for
that period is referred to as profit oil and shall be
allocated in proportion of PetroChina 52% and
Foreign Contractors 48%.

The operating costs so incurred after the date of
commencement of commercial production shall
be paid respectively by PetroChina and Foreign
Contractors in accordance with the proportion of
oil allocated to each party.
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(iii)

(iv)

B FA B YOm B T 8R 30 0 72 2
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Bl - B EINT & R E T
EENEEBHBAKAN - [
BEARPABRMDAAZS
RIRTEARAEE & A - 5145 K
(5] 457 B i 7R BIJ 3% 45 88 = BE 14
HEFHEE D KR - R
Epl BEE2HEKE
M:o

EEHRLEARAKA KA
TEMEUIR - % B R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

10. SUBSIDIARIES

10. ¥ F

FEFRAFHE

Details of principal subsidiaries

Country of  Kind of Principal activities and Particulars of Proportion (%) of ordinary
Name incorporation legal entity Place of operation issued share capital shares held by
8 ALY EEREED FTRERREEHE EMREHEAEE Fris g BRI (%)
The The
Company Group
A7 &8
Directly held :
EERE:
Gobi Energy Limited ("Gobi") ~ Cayman Islands  Limited liability Production and sale of 100 ordinary shares of 100% 100%
HEEE company oil in the PRC 1US$ each
BREMAAT EhEAEREER 100LEkR - 8R—%1
Indirectly held by the completion of disposal on September 30, 2019
REREEE2019F9 30 BHEE -
Maple Energy Investments ~ Hong Kong Limited liability Investment 100 ordinary shares of 100% 100%
Limited ("Maple Energy”) &8 company RE HK$100 each
BRAAAT W0EER  FR—AHE
Canlin Energy Corporation Canada Limited liability Production and sale of Registered capital of 100% 100%
("Canlin’) (Note) (f13E) ~ M&X company Gasand oilinthe Canada ~ C$296 million
BREARAR EMeREERLE HHEAX 296 BEME
ARR LA

Note: Maple Energy and Canlin are included in the Disposal
Group which was classified as held for sale as at
December 31, 2018. The disposal was completed on
September 30, 2019.

Maple Energy & BB - 722018
FI2ANBEBSERFER
EMEEM - WHN2019F9 A
BIHTKEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BFHTEHRERNE(E)

11. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 1. BT E(RER)
Other financial
Financial assets assets at
at FVOCI amortised cost Total
LAREEFER
HEBFAHM HttEEE -
SEUBRNEREE REBSHAGTE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT AREFT ARETR
As at December 31, 2019 M2019%F12A31H
Assets as per statement of BERBRRRNEE

financial position

Financial assets at FVOCI (Note 12)  LAAR E(E:t 2 AHEEH A

HEira ManemEE

(HizE12) 43,754 - 43,754
Trade and other receivables JE UG BR 2N e LA PR U

excluding prepayments TEREEMN(HFE14,15)

(Notes 14,15) - 511,309 511,309
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 19) B4 RIEELZEY (M£19) - 13,711 13,711
Restricted cash (Note 18) TR H3 & (s 18) - 46,213 46,213

43,754 571,233 614,987
Other financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
Ettemas
g 124D
RMB’000
ARETR
Liabilities as per statement of financial position REVERRRNESR
Borrowings (Note 27) B (M 27) 3,999,267
Trade and other payables excluding non-financial liabilities ERERREMEMNZR  TeEEemas

(Notes 25, 26) (B35 25, 26) 831,546

Lease liabilities (Note 6(B)) HEaE(Me(B) 13,445
4,844,258
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

11. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 11. €T EGRER) (H&)
(Continued)
Other financial
Financial assets Financial assets assets at
at FVTPL at FVOCI  amortised cost Total
’Rﬁf‘fﬁﬁ; LA’A RS
HEHEA - EIEUN
?é?,ﬁ;%%iéﬁ’ﬂ W*/\HSZ HihepEE
SREE MEREE RERKATE Bt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT  ARETRT AR®TR  ARETR

As at December 31, 2018 R2018F 128318

Assets as per statement of REMERRENEE

financial position

Financial assets at FVTPL (Note 17) AR B{E: S A E&F)

FAEHERNEREE

(FtzE17) 17,755 - - 17,755
Financial assets at FVOCI (Note 12) AR EfEET 2 B EEE)

AR AR A WA

2REE (ME12) - 46,458 - 46,458
Trade and other receivables JE AR R E A U -

excluding prepayments TEFEBAR (i 14,15)

(Notes 14,15) = - 988,736 988,736
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 19) 4 kIR 4 ZEY (f3119) = = 28,115 28,116
Restricted cash (Note 18) RBRHERS (FizE18) - - 45,465 45,465

17,755 46,458 1,062,316 1,126,529
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SRR T (8)

11. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(Continued)

Other financial
Financial liabilities liabilities at
at FVTPL amortised cost Total
WAREBEE
BEHZEA
EHERN  HthemaR:
SRBGE RERAA 5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARBTT ARETT

Liabilities as per statement of BREMERRRNEE
financial position
Borrowings (Note 27) fER (FizE27) = 4,335,954 4,335,954
Trade and other payables excluding FERBRA R E A R
non-financial liabilities (Notes 25, 26) TaiEES AR (HF25, 26) = 539,383 539,883
Financial liabilities at FVTPL (Note 13)  LARALEBEHS B HEFHETA
EHBENeBaRE (FE13) 313,969 = 313,969
313,969 4,875,837 5,189,806

12. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(a) Classification of financial assets at FVOCI

Financial assets at FVOCI comprise:

Equity investments which are not held for trading, and
which the Group has irrevocably elected at initial
recognition to recognise in this category. These are
strategic investments and the Group considers this
classification to be more relevant.

Debt investments where the contractual cash flows are
solely principal and interest and the objective of the
Group’s business model is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BB HRRNE (8)

12. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(Continued)

(b) Equity investments at FVOCI

Equity investments at FVOCI comprise the following
individual investments:

12. UAREEFEEEESHTAR
feiRERENERMEE ()

(b)

URREEFEEESEA
Ht GRS SRR E

A EBEFELEZESH T AHM
fRE SRR EN T

As at December 31,

M®12A31H
2019 2018
2019 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TRT AR¥TET

Non-current assets ERBEE
Unlisted company ELETES

41,491 44,231

On disposal of these equity investments, any related
balance within the FVOCI reserve is reclassified to
retained earnings.

(c) Debtinvestments at FVOCI

Debt investments at FVOCI comprise the following
investments in unlisted bonds:

(c)

MBS AR IAR AR EE
8 A HBHH AL MEA Kt
ERN A RRSESRESEE
Bl -

LARBEFEEEZFHTA
HitiRE RSN EERE
AR EBEFELEZB AEM
RAalmnERERERBATIFL
MEFKRE

As at December 31,

M®12HA31H
2019 2018
2019 F 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TRT ARBTE

Non-current assets ERBEE
Debt investment BEBEE

2,263 2,227

On disposal of these debt investments, any related
balance within the FVOCI reserve is reclassified to profit
or loss.

RESLERIRER  URAEE
AHEREEE ARMGRE W
BANMARRSRBEORESEE

1B e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

12. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 12. UAAREBEFEEHEHTAH
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME fEERENEmEE (&)
(Continued)

(d) Amounts recognised in profit or loss and other (d) sFFABZMEMGZERENS
comprehensive income ]

Year ended December 31,
BZE12A3MBLEEE

2019 2018
2019 20184
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARBTRT ARETET

Losses recognised in other sFAHEMAR S WA IE K
comprehensive income (Note 23) (fF5E23)
— Related to equity investments — ERT AEE (3,428) (19,900)
(e) Fair value, impairment and risk exposure (e) AAREE - BHERERSO
Information about the methods and assumptions used EEREEAABEMERMNTER
in determining fair value is provided in Note 3.3. BREREREES - F2EME33 -
13. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE 13. U4 ﬁ@ﬁ_ﬁ%ﬂﬁ%iﬂﬁk =
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS HERNEmEE
As at December 31,
M12A31H
2019 2018
2019 F 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%T ARBTFT
Current liabilities RENEE
Convertible Bonds AR ES - 313,969

- 313,969
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

13. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE 13. UAREBESTEREEESHTAE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

Pursuant to a placing agreement (“Placing Agreement”)
dated January 26, 2018 (“Issue Date”), the Company issued
the Convertible Bonds to an independent holder with principal
totalling HK$340.0 million (equivalent to approximately
RMB297.9 million), which bear a coupon rate of 5.0% per
annum, redeemable on January 26, 2021 and are secured
against the shares of Maple Energy. According to the Placing
Agreement, the Convertible Bonds are convertible into
ordinary shares at an initial conversion price of HK$0.58 per
share at the right of the holder during a specified conversion
period (the “Conversion Right”). The holder has a put option
to request the Company to redeem all or some of the
Convertible Bonds on January 26, 2019 at specific
redemption price as prescribed in the Placing Agreement
together with accrued and unpaid interest (if any).

On January 22, 2019 and February 27, 2019, the terms of the
Convertible Bonds were amended whereby the conversion
rights to the Company's shares were cancelled; and the
related exercise date of the Put Option for redemption was
changed from January 26, 2019 to any date on or after March
15, 2019 until maturity (referred to as the “Public Notes”
after the amendment) .

As at September 30, 2019, the Public Notes were settled as
part of the consideration of the Maple Energy Disposal (Note
20).

HESNTHMEE (&)

20181 A26 B ([3/THHE]) - AR
RIABMYFHE ABTABRRKRES A&
BEAR3M0BEBT(ITEARKEDY
2979B &) MEBEZHTHHANHZ
(REWR])  TREBREFNFFNEA
50% ' 7202118268 & H I A
Maple Energy B % E1E R o RIFAD
B GRRAGEH - ATRRES A E
FEERBARERE ANEFIZER
0.58 B LM VIIA M ERE R &L B
([EmE]) - HAEAE —BHRGHRE
TRANA AR 2019F 1 A 26 BIRBE &
i BT R € 2 BB Bl B 32 B FE &t K AR A+
BHEE 23k 2 H Al k&S (A ) »

AR ES MR D B 20194 1 A 22
B2 H27 BETEFTEUE T H AR
MEE R ROGEHENER B
201941 A 268 & & £20194F3 A 156
Az ERBE - (EhiEEAE AR
&% o

R2019%F9A30B ' AHESRBIEA
Maple Energy Disposal &2 5 ¥ {8 #) — 2
DEEE (MizE20) o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BFHTEHRERNE(E)

14. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 14. AR - RE SR EALEKR

RECEIVABLES
As at December 31,
M®12HA31H
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMET T ARETIT
Amounts due from related parties JE U [ Bt 7 70E
— Palaeontol B.V. (Note (d)) — Palaeontol B.V. (Hf7E(d) 919,022 886,901
— Others — Hfpth 44,898 32,558
Loans granted to third parties (Note (e) & FE=HHE K (K5 (e) 4,883 135,075
Other receivables H At R SRR 184,611 352,020
Consideration receivables from R E TN a) RSN
disposals of subsidiaries 291,238 332,535
Deposits RES 9,014 77,205
Interest receivable FEUWLHI B 349 549
Advances to employees STHERS 8,235 8,460
1,462,250 1,825,303
Less: loss allowance (Note 3.1(b)) B B ERE (BI5EE3.1(b) (1,012,315) (906,358)
449,935 918,945
Prepaid expenses FEEA 4,334 46,955
Advances to suppliers TEfTERRX 158,105 159,764
Less: loss allowance (Note (b)) W BRERE (M (b)) (155,975) (153,417)
456,399 972,247
Current MED 71,036 615,035
Non-current FERED 385,363 357,212
456,399 972,247
(a) The fair value of loans and receivables approximates to (a) EFMERERNALBEEER

their carrying amounts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

14. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 14. EARE RIFEESREMERRK
RECEIVABLES (Continued) (&)
(b) Movements on loss allowance of prepayment (b) FEERFIBAREHFESE
2019 2018
2019 % 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TRT AR¥TET

As at January 1, ®1B1H 153,417 152,330
Loss allowance BIR AR 2,558 1,087
As at December 31, M12H31H 155,975 153,417
Provision and reversal of loss allowance of prepayment TETERFRIB R EHRFTIRME R R
have been included in ‘other (losses)/gains, net’ in the BiEEAHRERERP [EMGE
consolidated statement of comprehensive income. K)o FEIA -
The other classes within prepayments and other TENT R E M EBGRFP R E MR
receivables do not contain assets made loss BEERIBREREE - K%
allowances. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the A HAKERARRES DAL R
reporting date is the carrying value of each class of N 89 =2 FETRAS I oA e W SR A BR T
prepayments and other receivables mentioned above. BE -

(¢) The carrying amounts of other receivables are (c) HitbEWFHEMSEUATIERS
denominated in the following currencies: B

As at December 31,

®12A31H
2019 2018
2019 F 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TRT ARBTE

US$ ET 397,933 885,743
RMB AR 52,002 33,202
449,935 918,945

MIEERERERAT /20194 2D3



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BB HRRN T (8)

14. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(d) The amounts due from Palaeontol B.V. consists of
shareholder loans and other receivables. The
shareholder loans are unsecured, bear interest ranging
from 4.9% to 5.0% per annum (Note 38) and maturing
in 2021, 2023 and 2036 respectively.

14. ANRE RESREMEBERRK
(&)

(d) & Palacontol B.V. KI3XIA B 2 A%
RE A E M EYGARES D o HAp
BRERSEERN X5
4.9%%15.0% (Ff 5£38) * 2 Bl R
20214 + 2023 F #2036 FFE|Hf o

(e) Loans granted to third parties bear interests is 8.0% per (e) RTFE=ZFHERFFH=ELE80% -

annum and repayable within one year. Loans are
unsecured. As of December 31, 2019, loss allowance
have been fully accrued for the loan.

15. TRADE AND NOTE RECEIVABLES

BE—FREE - HPpERILEE
1R HZE2019F12A8318 ' X
DEREHRIB R AR -

15. EWRAREREE

As at December 31,

M12H31H
2019 2018
2019 F 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TRT AR¥TET

Trade receivables from: W E 53R
— PSC partners — EMDKEREIERME 60,508 65,801
— Third parties —%=75 866 4,575
61,374 70,376
Less: loss allowance (Note 3.1(b)) B B ZERE (BIEE3.1(b) - (585)
61,374 69,791
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

15. TRADE AND NOTE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 15. BWERFR EWRE (&)

(a) The fair value of trade receivables approximates their (a) EWRZHNANBEHRAKRESE
carrying amounts. Y=g
(b) Aging analysis (b) BRER D AT
As at December 31,
M®12A31H
2019 2018
20194 20184F
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRE ARETET

Up to 30 days KRB 30 A 61,238 66,862
31-180 days 312180 H - 1,000
Over 180 days 835180 H 136 2,514
61,374 70,376
The Group grants credit terms of between 30 days to AEBERERINEHABEAE=TZ
180 days. —BN+H -
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting NEER - FANERRREKRD A
date is the carrying value of each class of receivables. ZHEWREFNREER -
The Group does not hold any collateral as security. AREBFW R IFHFAERBIELSE
# o
(c) The carrying amounts are denominated in the following (c) EBREESZENTIEEASBA
currencies:
As at December 31,
M12H31H
2019 2018
2019 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARET T
RMB AR 61,374 69,791

61,374 69,791
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BFHTEHRERNE(E)

16. INVENTORIES 16. &
As at December 31,
M®12A31H
2019 2018
2019 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETIT
Oil in tank JE:RE:: 5,768 7,655
Materials and supplies Rl R (e 10,602 14,735
16,370 22,390
17. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 17. AAREEFEBEHEHEHTAE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS HEZNERMEE
(a) Classification of financial assets at FVTPL (a) UAAEBEFEEHSEHFTA
EEENEREESE
Financial assets mandatorily measured at FVTPL include WENARBEGTEAHEZESHTA
the following: EHEENEREENT
As at December 31,
M®12A31H
2019 2018
2019 5 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETIT
Current assets REEE
Equity securities, listed g 0 ETERES - 17,755
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

17. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 17. AARBEEFEEHESHTAE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued) HESNEMEE (&)
(b) Amounts recognised in profit or loss (b) FtABZMNESE
During the year, the following gains were recognised in REEF  REBBLATHEE AR
profit or loss: o

Year ended December 31,
BZE12A3MBLLEE

2019 2018
2019 F 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TRT ARBTE

Fair value gains on equity investments st AHMFIESHAARBEGZ
at FVTPL recognised in other gains BEEH:F ASHERH

BB AR BEFNSG 481 617
(c) Risk exposure and fair value measurements (c) EAkHORNAEBETTE
Information relating to the Group's exposure to price BRASBEBENERERAEER
risk and the methods and assumptions used in RiEFE AR BEN T ERBEREHR
determining fair value is set out in Note 3.1 and Note BEL - B R2RMEES R
3.3 respectively. FE3.3°
18. RESTRICTED CASH 18. ZREIRE
As at December 31,
MW12H31H
2019 2018
20195 2018 4F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TRT AR¥TET

Non-current IEMED - 45,465
Current e 46,213 =
46,213 45,465
A deposit of US$6.6 million (equivalent to RMB46.2 million as NEFEBEFE=FR2017F6 A8HE L
at December 31, 2019) was pledged as security for a term HNEHERRE 14728 EETTUAGEE
loan facility of US$147.2 million entered between the Group BEPEdmeeBE BET(RN2019F12 A
and a third party on June 8, 2017. 31 BIrE AR 462 B E L) IEAEA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BFHTEHRERNE(E)

19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 19. BERREEEY
As at December 31,
M®12A31H
2019 2018
2019 F 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TRT ARBTE

Cash on hand B - 8
Cash at bank RITHFER 13,711 28,107

13,711 28,115
(@) Carrying amounts are denominated in the following (a) BRESZEUUTHIEME BN :

currencies:

As at December 31,

M®12A31H
2019 2018
2019 F 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TRT ARBTE

RMB AR 1,765 6,083
US$ X7 11,733 21,459
C$ pifik: 3 203
HK$ Note 20 139
Others Hih 190 231

13,711 28,115
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

20. DISPOSAL GROUPS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR
SALE AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

(i)

Discontinued operations — Disposal of 100%
equity interest in Maple Energy

On September 24, 2018, the Group entered into an
agreement with FEEIL for the sale of its entire 100%
equity investment in Maple Energy and its subsidiaries
(collectively as the “Disposal Group”), at a consideration
of US$250.0 million. The associated assets and liabilities
were consequently presented as held for sale in the
2018 financial statements.

The disposal was completed on September 30, 2019.
Financial information relating to the discontinued
operation for the period to the date of disposal is set
out below.

20. FERENEEARKLEE

(i)

B IERE — K BMaple
Energy 100% R {2

201849 A 24 8 » AN B EHFEEIL
EX R A25BETHERT
& H % Maple Energy & H F 2R 7
(5B EEA])HZ2E100% ik
wE-RFHit- HEEEMAERE
2018 F W IE MK P W BB
EREEH -

ZEER2019F9 A30H X &%

B - BERE B IEARE - RIEKE
EER S BRI T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

20. DISPOSAL GROUPS CLASSIFIED ASHELDFOR 20. B E S ENESARRIE &%
SALE AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (48)
(Continued)

(i) Discontinued operations — Disposal of 100% (i) # 1k&&E — E EMaple
equity interest in Maple Energy (Continued) Energy 100% B% 3 (&)
(a) Financial performance and cash flow information (a) HBEEBENHESREE
Period ended Year ended

disposal date December 31,
BEEERS #=E12H31H

1 EA R IEFE
2019 2018
2019 5 20184F
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRE ARETET

Revenue Wz 938,514 1,766,647
Other (losses)/gains, net Hib (F38) Wz, F5 (73,377) 260,387
Expenses &M (1,430,721) (2,422,991)
Loss before income tax KMRETEHAIERE (565,584) (395,957)
Income tax credit B HAS B 198,695 32,494
Loss after income tax of HILREFMBER

discontinued operation (366,889) (363,463)
Gain on sale of the subsidiary MEREE AR

after income tax 699,066 -
Profit/(loss) from RIHEREFRERAE, (BE)

discontinued operations 332,177 (363,463)

Exchange differences on translation #% |48 & HNESSRCHT 8 =
of discontinued operations - (129,629)

Other comprehensive income/  RIEEEHMEZEES
(losses) from discontinued Wi, (E58)
operations 332,177 (493,092)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BB HRRNE (8)

20. DISPOSAL GROUPS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR
SALE AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
(Continued)

(i) Discontinued operations — Disposal of 100%
equity interest in Maple Energy (Continued)

(a) Financial performance and cash flow information

20 FERENEEARRKRILEEE
(&)

(i) # 1Ik&&E — E EMaple

Energy 100% B% 4 (&)

(a) HMBEEMRERES (H)

(Continued)
Period ended Year ended
disposal date December 31,
BEZEERS &=E12A318
LHER IEFE
2019 2018
2019 % 20184F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%ET ARETIT
Net cash inflow from CETEBEANIRSFHE
operating activities 11,911 132,127
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from BEEE(ER), EEW
investing activities IR & FE (92,059) 355,114
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from REEBHELS,(EH)H
financing activities R4 FE 80,163 (477,763)
Net increase in cash generated BRERRLZEEBEYWN
by the subsidiary BnFEsE 15 9,478

MIBERIER AR A E / 2019 3k

261



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

20. DISPOSAL GROUPS CLASSIFIED ASHELDFOR 20. B E S ENESARRIE &%
SALE AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (48)
(Continued)

(i) Discontinued operations — Disposal of 100% (i) & It&®&E — E EMaple
equity interest in Maple Energy (Continued) Energy 100% B% 3 (&)
(b) Details of the sale of the subsidiary (b) EEBFATBEM

Period ended
disposal date

BEEERY
1-HA S
2019
2019 £
RMB’000
AR®T

Consideration received or receivable: B U sk e W (B

Fair value of borrowings BERNAREE 1,768,225

Fair value of inter-company loans RAEINHBEZHAAERE (1,264,793)

Loss on loans and bond BERMERMIEELX (671,987)
Total disposal consideration EEBHEAE (168,555)
Less: i

Carrying amount of net liabilities sold HEFEEREDER (971,129)

Other disposal expense HAthpz B & A 1,205
Gain on sale before income tax and FriSHial e & Wam &k g

reclassification of foreign currency EREBESE

translation reserve 801,369
Reclassification of foreign currency AN E B E S SE

translation reserve (100,534)
Income tax expense on disposal gain BRENSHEHER (1,769)
Gain on sale after income tax FIBHAEE R 699,066
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BB HRRNE (8)

20. DISPOSAL GROUPS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR

SALE AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (&)
(Continued)
(i) Discontinued operations — Disposal of 100% (i) # 1t &&E — K BMaple
equity interest in Maple Energy (Continued) Energy 100% B% 3 (&)
The carrying amounts of assets and liabilities as at BZEEBEANEENEGEREER
the disposal date were: -
As at
September 30,
2019
R2019F
9H30H
RMB’000
AR¥TR
Property, plant and equipment TEE - TRMRE 3,315,806
Intangible assets EEE 653,735
Derivative financial instrument MESBIA 17,915
Right-of-use assets ERREEE 30,554
Trade receivables JE U AR 3K 184,807
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables  TEfTZRIB « (RS R H bl 2k 74,595
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBFSEEY 2,264
Total assets HEE 4,279,676
Trade and other payables &<t Ko EL At PR~ R 210,490
Provisions, accruals and other liabilities B EREEMEE 1,197,965
Borrowings R 1,182,092
Deferred income tax liabilities BRI AR 308,176
Financial liabilities at FVTPL UNAREEGEBEESA
EHERNERERE 993,096
Current income tax liabilities S AaE 11,652
Derivative financial instruments MESBIA 52,163
Amount due to related parties e~ A B 1,264,793
Lease liabilities HEAE 30,378
Total liabilities HEE 5,250,805
Net assets BEE (971,129)
Ml BERIEERBBRAF / 2019 F 5
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

20. DISPOSAL GROUPS CLASSIFIED ASHELDFOR 20. B E S ENESARRIE &%
SALE AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
(Continued)

(ii)

Continuing operations — Disposal of 100%
equity interest in Asia Oil & Gas (Cayman)
Limited

On December 26, 2019, the Company entered into an
agreement with an independent third party purchaser
pursuant to which the Company agreed to sell and the
purchaser agreed to purchase the entire issued share
capital of Asia Oil & Gas (Cayman) Limited (“Asia Oil &
Gas"”). As at the date of the purchase and sale
agreement, Asia Oil & Gas is a 100% wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company. The principal business
activity of Asia Qil & Gas is its investment holding in
China Aerospace Telecommunications (Shenzhen)
Limited (“China Aerospace”) as a minority shareholder.
The disposal was completed on December 31, 2019.

Asia Oil & Gas ceased to be a subsidiary of the Group
upon completion and it did not constitute a discontinued
operation. A loss arising on the disposal of
approximately RMB21.2 million was recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income (Note
28).

2064 MIEHOLDINGS CORPORATION / ANNUAL REPORT 2019

(&)

(ii)

HERE — K BAsia Oil &
Gas (Cayman) Limited 100%
dni)

2019% 12 A 26 8 » NA R EIF L
F=FBELFIEREAR AR
AIEEEE BEERRE = WEAsa
Oil & Gas (Cayman) Limited ([Asia
Oil & Gas|) ZEBEEITHRA - RE
EAR%FFTH - A2 A %A Asia
Oil & Gas 100% H) # z= ° Asia Qll
& GasMEF ELK L EBEERLE
BRER # A R B BB E E T it OF
I BER AR (THMAEHE]) /IZE
ZERR o hRBEEEN2019F 12 A
31 H5ERK °

RAWF AR ZEETHEREL
R - NARBEELREBRESH
WAREB21 2B TEERHES
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

21.

22.

RS AT (8)

SHARE CAPITAL 21. R4
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: 2217 B AU AR
Number of Ordinary Share
shares shares premium Total
g [ B A (B st
Thousand RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
T ARE®ETFT AREFTT AREBTT
As at January 1,2018 and A 201851818
December 31, 2018 ®12H31H 2,938,597 19,489 1,049,307 1,068,796
As at January 1, 2019 MR2019%F181H 2,938,597 19,489 1,049,307 1,068,796
Add: allotment of hn - B EEETAR
new shares 330,824 2,263 30,190 32,453
As at December 31,2019 20194 12H31H 3,269,421 21,752 1,079,497 1,101,249
SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 22. BRMAZ

Details of the equity-settled share option schemes, share
award scheme and cash-settled stock appreciation rights plan
adopted by the Company are as follows:

The share options, stock appreciation rights and share awards
granted generally vest over a two or three-year period
following a specified vesting commencement date. Typically,
the share options, stock appreciation rights and share awards
granted vest at each anniversary of the grant date within the
vesting period, subject to the participant continuing to be an
employee on each vesting date. The terms of share options,
stock appreciation rights and share awards granted will not
exceed ten years from the grant date.

(a)

Stock incentive compensation plan (the “Plan”)

The Plan was adopted on November 20, 2009 with the
purpose of providing additional incentive to employees,
directors and consultants to attract and retain the best
available personnel for positions of substantial
responsibility. The Company originally reserved
6,072,870 ordinary shares for issuance under the Plan.

RRAFFRAH AR EENBRE - 82
B ) MR € A E oAk ) 1B E R AT Bl
BESNAOT

RO R O - B SR B A B A D
—RAINEHER T A ZROMER=
FHIRTHE - —RRHE Fﬁi‘%ﬂjﬂ’]%
B ROEERE RORBESHFS
E@i‘%%ﬁﬁ’]tﬂﬂiiﬂ’\ETWﬂ%
E%ﬁﬁ%%%\/,\ﬁt1lfﬂéﬁﬁ Al{E
8 o B H RS AHE - B {0 18 B HE M 2R
ﬁﬁﬂ’]ﬁﬂﬁﬁ@#ﬂjaﬁﬁi*ﬁﬁﬁtﬂJr
£ o

BRORBEH S B (LT EHE
(5T &)

(a)

AABESER 20094 11 A20H
FTE MR () BB B 518 - B
REBEZREMNBUIRERIES
SEENABAE T AES - %
ERERIREEEINEE) o AAF]
578 88 6,072,870 i% L 3@ J&Lﬁﬁ%
B BB BN 2 5T 8 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

22. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 22. R#H =1 (&)

(a) Stock incentive compensation plan (the “Plan”) (a) BROEBBSTE (LT ERE
(Continued) [ET&811) (&)
(i) Stock options under the Plan (i) FErEPEESHNEBRE

Movements in the number of share options and
their expiring date and exercise prices under the

ZAt P B E RTTERERE
2H - HBHBRITEER

Plan are as follows: BT -
2019 2018
2019 2018%F
Average Average
exercise price exercise price
per share Options per share Options
T4 4
TRESR o TREEK iz
As at January 1, ®1A1H US$0.18 7,746,089 US$0.15 14,065,578
Lapsed BN US$0.13 (4,666,823) US$0.13 (6,319,489)
Cancelled BEVE US$0.25 (3,079,266) -
As at December 31, ®12A31H - 7,746,089
Expiry date )=
November 20, 2019 2019F 11 H208 - US$0.13 4,666,823
November 23, 2020 202011 H23 B - US$0.25 3,079,266
- 7,746,089
Exercisable AT - 7,746,089

MR2019412H31H R A
im] A 17 {58 A9 B AR 4 (722018
F12A318 ' A RKITE

At December 31, 2019, there was no share
options to be exercised (At December 31, 2018,
all the Share options were exercisable).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERKI T (B

22. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

(a) Stock incentive compensation plan (the “Plan”)
(Continued)

(ii)

Stock appreciation rights granted under the
Plan

Movements in the number of stock appreciation
rights and their expiring date and exercise prices

22. B3>y (&)

(a) ROZRBMEE (LT EHE

&t ()

(i) ZFFBhESHRGEERE

Zat &l BB K RITER D
REEHE - EIHAE RT

under the Plan are as follows: EENEBFIT -
2019 2018
2019% 2018%F
Average Stock Average Stock
exercise price  appreciation  exercise price appreciation
per share rights per share rights
T4 4
EESR kiaER TRESK RinEEE
As at January 1, R1A1H US$0.13 13,755,808 US$0.13 31,823,216
Lapsed BAM US$0.13 (12,901,164) US$0.13 (219,745)
Transferred E2ER US$0.13 - US$0.13 (17,847,663
As at December 31, W12A31H 854,644 13,755,808
Expiry date £}

November 20, 2019 201911 208 US$0.13 - US$0.13 12,901,164
February 26, 2020 20202268 US$0.26 454,644 US$0.26 454,644
November 20, 2025 2025F 11 A20H HK$0.01 400,000 HK$0.01 400,000
854,644 13,755,808

At December 31, 2019, all outstanding stock
appreciation rights were exercisable (At December
31, 2018: all outstanding stock appreciation rights
were exercisable).

R2019F 12310 & &
AT DG EEY A
Al AT{E AR 15 1 (A #E (522018
F12A31H : 2EHEATITHE

B B ) 18 (B HE 15 AR AT 1T {6 A
DIBERE) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BB HRRN T (8)

22. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 22. BT (&)

(b) Share option scheme under Chapter 17 of the (b) BEBREFTE(ERLTHRAE

Listing Rules (the”Scheme”)

The Scheme adopted by the Company was approved by
shareholders on November 27, 2010 in accordance with
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. The purpose of the
Scheme is to enable the Company to grant options to
selected participants as incentives or rewards for their
contributions to the Group.

The following table discloses details of the Company’s
options under the Scheme held by employees (including
Directors) and movement in such holdings during each
of the two years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018:

++%)(GHE)

BIEEMRANETEE - B
21 2010F 11 A 27 B A RIAKE
FTERan - BRI EIMERNRE AT
HAEBELERMNETEERT
REREVE RSB -

FELAFETARRRE(BIEE
B)RENARTENHERE R
20194 K&2018F 12 A31H Ik F
EREE R EESBMHIROT

2019 2018
2019% 2018%F

Average Average

exercise price exercise price
per share Options per share Options

FHTRE TEEE
gR W Bk g
As at January 1, R1A1H HK$1.20 129,547,174 HK$1.20 149,540,352
Lapsed R HK$0.895 (10,729,487) HK$1.24 (19,993,178)
Granted B HK$0.269 155,089,171 -
Cancelled HUH HK$1.20  (122,333,243) =
As at December 31, W12A31H 151,573,615 HK$1.20 129,547,174

Expiry date E) )=

September 20, 2021 2021%9H20H HK$2.254 - HK$2.254 15,895,000
March 19, 2024 2024%3R19H HK$1.40 - HK$1.40 45,142,174
December 8, 2026 202612 A8H HK$0.816 - HK$0.816 68,510,000
May 15, 2029 20295158 HK$0.269 151,573,615 -
151,573,615 129,547,174

At December 31, 2019, out of the 151,573,615 options,
50,524,538 shares were exercisable (At December 31,
2018, all the Share options were exercisable).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SO HRR N (8

22. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

(c)

2015 Share Award Scheme

Apart from above Plan and Scheme, to recognise the
contributions by certain grantees and to give incentives
thereto in order to retain them for the continuing
operation and development of the Group, and to attract
suitable personnel for further development of the
Group, the Board of Directors resolved to adopt the
2015 Share Award Scheme on January 6, 2015.

22. B3>y (&)

(c)

2015 F R R B &l

B i B B2 B BN < 51 8 & BB AR i
FrEIASN RRREEEER
20154 1 A6 H R & % #2015
I fr 52 EET & - B &Y= RR A R E
BAFTE BRI 4 TR E - A
SENFEEESMERER R EA
TA - W AKREBE— SRR
BMAANT o

2019 2018

2019 20184

Awarded Awarded

Shares Shares

RERG REEA% D

As at January 1, M1B1H 6,300,000 2,300,000

Granted ¥ - 104,000,000

Exercise 2171 - (100,000,000)

As at December 31, M12HA31H 6,300,000 6,300,000
Expiry date A

November 20, 2025 2025411 A 20 H 2,300,000 2,300,000

January 25, 2028 20284 1 A25H 4,000,000 4,000,000

6,300,000 6,300,000
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BB HRRN T (8)

22. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)
(d) Fair values
Share options and stock appreciation rights

The fair value of stock appreciation rights and share
options outstanding at December 31, 2019 and the
Date of Grant respectively is determined using the
Binomial Model. Their fair values and significant inputs
into the model are as follows:

22. BB (&)

(d)

DREE
BRER RS ERE

AX D I {ERE 201912 A31 B &
ERENRE TN AR BERE -
YHEBEAEE  EAABEREE
BAZHIRIT

2010 Grants 2015 Grants 2019 Grants

201056 &F 2015F&%F 2019/ F

Stock appreciation rights Share options

B 17 15 E B AE

2019 2019 2019

20194 2019 20194

Us$ HK$ HK$

EY B B

Fair value per unit BETALER - 0.11 0.12
Share price at grant date B¥BRI(E - 0.95 0.24
Fair value per share at period end AR GIRA 7 EE 0.015 0.120 0.120
Exercise price IR 0.26 0.01 0.27
Volatility (%) U ERg) 48.29% 79.65% 65.63%
Dividend yield (%) REE(EDL) - - -
Annual risk-free rate (%) FREERRIZ(BOL) 1.92% 1.78% 1.59%
Remaining term (year) FISREARR (F) 0.16 5.89 9.38
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

23. OTHER RESERVES 23. Hftf#E
Repurchased Share Available-

shares held Currency based Safety for-sale Financial

bytrust  translation payment fund financial assets at

(Note (al) reserve reserve reserve assets FVOCI Others Total

HARERE

HEEEEY

[rrtHA SARfEE

ElER( e Bifa z2  AfE  YaE0eE

(W)  #BGE  xHERE  EeRE  SEEE AE A et

RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBO00  RMBO0D  RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBO0O
ARRTT ARETRL ARBTR ARBTR ARETR ARETL ARETL ARMTR

As at January 1, 2018 R2018%E151A (117,817) (81,860) 164,315 187,356 1,716 - (106,445) 47,265
Change in accounting policy SHRRER - - - - (1,716) 6,564 - 4,848
Restated total equity asat 12018518108 Eil%

January 1,2018 HWEREE (117,817) (81,860) 164,315 187,356 - 6,564 (106,445) 52,113
Currency translation differences  SMEHTEZE - (273,29) - - - - - (273,296)
Transfer toprofitorlossupon ~~ REMAMERERETER

investments in associate - - - - - - (2,602) (2,602)
Financial assets at FVOCI (Note (8] WA2/ BfEsTE EEEE

AR AR
SRAE (M @) = = = - - (19,900) - (19,900)
Employess stock option scheme (2 k#2312
—value of employee — EBMREEE ()
services (Note 32) - - 54,743 - - - - 54,743
— shares transferred to the —ERLRERN
Awarded Shares Grantees BRTE 27,841 - (27,841) - - - - -
Disposal of subsidiaries RETAA - - - - - - 45,160 45,160
As at December 31, 2018 R2018E12A31H (89,976) (355,156) 191,217 187,356 = (13,336) (63,887) (143,782)

MIgERERERAR /201988 2/



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BFHTEHRERNE(E)

23. OTHER RESERVES (Continued) 23. Hhf#dE (&)
Repurchased Share
shares held Currency based Safety Financial
by trust translation payment fund assets at
(Note (a)) reserve reserve reserve FvOCl Others Total
HAREE
ERRE HEAEES
EERH N k& e N U
(M3 (a)) ERE SUL:1 Edfi WENeREE Bt &3t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTR  ARETR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARBTZ  ARETR  ARETR

As at January 1, 2019 R20195151H (89,976) (355,156) 191217 187,356 (13,336) (63,887) (143,782)
Currency translation differences NEREER - (59,103) - - - - (59,103)
Change in the fair value of AR BE2EZEHTA
equity instruments at FVOC A RNERTAN
Note (a)) MEBED (HE ) - - - - (3428) - (3428)
Employees stock option scheme ESHERET
— valug of employee services (Note 32) — EERBEE (H3E32) - - 10,841 - - - 10,841
Disposal of subsidiaries RETAH - 106,474 - - - (1,050) 105,424
As at December 31, 2019 R2019E128318 (89,976) (307,785) 202,058 187,356 (16,764) (64,937) (90,048)
Note: Bt E
(a)  Financial assets at FVOCI (a) UAARBENEEHSBHIT AHMERSKRE
HEmEE
The Group has elected to recognise changes in the fair value of certain W FE12 ATl - AR EREBEEZIZENA
investments in equity investments in other comprehensive income, as REEZHEIAEEMESWEET - LAR
explained in Note 12. These changes are accumulated within the FVOCI BEF=EEZFHTALMEREREN SR
reserve within equity. The Group transfers amounts from this reserve to BENALBENEHEESTNREET R
retained earnings when the relevant equity investments are B BEHEARESIEERILERRE  NEEK
derecognised. ZAEENeEE AR TS -
The Group also has certain debt investments measured at FVOCI, as AREERBZEEDSDEBHREEBARRE
explained in Note 12. For these investments, changes in fair value are BErtE BEZE ARLMGERENERE
accumulated within the FVOCI reserve within equity. The accumulated B WMEE12Fri - SRS LIRE - LA
changes in fair value are transferred to profit or loss when the BETEEHEFH T AHEMEAKENER
investment is derecognised or impaired. BENALBENSBEREB 25 - E%Z

RE LI ERIORER - RN AR BED
LN Fly
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BB HRRNE (8)

24. DEFERRED INCOME TAX

24. EIEFEB

As at December 31,

M®12A31H
2019 2018
2019 F 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREFIT
Deferred income tax assets: RIEFTBHEE !
Deferred income tax assets to be 187 12 8 B 1% Uk 3] 5 3E RE
recovered after more than 12 months TSt & E 816 601
Deferred income tax liabilities: EIEFTBHEAE !
Deferred income tax liabilities to be 1 12 8 A 185 2 RIELE
settled after more than 12 months FriSti @& (173,803) (114,669)
Deferred income tax liabilities — net EZLFMSHAE — FHE (172,987) (114,068)
(a) Movements of deferred income tax account (a) ELEFISHARSH
2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMET T AREEFIT
As at January 1, M1B1H8 (114,068) (588,947)
Exchange differences bE H =& - 17,044
Acquisition through business DESFEAIEM
Combination - (30,946)
Tax charged to continuing loss BERNSESEERER
(Note 33) (M$7E33) (58,919) (47,733)
Tax credited to discontinued profit U Zm PR | R BB 2R TR - 23,079
Disposals of subsidiaries BRE AT - -
Transferred to disposal group classified #EEEEEEFENEBH
as held for sale - 513,435
As at December 31, M12A31H (172,987) (114,068)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

24. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 24. EEREB (&)

(b) The movement in deferred income tax assets (b) EZEFELEEHEBENEE (R
and liabilities, (without taking into EERERTER-—BHRER
consideration the offsetting of balances within IKEH)
the same tax jurisdiction)

Deferred income tax assets EEFBHREE
Base
difference
in Property,  Accelerated Asset
plant and tax retirement Tax
equipment  depreciation  obligations losses Others Total
D%
IBRRfE HE &E
ERRIER mEHE ZESH e Hfty &3t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETTE ARETT ARETn ARETn  ARETR
As at January 1,2018 R2018%1818 28,113 333 721,371 182,293 4,29 936,404
Credited/(charged) to continuing
profit or loss - 267 120 (15,746) (1,018) (16,377)
Charged to discontinued
profit or loss (27,567) - (278,267) = (1,153) (306,987)
Transferred to disposal group BEEFAGENRER
classified as held for sale - - (421,447) - (2,030) (423477)
Exchange differences ERER (546) - (19,108) - (93) (19,747)
As at December 31,2018 1201812 A31H = 600 2,669 166,547 - 169,816
Credited/{charged) to continuing Yzt /(B B) B84
profit or loss EaER = 16 (294) (24,628) - (24,906
As at December 31, 2019 R2019F12A31H - 616 2375 141,919 - 144910
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERKI T (B

24. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 24. EIEFTEH (&)
(b) The movement in deferred income tax assets (b) EZEFHELEELEBBENEE (R
and liabilities, (without taking into EZREHRTER—BEHER
consideration the offsetting of balances within ) (4|)

the same tax jurisdiction) (Continued)

Deferred income tax liabilities ELEFEHREE
Accelerated Fair value
tax gains of
depreciations mining rights Others Total
B HE
MERE  AAEEFE Hit @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT ARBTT AR¥TT

As at January 1, 2018 R2018F1518 (1,509,193) - (16,158) (1,525,351)

(Charged)/credited to continuing (BR)/ s EErs

profit or loss BaiER (34,938) 3,582 - (31,356)
Credited/(charged) to discontinued ~ Uzs /(B ) MR IR 4

profit or loss BafEa 354,828 - (24,762) 330,066
Acquisition through business REAFETMEN

combination - (30,946) - (30,946)
Transferred to disposal group BRERERENRER

classified as held for sale 896,799 - 40,113 936,912
Exchange differences EHESE 35,984 - 807 36,791
As at December 31, 2018 12018 %12 A31H (256,520) (27,364) = (283,834)

(Charged)/credited to continuing (BR)/WantERe
profit or loss BamiEd (37,871) 3,858 - (34,013)

As at December 31, 2019 R2019512A31H (294,391) (23,506) = (317,897)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BB HRRN T (8)

24. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

24. EEFTSH (8)

(c) Deferred income tax assets not recognised (c) KRERELFEBEE
As at December 31,
M®12A31H
2019 2018
2019 & 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
Tax losses and temporary difference 7R FE 40T BT 15 45 Y
EENEREER 237,962 452,879
Deferred income tax assets AERIEIEFTSFHE &
not recognised 59,491 113,220

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss
carry-forwards and deductible temporary differences to
the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit
through future taxable profits is probable.

Tax losses without recognition of deferred income tax
assets can be carried forward against future taxable
income. These losses amounting to RMB135.2 million
(2018: Nil) and RMB102.7 million (2018: RMB93.0
million) will expire in 2020 and 2021, respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BHEHRERNFE(E)

25. TRADE AND NOTE PAYABLES 25. ERERARESERE
As at December 31,
M®12A31H
2019 2018
2019 F 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TRT ARBTE

Trade and note payables & BR 3N K PR T 2 460,245 286,154
Less: NE AR
non-current portion of trade and IEREEMNIR R ENEE
note payables (74,169) (65,871)
Current ED 386,076 220,283
(a) Aging analysis (a) BRERZ AT
As at December 31,
M®12A31H
2019 2018
2019 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TRT AR¥TET

Up to 6 months @6 1E A 222,202 194,904
6 months—1 year 6EAZ=14E 93,183 37,089
1-2 years 1224 99,986 37,479
2-3 years 2E3%F 30,707 4,141
Over 3 years ZR3F 14,167 12,541

460,245 286,154
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BFHTEHRERNE(E)

25. TRADE AND NOTE PAYABLES (Continued) 25. ERERARENERE (&)
(b) The carrying amounts are denominated in the following (b) BRESZEUATIEE HEA :
currencies:

As at December 31,

M12HA31H
2019 2018
2019 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARETE

RMB AR K 460,245 286,154
(c) The fair values of trade and notes payables approximate (c) ENEFMEMNZEENAAEBEE
their carrying amounts. HEEE SRR -
26. PROVISIONS, ACCRUALS AND OTHER 26. £ FERRHMEE
LIABILITIES
As at December 31,
M®12A31H
2019 2018
2019 5 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TRT ARKBTE

Asset retirement obligations (Note (a)) BEEERB (@) 86,264 12,414
Interest payable FESFIE 122,846 64,148
Salary and welfare payable FE A~ 5 & FeA@ A 84,615 28,553
Withholding and other tax payable RN EEFR o HAtb FE TR 58,186 67,633
Advance from customers TE UL AR X - 22
Other payables H A FE S FRIAE 162,191 177,167
514,102 349,937

Less: non-current portion of W IEmBIE S 2
— Asset retirement obligations — BEEEEK (86,264) (12,414)
— Withholding tax payable — IR (56,777) (64,838)
(143,041) (77,252)
Current mE 371,061 272,685
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BB HRRNE (8)

26. PROVISIONS, ACCRUALS AND OTHER
LIABILITIES (Continued)

(a) Movements of asset retirement obligations:

26. 2%  ARKEMEE (&)

(a) BEREEBEDIIRWMAT

2019 2018
20195 20184
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBT T
As at January 1, MW1HB1H8 12,414 2,672,886
Additional provision RN 73,378 154
Acquisitions through business DESFEERYE M
Combination - 1,739
Change in accounting estimate et EstEE
— Discontinued operations — R - (886,504)
Disposals BE - (243,053)
Accretion expenses HEEH
— Continuing operations — FERE 472 326
— Discontinued operations — R PR - 138,920
Settlement of obligations BEZERSSE - (40,427)
Transfer to disposal group classified — EREFEHFENESHE
as held for sale - (1,520,608)
Exchange differences PE 5 = =8 - (111,019
As at December 31, W12 8318 86,264 12,414

(b) The carrying amounts are denominated in the following

(b) FRESBEAUTIEEREN :

currencies:
As at December 31,
M12H31H
2019 2018
2019 % 2018 £
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREEFIT
RMB AR 120,526 41,066
uss$ ETT 385,191 300,214
c$ ik 347 479
HK$ it 8,038 8,178
514,102 349,937

(c) The fair values of provisions, accruals and other
liabilities approximate their carrying amounts.

() = FRERHMABNAAEE
SRR & FEARAT -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
FIE RN ()

27. BORROWINGS . B
As at December 31,
M®12A31H
2019 2018
2019 F 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T AREFIT
Current TE
— 2019 Senior Notes (Note (a)) — 2019 % (M 5E (a) - 2,160,423
— On-Demand Borrowing (Note (b)) — BB EEE R (MEE (b)) 394,693 378,279
— Other loans (Note (c)) — HAER (M) 1,884,069 11,186
2,278,762 2,549,888
Non-current eI 80
— 2022 Senior Notes (Note (a)) — 2022 BHZEE (KT (a) 1,720,505 -
— Other loans (Note (c)) — HAbfE R (5 () - 1,786,066
1,720,505 1,786,066
3,999,267 4,335,954
Note: BiEE -
(a)  Senior Notes (a) EBEEE
As at December 31,
R12A31H
2019 2018
2019 20184
Coupon rate  Due date RMB’000 RMB'000
ZEAE A AR¥T AREET T
. _________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________|
2022 Senior Notes 2022 {8 5 Z= 4% 13.75%  April 12, 2022 2022447121 1,720,505 -
2019 Senior Notes 201918 % Zi% 75%  April 25, 2019 201944 A 251 - 2,160,423
1,720,505 2,160,423
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

27. BORROWINGS (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Senior Notes (Continued)

On March 1, 2019, the Company announced the exchange offer to the
holders of the 2019 Senior Notes to exchange the existing notes,
together with the interest payable on maturity of US$11.2 million, for a
new package of senior notes and cash payment with a later maturity
date. The exchange offer expired on April 10, 2019 and note holders
representing approximately 84% of the total principal amount
outstanding at December 31, 2018 accepted the exchange offer. In
accordance with the related terms and conditions, the Company issued
new senior notes in the principal amount of US$248.4 million bearing
annual interest at 13.75% due on April 12, 2022 (the “2022 Senior
Notes"”), made a cash payment of approximately US$26.1 million
(equivalent to approximately RMB175.6 million) to these holders on
April 15, 2019, and the corresponding 2019 Senior Notes were
cancelled accordingly. The Company settled the remaining 2019 Senior
Notes with principal plus accrued interest totalling US$52.6 million
(equivalent to approximately RMB354 million) upon maturity on April 25,
2019. The 2022 Senior Notes are listed on the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited.

Subsequent to December 31, 2019, the Group did not pay the interest
accrued on the 2022 Senior Notes of RMB120.5 million (US$17.1
million) due on April 12, 2020, which resulted in an event of default by
the Group after the expiry of the grace period to May 11, 2020. As a
result, the entire balance of the principal and related outstanding
interest due on the 2022 Senior Notes became immediately repayable if
requested by Noteholders. This event of default also triggered the
cross-default of the On-Demand Borrowing (Note (b) below) and the
borrowings of RMB1,868.1 million included in other loans (Note (c)
below) and immediate repayment of all such borrowings if requested by
the respective lenders (Note 2.1.1). As the event of default occurred
after December 31, 2019, no reclassification to current liabilities is
required for the 2022 Senior Notes as at December 31, 2019.

On-Demand Borrowing

The Group entered into an agreement with a third party to borrow a
principal amount of US$60.0 million, which bears an interest of 8% per
annum and is repayable on February 1, 2020. The extension agreement
for another 12 months to January 31, 2021 has been signed on February
20, 2020. Pursuant to the agreement, the lender has the right to
demand the Group for immediate repayment of the principal amount
and any accrued interest.

27. fa (%)

M= - (&)

(a)

(b)

BARE (F)

R2019F3 A1 8 RAREMM2019E %
ZRFBAEABLEYN  BREZERERTIH
BREMFE11.2E8BETRIGTHELZIE
MRS - IRBLR 201954 108 E|
Hy - HA2018F 12 B31 HARBEEARS(HAE
BEABA% MEERAAEITRREY - R
BHEBIER RIS ARBBITTASNA
2484 BETIN2022F4 512 A B HH
FEEERE  FFXE13.75% ([202218 %
ZE ) o WR20195F 4 A5 BMBEIHE
HHMEERFAEAZNRE2L261 58EBET(E
BRARE1756 B&ET) * ZUHBREEHH
20198 ERBEMEEEUE - NARIREEHE
20194 A25 A EE T FRM2019E LR
B A& mESFE£Fd526EEETL(E
BERARKI4.0EET) ° 2022 FRERE
FET I B H R ST £ -

R2019F 12 A31H &+ AN&E B KL T
202054 R 12 BB 8iM 1206 B BT AR
(B171BBET) M2022B 5 Z2EF S -
BYRAEEERRATREHEBHNEM -
Eit - RFEFEAER - 2022 BEFE
A FAEB R R ER SR 2 AT LA
B8 - LB S HEME T M (o) P B RNEF
BB ERFME ) Bt EREB TS5 AR
1,868.1 HE THEHRAIRZNEL - WHIAR
EEERNERERAZER - ZERF LA
EE(MFE21.1) AR BN ETH AR
2019412 A31 Az - FUtEE 2019412
A31H EFEHMHE022BEERER
HEE-

BV Ry (B 2R A K

REBHEE=FFI V& BARSLEA
60.0 B & ETT * FHEA8% + WA 2020
F2A1HEEZE - BEXAERZE2021F1
A31 BEMEE#HZEE R 202062 A20 A %
7] o RiEH% - BERABERERAEE
BEAE REFIE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

27. BORROWINGS (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(b)

(c)

On-Demand Borrowing (Continued)

As at December 31, 2019, the On-Demand Borrowing was secured as
set below:

o Personal guarantees provided by Mr. Zhang Ruilin, Ms. Zhao
Jiangbo and Mr. Zhao Jiangwei

o Share charge over certain issued share capital of certain
subsidiaries of the Group used for investment holding purpose

o Account charge over certain bank accounts of the Group to
ensure the payment of interest and principal when due

o Other assets security and share charge

The event of default on the 2022 Senior Note on May 11, 2020
mentioned in Note (a) above triggered cross-default of the On-Demand
Borrowing. As the event of default and the cross-default were occurred
after December 31, 2019, no reclassification to current liabilities is
required.

Other loans

As of December 31, 2019, the other loans were secured as set below:

o Share charge over the entire issued share capital of Gobi held by
the Group

o Pledge over the Group's interest under the Daan PSC held by
Gobi

o Pledge over the Group's account receivable amounting to

RMB60.5 million under the Daan PSC held by Gobi

o Share charge over certain issued share capital in associates held
by the Group

o Pledge over the Group's other receivable from a third party

o Account charge over certain accounts of the Group to ensure
the payment of interest and principal when due

o Share charge over certain issued share capital of certain
subsidiaries of the Group used for investment holding purpose

The event of default on the 2022 Senior Note on May 11, 2020
mentioned in Note (a) above triggered cross-default of other loans
totalling RMB1,868.1 million. As the event of default and the cross-
default were occurred after December 31, 2019, no reclassification to
current liabilities is required.
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BieE - ()

(b)

(c)

B B R A5 X (4D

HZE2019612 8318 A EEEREFE
TEE

. RAAREE - ETDR T RETHRE
A REEALER

J RARBEREENMBFAENRSFA
GIESES:E S

. REBR D ERBITRS - B
REZIMNES RS

. HibBERRMAA

2 b T B 5 (a) Bt + 7R20204F5 A 11 B %
/2022 BEBIRELNSHHEE T BIR(EE
BHRHRXEL - BRZEHORRXENE
HEER2019F12 A31 B 21 - HHEE K
BESHHOAERIEME -

H At

HZE2019F12A31H  EEREFEE T
AR

REERA R KEE 2 B AR

. AEEBEBRERENARERD K
SRTHESESER

J AEEBEBRERENARERD K
SRTHARBEFER605EEITH
FEUBRFRIE SRR

. AEEF A R B S M 2 FAK

. AEBEF AR E MRS =TT RIAE
RPER

J AEENBAERES - AURERE
BN AE RFE

. ARBREREENMIFAENDS FR
BLEESEES

7 b T B & (a) Bt © 7R20204F5 A 11 B %
/2022 BERIRENEHBE T HMER
B RATARE 1,868.1 BBILAERRXE
4o ARZIEN R BN ZHFEER 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BB HRRNE (8)

27. BORROWINGS (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(d) Effective interest rate and estimated fair value

27. (&)
GERNC)

(d) BEBRAERUARMGFTHIAEE

On-Demand
Borrowing
and other
Senior Notes loans Total
BIRFE B AR
BEAREE REMER #Et
Effective interest rate: BRFR
As at December 31, 2019 7K2019F12 A31H 8.00% 8.00%
15.04% to 25.58% t0 25.58%
As at December 31, 2018 7K2018F 12 A31 H 12.06% 8.99%
8.99% 10 26.35% t0 26.35%
Estimated fair value: HEt AR EIE -
As at December 31, 2019 K2019F12 A31H 1,090,757 2,278,762 3,369,519
As at December 31, 2018 M20184F 12 A31H 1,163,236 2,175,531 3,338,767

The fair values of 2022 Senior Notes are based on its closing prices
quoted on Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited and are
within level 1 of the fair value hierarchy; On-Demand Borrowings and
other loans from other parties are based on the effective interest rate
from 8.00% to 25.58% and within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

The Senior Notes which bear fixed interest rates are not subject to

interest rate changes.

2022 B BEA A BERENREENINH
BHERXGIHBEREME - WEBRARL
BEE B4R BRERERREMMER
EREBFE8.00% = 25.58% @ if 57 &
ARBEE=ERK -

=
=
»

BEEROBEFIEET - B THALED)
M -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BFHTEHRERNE(E)

27. BORROWINGS (Continued) 27. B X (4&)
Note: (Continued) BisE : (48)
(e) The Group’s borrowings were repayable as follows: (e) REEYNESEEMENSEN TR
On-Demand Borrowing
Senior Notes and other loans
BEES BB ERRAMER
As at December 31, As at December 31,
M12H318 R12A318
2019 2018 2019 2018
2019 F 20184 2019 F 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMTRT ARKETIT AR¥TRT ARETZ

Within 1 year 1R - 2,160,423 2,278,762 389,465
Between 1 and 2 years 1824 - - - 1,786,066
Between 2 and 5 years 2EG4F 1,720,505 - - -
1,720,505 2,160,423 2,278,762 2,175,531

(f) Carrying amounts are denominated in the following currencies: (f) RESENAMT SRS :

As at December 31,

R12A318
2019 2018
2019 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBFT
Uss e 3,190,111 3,553,368
HKS TS 809,156 782,586
3,999,267 4,335,954
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERKI T (B

28. OTHER LOSSES, NET 28. Hfbigk - FH

Year ended December 31,
BE12A3MBLLEE

2019 2018
2019 F 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TRT ARBTE

Losses on changes in fair value of SERMTAENAABESEELX
financial instruments (71,159) (35,560)
Losses on disposal of subsidiaries BRETARIEEMER(H3E20)
(Note 20) (21,197) -
Losses arising from disposal of REBMECEEARNBL
an associate - (19,927)
Others Hih 11,640 13,635
(80,716) (41,852)
29. TAXES OTHER THAN INCOME TAXES 29. P18 (FFEFHEBEI)
Year ended December 31,
BZ12A31HILLFE
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARETIT
PRC: i
Petroleum special profit charge ABRERIE S - 5,319
Urban construction tax and WER R A M &
education surcharge 3,935 4,168
Others HAih 86 87
4,021 9,574
Corporate and other segments: 4B = K H 5 EF
Withholding tax and others (Note) RADARBFR R E A (HI5E) 3,838 9,301
7,859 18,875
Note: PtsE -
During the year, all (2018: all) withholding tax is related to interest expenses RAFE » B (2018F : i) RHMRAF FEE
arising from the intra-group loans. B AP ERFTE £ KA SAERE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

30. FINANCE COSTS, NET 30. MBER FE

Year ended December 31,
BE12A3MBLLEE

2019 2018
2019 F 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TRT ARKBTE

Finance income B WA
Interest income FEWA 42,518 22,603
Finance costs BB A
Interest expenses at coupon FEER (RRZEmE RN
rates/bank rates RITFIEZE) (499,791) (307,701)
Amortisation of discounts B IR 5 £H (105,639) (222,538)
Finance charges for lease liabilities HEaBERBENEER
(Note 6(B)) (KF3E6(B)) (2,615) =
Other fees Hip (2,267) (88,903)
(610,312) (619,142)
Exchange gains, net b 5 s - FEE 4,509 4,790
(605,803) (614,352)
Finance costs, net BMEER  BE (563,285) (591,749)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

31. EXPENSES BY NATURE 31. RHEESENER

Year ended December 31,
BE12A3MBLLEE

2019 2018
2019 F 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TRT ARBTE

Employee benefit expense (Note 32) B TH A (FisE32) 143,367 155,747
Depreciation and depletion & RITHE 327,931 313,695
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 7) R & E# 5 (FizE7) 20,820 15,623
Impairment charges on investments Bt 1 IR ERE (FTE8)

in associates (Note 8) 4,826 3,314
Net impairment losses on financial assets ¢ Fi& &R EE % 698,154 115,978
Auditor’'s remuneration 1% S5 il 2 B
Included in continuing operations: BEERBERLE

— audit and audit related services — Bt RBFHRBRSS 5,236 5,421

— services in connection with capital — EE AR5 48 R R 1%

market transactions - 8,221

— non-audit services — FEEFT IR 625 614
Included in discontinued operations: BEERIZE

— audit and audit related services — BT R EHHERS 1,330 1,853
Operating lease expenses KEHEE R 8,386 16,586
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

32. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 32. EIHMAA

Year ended December 31,
BZE12A3MBLLEE

2019 2018
2019 F 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TRT ARKBTET

Wages, salaries and allowances TE& - e &2 113,766 81,348
Housing subsidiaries E=r 1 3,096 1,908
Share options — value of employee BEE — EERBEEME23)

services (Note 23) 10,841 4,446
Awarded shares — value of employee REARD — EEBIRGEE

services (Note 23) (Pft7E23) - 50,297
Stock appreciation rights expenses RN ILEREE A 833 3,683
Pension costs — defined contribution BRIREEA — BT RFEI (M)

plans (Note) 11,013 9,194
Welfare and other expenses B EEMER 3,818 4,871

143,367 155,747

Note: BiEE -
The Group is required to make specific contributions to the state-sponsored AEBEFZEERTEEEREIEMN16% (2018
retirement plan at a rate of 16% (2018: 20%) of the specified salaries of the F:20%) WREZN FRAREENEERAST
qualified employees in the PRC. The PRC government is responsible for the 2 - FEBRNEEXERNEENEEZ SR -

pension liability to the retired employees.
(a) Five highest paid individuals (a) EEBRSHAL

Year ended December 31,

BE12A3MBLEE

2019 2018

2019 & 20184F

Directors o 3 2
Non-director individual FEEEAL 2 3
5 5
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

32. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Continued)

(a)

Five highest paid individuals (Continued) (a)
For the year ended 31 December 2019, the five
individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group include three (2018: two) director whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis shown in Note

39. Details of emoluments paid to the five highest

individuals are as follows:

32. ETHBMAAE (&)

TEBREHAL(E)

HZE2019F12 A31HIEFE » &
SEANESFNALTBERE =4
(2018F : MAB)EF EF 2R
MIZE39M D AT R IR - RANFE
ENAEEaTMALTHE S
T

Year ended December 31,

BZ12A3MBLEE

2019 2018

2019 20184

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T AREFIT

Salaries and allowances e NoERE 14,737 14,221

Discretionary bonuses i iEe 39,078 7,049

Stock appreciation rights expenses frip 12 E#EER - 447
Pension costs — defined contribution E{RE AR — R EIRTFTE

plans 154 245

House allowance and other welfare FEEHEE M E MR F 1,761 1,683

Awarded shares expenses #BENZ (D & - 31,822

Share options expenses IERREE A 3,840 2,317

59,570 57,784

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

It EH B T 5 A S HBER

Number of individuals

Emolument bands (in HK$)
HK$5,000,001-HK$5,500,000
HK$6,000,001-HK$6,500,000
HK$10,000,001-HK$10,500,000
HK$13,500,001-HK$14,000,000
HK$15,000,001-HK$15,500,000
HK$19,000,001-HK$19,500,000
HK$27,000,001-HK$27,500,000

iR (BT)

5,000,001 % 7T 5,500,000 B 7T
6,000,001 7 7£ 6,500,000 /& 7T
10,000,001 /87T -10,500,000 % 7T
13,500,001 7T -14,000,0008 7T
15,000,001 77T -15,500,000 % 7T
19,000,001 87C-19,500,0007% 7T
27,000,001 8 7T-27,500,000 % 7T

AE
2019 2018
2019 5 20184F
2 1
- 1
1 —
- 1
- 1
1 —
1 1
5 5
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BB HRRN T (8)

32. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Continued) 32. EIHFMAA (&)

(b) During the financial year, none of the Directors of the (b)
Company and the five highest paid individuals:

(i) received any emolument from the Group as an
inducement upon joining the Group;

(i) waived or has agreed to waive any emoluments.

AMBEREHR - BEMAARE
FRABRBFALIRTIZE
I8 :

()  WEREMMESIERMARSE
I8 5y ) 22 R

(i) PRELRBRE TR

33. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 33. EHEH

Year ended December 31,

BE12A3MBLLEE

2019 2018
2019 F 20184
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARBTRE ARETE

Current income tax B HIFT 5 H 3,534 (321)

Deferred income tax (Note 24) EIEFTISHL (K15E 24) 58,919 47,733
62,453 47,412

(@) Taxation has been calculated on the estimated (a) ARBIEBANFEE (AT ERTEFEE

assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
B EHRERME ()

33. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 33. FISBEA (&)

(b)  The tax on the Group's profit before tax differs from the (b) AEERBKFHEATFENRE  EiR
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted FA & 0F = BE F) 8 i A /0 hn g 39 %
average tax rate applicable to profits of the consolidated EMEEANIERHENZ5EN
entities as follows: N

Year ended December 31,

HZ12A31BLLEE

2019 2018
2019 F 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%T ARETIT
Loss before income tax BRET B AIEE (1,398,673) (784,960)
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates EEABBEROFEIZE R
applicable to profits in the respective B & HhF Rt E HFL 18
countries 39,605 22,216
Tax effects of: HIEZE
— Expenses not deductible for — RA[F S H
tax purposes 1,619 5,767
— Temporary differences for which no — RIERIELEFTEHEERN
deferred income tax asset was R =R
recognised 973 19,406
— Recognition of temporary — A BT TS B 7 E R AR R
differences relating to acquisition W B MR BT E B R HY
of oil and gas properties upon TR
agreement of tax authority 20,580 -
— Adjustments in respect of prior years — LA R £ & 328 (324) 23
Tax charge BIEX W 62,453 47,412

REE 7 MEFHERIREE 4%
(20184 : -6%) °

During the year, the weighted average effective tax rate
was negative 4% (2018: negative 6%).

34. DIVIDENDS 3. RE

ARABEZGREARFE IR ERAF
(20184 : #&) °

The Board of Directors did not propose a dividend for the year
(2018: Nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

35. EARNINGS/(LOSSES) PER SHARE 35. FRWE (EE)
(a) Basic (a) EX
Basic earnings/(losses) per share is calculated by EARGRKE(E8) RIBEARA
dividing the profit/(loss) attributable to owners of the RIFT A EREWGEFE,(E18) @ &
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary AR A E BT T @A A hniE
shares in issue during the year. HHBEFE -

Year ended December 31,
BZE12A3MBLEEE

2019 2018
2019 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TRT AR¥TT

Profit/(loss) for the year attribute to BARETEERNFRNE(EE)

owners of the company used to V5B RN RIFT A & R F

determine basic earnings/(losses) b

per share (B#E)
— Continuing operations — BELE (1,457,214) (832,330)
— Discontinued operations — R 332,177 (363,463)

Weighted average number of ordinary  JI#EF @A E (THR)

shares (thousands) 3,136,343 2,908,985
Basic earnings/(losses) per share EAXGR I (EE)

— Continuing operations — FELE (0.46) (0.29)

— Discontinued operations — R 0.11 (0.12)

(0.35) (0.41)
(b) Diluted (b) i

This dilutive loss per share is the same as the basic loss R EHEEGRENEIER
per share. Al o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
B EHRERME ()

36. NET CASH INFLOW FROM OPERATING 36. EETHELNHRSTHE
ACTIVITIES

Year ended December 31,
BE12A3MBLEE

2019 2018
2019 20184F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBTT
Continuing operations BERE
Loss before income tax BRETISTIRIEE (1,398,673) (784,960)
Adjustments for: FHEE
Depreciation, depletion and amortisation  #TE - 7 M # 5 348,751 329,318
Interest expenses — net (Note 30) EF B (FfEE 30) 567,794 596,539
Net impairment losses on financial assets & gl & &R EE % 698,154 115,978
Impairment charges BERMERK 4,826 37,471
Share of losses from investments in ZEEBMECEIENEERNEE
associates - 9,318
Losses arising from disposal of REHEMEEEMENR
an associate - 19,927
Share-based payment to employees FERREET 8 T B B IRFSAL AR 10,841 54,743
Exchange gains G (4,509) (4,790)
Losses on changes in fair value of SMTEMNRARBEEBELX
financial instruments 71,159 35,560
Losses on disposal of subsidiaries BEFARiEk 21,197 -
Changes in working capital: BIER S EE)
Trade and other receivable FE U R A E U Tk (3,678) (22,296)
Trade and other payable FEAT % Eofth &~ 3k 162,766 108,115
Inventories FE 1,285 (1,428)
Cash generated from operations RETHEENRS 479,913 493,495
Cash flows from operating activities & EFEHNELRE
Continuing operations FELE 479,913 493,495
Interest paid 2FE (418,196) (479,093)
Income taxes paid ERPTEE - (62,450
Discontinued operations gl 11,911 132,127
Net cash inflow from operating activities sz 5184 H5E 73,628 94,079
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BFHTEHRERNE(E)

36. NET CASH INFLOW FROM OPERATING 36. RETHELEMNE S HEE(E)
ACTIVITIES (Continued)
This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the BB DT TR A BN D ITIARESE
movements in net debt for each of the periods presented. HIE EaEnNEs o

As at December 31,

M®12A31H
2019 2018
2019 F 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRT ARETE

Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEEY 13,711 28,115
Liquid investments MENRE - 17,755
Borrowings — repayable within one year &3k — —FLAREERE
(including overdraft) (BEEZE5E) (2,278,762) (2,549,888)
Borrowings — repayable after one year B — —FLALEER (1,720,505) (1,786,066)
Financial liabilities at FVTPL RARBEAEEEZESH A
EHERNERERE - (313,969)
Lease Liabilities HEAE (13,445) _
Net debt FAE (3,999,001) (4,604,053)
Cash and liquid investments BE MR E 13,711 45,870
Gross debt — fixed interest rates BEE— BEF=E (4.012,712) (4,649,923)
Net debt FEE (3,999,001)  (4,604,053)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

36. NET CASH INFLOW FROM OPERATING 36. RETBHEENRSFHE(E)
ACTIVITIES (Continued)
Cash and Borrowing Borrowing Financial
cash Liquid due within due after liabilities Lease
equivalent  investments 1year 1year at FVTPL Liabilities Total
NARER
FTRAHES
ReRBS —EHR —EhE HAEHER
BN naRE (S B NeRER HEAE @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETE ARETT  ARETT  ARETR  ARETE  ARETR
Net debt as at January 1,2018 R2018E1 518 R4 & 132,172 111,228 (1,529,011) (4,520,457) (1,067,626) = (6,873,694)
Cash flows Rei
— Continued operations —FELe (104,238) (34,245) 851,935 (313,261) (275,436) - 124,755
— Discontinued operations — R |HEE 9,478 - 255,015 150,642 - - 415,135
Foreign exchange adjustments ~ JMEFEZERE (7,183) (6,345) 2,303 (231,211) 15,211 - (207,225
Qther non-cash movements HiFR 288 - (52,883) (2,760,510) 2,695,238 21,331 - (96,824)
Transfer to Disposal Group eazRER (5 20)

(Note 20) 2,114) - 630,380 432,983 992,551 - 2,053,800
Net debt as at December 31,2018 R2018 12 A 31 B RE R 28115 17,755 (2,549,888) (1,786,066) (313,969) = (4,604,053)
Recognised on adoption of RRERHRSE

IFRS 16 (Note 2.2) Z165mR (22 - - - - - (7,056) (7,056)
Net debt as at January 1,2019  R20195151BF6%E 28,115 17,755 (2549,888) (1,786,066 (313,969) (7,056)  (4,611,109)
Cash flows BEm
— Continued operations —BERe (14,644) - 55,716 - 7,264 6,145 54,481
Acquisition — lease BELM - - - - - (12,487) (12,487)
Foreign exchange adjustments ~ MEEZERE 240 118 (24,658) (18,351) 14,023 (47) (28,675)
Qther non-cash movements EMFEEED - (17.873) 240,068 83,912 292,682 - 598,789
Net debt as at December 31,2019 R 2019512 A31 BEAfE 13,711 - (2.278,762)  (1,720,505) - (13.445)  (3,999,001)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

37. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 37. AHXBERREAR
(a) Commitments (a) &
(i) Capital commitments for the purchase of i) BELAIHE r - IHERXREZ
property, plant and equipment EARMAEEIE

As at December 31,

M12H831H
2019 2018
2019 20184
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARBTRT ARETET

Authorised by the Board of BEEEHEERRL
Directors but not contracted for 139,692 126,429
Contracted but not provided for BENEREE - -

139,692 126,429
(ii) Operating lease commitments (i) RKEBERR
The Group has operating lease commitments N & B A& ST E PN = A
related to its non-cancellable operating leases for ER ik ¥ = N B € P
offices and vehicles. The future aggregate M) EE - KEHEBE K
minimum lease payments under these operating BEEHEEENARZIE
leases not recognised in lease liabilities are as HENPTESRET -
follows:
As at December 31,
Rt=—A=+—~H
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T AREETTT
Less than 1 year PR —F 1,448 9,948
Within 1-2 years —EMF - 4,459
Within 2-5 years =ZER4E - 3,903

1,448 18,310
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BB HRRNE (8)

37. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
(Continued)

(b) Contingencies

The Group has contingent liabilities in respect of claims
or other legal procedures arising in its ordinary course
of business from time to time. As at December 31,
2019, the Directors did not anticipate that any material
liabilities will arise from the contingent liabilities other
than those provided for in the financial statements.

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group is indirectly controlled by Far East Energy Limited
("FEEL"), which owns 50.01% of the Company's shares and
is also the ultimate parent company of the Group. FEEL is a
limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong and its
ultimate benefit owners are Mr. Zhang Ruilin, Mr. Zhao
Jiangwei and Ms. Zhao Jiangbo (“Mrs. Zhang”, Mr. Zhang's
spouse).

In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the financial
statements, the Group incurred significant transactions and
balances with related parties in the ordinary course of its
business.

37.

38.

AHABERIAEE (E&)

(b) ZEEME

NEET BT EBRR M EE
RENEMEEREFRBHONER
f& - N2019%12A31H » E£7
MR E R BIRERPEEIN - TF
RSB EESREKEABED
=I5 o

BB X3

7N %2 [# % Far East Energy Limited (LA T~
78 [FEEL]) 514 - FEELEB AR
AIRAE50.01% + I B AR B K H 4L
BAR - FEELA—REBAZMAER
BEAERA HERZHmHFARRNRL
£ ETIREAERBIRZET (RtEZ
fef® - AT [RAAD o

BT IR ERR H A T PR ER SN - FEIE

BEGHERN  AEEE[ T EEE
ERXR G RFRRE °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 38. BEEt SR 5H (&)

(a) Significant transactions with related parties (a) EBERABE A MR ZBIRMT :
are set out below:

Year ended December 31,

HZ12A31BLLEE

2019 2018
2019 % 2018 €
RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR®TRT ARBTRT

Transactions with associates HBHErENRS
— Accrued interest income from — R T PBVAIRR R E K
shareholder’s loan to PBV FTE £ R 2 WA 37,652 27,109
— Investment in PetroBroad — ¥fPetroBroad % & (4,883) (3,.314)
Other transactions Hihx 5
— Dividend for convertible preferred  — %t CCGRF Gastown Limited
shares to CCGRF Gastown Limited AT B ST AR AR B - 69,364
Transactions with controlling HEAQRTRAKERATZERRRE
shareholder of the Company’s BARD A RAER A TER
ultimate holding company and/or RERMEHE AT/ ALH
a company/person related to the RS (*)

controlling shareholder of the
Company'’s ultimate holding
company (¥)

— Purchase for oilfield services — BB B RS (111,814) (117,929)
— Rental of vehicles and office — AEMNHAENHE

premises (193) (715)
— Individual loan from Mrs. Zhang — REKABABRK 19,084 7,478
— Repayment of individual loan and ~ — (&8 3R 3k AME A 2K & F L&

interest of Mrs. Zhang (17,055) (24,369)
@ The purchases of oilfield services and rental of vehicles and e BEEHRBTEMBRAEEER

office premises represented gross amount transacted between RERR AR GR KR ATE G R & 21T

the Group and Mrs. Zhang or entities controlled by Mrs. Zhang. L HH4EEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
B EHRERME ()

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 38. BEE AR 5H (&)

(b) Year-end balances with related parties are (b) BEAEXZERGEINRMOT :
summarised as follows:

As at December 31,

M12HA31H
2019 2018
2019 % 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TRT ARBTRT

Included in ‘trade and other [EEW R EMmERR] B :

receivables’:
Other receivables from Palaeontol B.V. E i fE& Palacontol B.V. FU& 7,121 7,006
Shareholder loans granted to ¥ ¥ Palaeontol B.V. iz E {& 5

Palaeontol B.V. 911,901 879,895
Other receivables from China E e B R B RE

Aerospace Telecommunications BRARIFIA

Limited - 590
Other receivables from companies H b fE U AN Rl B ARIERR T

controlled by the controlling PERR AR R Il ) A Al HY K1

shareholder of the Company’s

ultimate holding company 1,734 1,471

920,756 888,962

Included in ‘trade and other [EAREMESTR] B :

payables’:
Trade payables to companies controlled F&{f5 7R A a) g 4R35 A% 77 12 A%

by the controlling shareholder of the ~ AXERIZHIHY A FIHIE 5 728

Company’s ultimate holding company 118,515 67,504
Other payables from Palaeontol B.V.  E{th &1} Palaeontol B.V. 708 532 182
Others Ehb 1,595 699

120,642 68,385
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

38. MBS RZ (&)

(b) Year-end balances with related parties are (b) BEAEXZERGEINRMOT :
summarised as follows: (Continued) (&)
Trade payables to companies controlled by the JES 2R B B AR AR R AR AR R
controlling shareholder of the Company’s ultimate THINARMNE SHIE] BREFEMN
holding company represent payables for oilfield related LRERAHAZARARALRETFA
services from Jilin Guotai Petroleum Development AMEMERABEHEREERA
Company and its subsidiaries, Songyuan Guotai 7 N BB TR R AR A
Petroleum Technology Service Company and Jilin A BR A &) Sz A5t H AE 7 AR 7 HY e A~
Guotai Drilling Engineering Technology Service TKIF o
Company.
At December 31, 2019, all (2018: all) cash call balances R2019%F12 A31H » AT B(2018
are interest-free and unsecured, and the balances of F: A Re RS
shareholders’ loans are unsecured, carrying nominal FHRDEFE - A (20184 : AT
interest rate of ranging from 4.9% to 5.0% per annum B)IRRERBERBET  B&
(2018: 4.9% t0 5.0%). FHEEER49%ZE5.0% (2018
F:49%%E5.0%) °
(c) Loan to related parties (c) FEEABASER
2019 2018
2019 20184F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARET T
Loan to associates: FHESCEER
As at January 1, ®1B1H 879,895 813,731
— Repayment — & (27,578) (2,680)
— Interest charged — FEMA 37,652 27,109
— Repayment of interest — B S - (80)
— Exchange gains — [ 5 Wk 21,932 41,815
As at December 31, M12HA31H 911,901 879,895

R2019%F 12 A31H @ AEEKT
BECENBRRERZERTE
R BEFENNEHE ALII%E
5.0% (20184 : 4.9% £5.0%) °

The shareholders loans to associate as at December 31,
2019 is unsecured, carries interest ranging from 4.9%
10 5.0% per annum (2018: 4.9% to 5.0%).

300 MIEHOLDINGS CORPORATION / ANNUAL REPORT 2019



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BB HRRNE (8)

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

38. MBS RS (&)

(d) Loan from related parties (d) HREBELSEBER

2019 2018
2019 F 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBT T

Loan from related parties FREABTER
As at January 1, MW1HB1H8 170 16,758
— Addition —m 20,084 6,634
— Repayment —(EE (17,055) (24,369)
— Interest charged — N EEH 417 845
— Exchange gains — [ 5 ek 17 302
As at December 31, M®12A31H 3,633 170

M2019F12 A31H » KEERKE
BABSERSEERER 25
FRNZEE8Y o

The loan from related parties as at December 31, 2019
is unsecured, carries interest 8% per annum.

(e) Key management compensation: (e) TEEBAEMEIRWOT :

Year ended December 31,
BZE12ANBLEE

2019 2018

2019 F 20184

RMB’000 RMB'000

AREETT ARBT T

Basic salaries and allowances EARF & KERL 25,284 24,701

Discretionary bonuses HI5ES 39,429 7,462
Value of share based payment BhZ S5

— employee services — EERBEE 5,991 36,089

Other benefits including pension HipEH (BEERS) 2,289 2,361

72,993 70,613

IZEEABBREFNRRER
EAE - B EHEEIEE KA
FERRTS1& 12 & A AR »

Key management includes directors and members of
senior management. Bonuses fall due wholly within
twelve months after the end of the reporting period in
which management rendered the related services.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BFHTEHRERNE(E)

39. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383
OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP.
622G) AND HK LISTING RULES)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

39. EENAENER (BEB(QF

&) (565622 F) 5E383 KR A T
(BWEEERZEHR)BH) (5
622G E) AEMWHE)

(a) EBERERFUTEMS

Employer's Stock
Salaries Share  contribution appreciation  Awarded
and Discretionary ~ Housing options  to pension Other rights Shares
Fees allowances  bonuses allowance  expenses scheme benefits granted  expenses Total
B ER
Name of Director £33 He EERRE  BhRE  EERY BREER BRI HBBH BRERER  ROER it
RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR  ARETR ARETR ARMTR ARETR ARMTR ARETR ARETR ARETR  ARETR
For the year ended HEN95123318
December 31, 2019 g3
Zhang Ruiin RAR - 3,500 4137 366 575 L 467 - - 9,069
Thao Jiangwei FolE: - 3,000 45 257 575 3 386 - - 4599
Mei Liming* ikt - 346 2,890 5 183 1 1 - - 3,408
i Jianping -2 216 - - - ) 9 m
Jeffrey Willard Miller Jeffrey Willard Miller 345 132 9 486
Guo Yanjun IaE 276 - - 276
Jiao Qisen** ElA 12 12
Wang Xiong*** Fifre - -
Xie Na i
909 6,846 1372 628 1527 67 860 18 - Bw
Employer's
Salaries Share  contribution Stock  Awarded
and Discretionary ~ Housing options  to pension QOther  appreciation Shares
Fees allowances  bonuses  allowance  expenses scheme benefits rights granted  expenses Total
RS [
Name of Director EE e HeREY RERe EEIM EREER B0 HbEN RELEE  ROEE @t
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR
For the year ended BZE2018512A31R
December 31, 2018 LLEE
Zhang Ruilin KRR - 3,500 3980 366 522 24 457 - 14,509 23,358
Zhao Jiangwei FERE: S - 3,000 663 274 522 7 404 - 387 5322
Mei Jianping BET 265 - - - - = = (36) = 29
Jeffrey Willard Miller Jeffrey Willard Miller 332 - - - - = = (36) = 29
Guo Yanjun PEE 265 - - - - - - - - 265
Jiao Qisen** R 245 - - - - - - - - 245
Xie Na Eij - - - - - - - - - -
1,107 6,500 4,643 640 1,044 % 861 (72) 14,89 29,75
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

39. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383
OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP.
622G) AND HK LISTING RULES) (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(Continued)

* Mr. Mei Liming was appointed as an executive director with
effect from November 11, 2019 and was resigned as an
executive director with effect from June 18, 2020.

** Mr. Jiao Qisen was appointed as a non-executive director with
effect from January 29, 2018 and resigned with effect from
January 16, 2019.

***  Mr. Wang Xiong was appointed with effect from August 9, 2019
and resigned with effect from November 11, 2019.

Directors’ retirement benefits

The retirement benefits paid to Mr. Zhang Ruilin, during
the year by a defined benefit pension plan operated by
the Group in respect of Mr.Zhang Ruilin’s services as a
director of the company and its subsidiaries is
RMB23,521 (2018: RMB24,355).

The retirement benefits paid to Mr. Zhao Jiangwei,
during the year by a defined benefit pension plan
operated by the Group in respect of Mr. Zhao
Jiangwei's services as a director of the company and its
subsidiaries is RMB35,636 (2018: RMB71,880).

39. EENAENER (BER(LT
xHl) (55622 F) %383 xR 1 &
(BWEESNNZER) RO (5
622G E) REMNHKE) ()

(a) ESREFUTEMS (H)

& WRBELTEREDAATES A
20194 11 A 11 B#BAR © B 20204
6 718 HABBHE; -

*x FEEFRE A 8201841 29 A K
Eam RIEHMITESE - 52019F 1816
H e B -

*¥*x TR AER2019F8 A9 AT
W H20194F 11 A 11 B &b -

(b) EEMERAKER

REE  HASEEEER R T WS
RIREFEIMERANREEREIEARN
AR RET AR EZRERE MR
B R RRER A AR 23,521
JC(20184F : AR¥24,3557T) °

AEE  HALEZEBENRTE RS
EREIRETIRLEREEAR
AR RET AR EZRERE MM
EX R RIKRETR A AR 35,636
gL (20184 : AR¥71,8807L) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

40. RATMNMBRAKRK FHESE

DB BRI R

Statement of financial position of the Company

As at December 31,

M12A31H
2019 2018
20194 20184F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET R ARET T
Assets BE
Non-current assets FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment TB)E - TR RE 787 950
Interests in subsidiaries FRAAIRER 2,901,832 2,852,154
Prepayments, deposits and other TR - (RE & RE A EUGR
receivables 385,029 354,921
Loans to subsidiaries FRARUER 618,737 =
Right of use FEREEE 10,995 -
Financial assets at fair value through INARBEFEEEZESTA
other comprehensive income Hihm 8 WEsm e i E 2,263 2,227
3,919,643 3,210,252
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from associate JiE s B 5 N B R 0E - 168,160
Prepayments, deposits and other B - (RE & RE A EUGR
receivables 20,679 574,390
Financial assets at fair value through NAnBEREHEZFH T AZEH
profit or loss BaMemEE - 17,755
Cash and cash equivalents RERBFSEEY 3,053 14,381
23,732 774,686
Total assets EEMAR 3,943,375 3,984,938
Equity R
Equity attributable to owners of BERAATEENER
the Company
Share capital R& 2R 1,101,249 1,068,796
Other reserves E 1,451,724 1,456,152
Accumulated losses Z:tE1E (3,892,213) (2,480,551)
Total equity FERERE (1,339,240) 44,397
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BB HRRNE (8)

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 40

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

Statement of financial position of the Company

. RDT W BRR R R EEE B

&)

A0 TR B AR R ()

(Continued)
As at December 31,
M12H31H
2019 2018
20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T
Liabilities =N
Non-current liabilities FkRBEME
Borrowings &2k 1,720,505 771,401
Provisions, accruals and other liabilities %% « FEIE R EM A E 56,776 64,838
Lease liability HEAE 4,433 _
1,781,714 836,239
Current liabilities RBEE
Provisions, accruals and other liabilities %% - FEIZ R EM & E 322,593 240,445
Borrowings [=EN 1,219,854 2,549,888
Financial liabilities at fair value through WARBEFEEEZESEA
profit or loss BENERas - 313,969
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEFARIFIAE 1,949,872 -
Lease liability HEBE 8,582 =
3,500,901 3,104,302
Total liabilities =Rt 5,282,615 3,940,541
Total equity and liabilities ERRAERAE 3,943,375 3,984,938

The statement of financial position of the Company was
approved by the Board of Directors on November 27, 2020
and was signed on its behalf.

Zhang Ruilin
RAFR
Director

EE

KRBT AKX E R 2020F 11 A 27
HESseiE TRREFEZHRE -

Zhao Jiangwei
fi-pag |
Director

EE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BFHTEHRERNE(E)

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 40. XRAFMNBBEMRRAREBFZEEE

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (%)
(Continued)
Statement of financial position of the Company RATWE IR R R ()
(Continued)
(a) Other reserve movement of the Company (a) EATRWEMEEEE
Available-
Repurchased Currency Share based for-sale
shares held Capital translation payment financial ~ Financial assets
by trust reserve reserve Reserves assets at FVOCl Total
WAL EETE
BHEFAA
iR SNERE Ria% A THNE  Epgaks
mERL BhGHE i E4 SHEE nemaE 3t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARTT ARETT ARETT

As at January 1, 2018 ®2018%1A18 (117,817) 1,366,956 (16,318) 151,132 (5,042) = 1378911
Change in accounting policy SHRRNEE - - - - 5,042 206 5,248
At January 1,2018 #2018F 1718 (117,817) 1,366,956 (16,318) 151,132 - 206 1,384,159
Currency translation differences INEFEEE - - 17,250 - - - 17,250
Employees stock option scheme /& B B ;T 2l
— Value of employee services —EEREEE = = = 54,743 = = 54,743
— Shares transferred to the — EBLRBRD
Awarded Shares Grantees HRTE 27,841 - - (27,841) - - -
As at December 31, 2018 #2018% 124318 (89,976) 1,366,956 932 178,034 - 206 1,456,152
Available-
Repurchased Currency Share based for-sale
shares held Capital translation payment financial ~ Financial assets
by trust reserve reserve Reserves assets at FVoCI Total
HAREEHE
BHE®HA
fhE e EbGALEN
EERHG ERGfE NERERE BUFOEL SREE SHEE @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBFR ARBTR ARBTR

As at January 1, 2019 Ha019E1 318 (89,976) 1,366,956 ) 178,034 - 20 1,456,152
Currency translation differences SEREEE - - 15,269) - - - (15,269)
Employees stock option scheme EEEREE

— Value of employee services —EERBER - - - 10,841 - - 10,841
As at December 31, 2019 R2019F12A317 (89,976) 1,366,956 (14,337) 188,875 - 206 1451724
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

41.

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

Other than those disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, the Group had the following events
occurred since the end of the reporting period.

(@) In early 2020, following the outbreak of COVID-19, a
series of precautionary and control measures have been
implemented across China, including travel restrictions,
school closings, extended holidays, and requirements
that most business be conducted remotely. In addition,
the breakdown of production reduction negotiations
amongst the OPEC in March 2020 resulted in significant
impact to global crude oil prices, which further affected
the Group’s performance. These events together have
significant impacts to the Chinese economy, which
reduce domestic demand of refined oil, and intensify
competitions among oil companies. Most of the major
oil companies in China, including PetroChina, the
Group’s major customer, have been affected, which
have ultimately impacted and will continue to impact
the Group's business.

During the six months ended June 30, 2020 and the ten
months ended October 31, 2020, the average West
Texas Intermediate crude oil prices were US$42.1 per
barrel and US$41.6 per barrel, respectively,
representing decreases of 26.2% and 26.6% over the
same period of 2019, respectively. The outbreak of
COVID-19 and the international crude oil prices drop
since March 2020 are events arose after December 31,
2019, which are non-adjusting events after the balance
sheet date.

Based on the announcement of the Group's unaudited
interim results for the six months ended June 30, 2020
on August 31, 2020, it incurred a loss before income tax
of RMB832.6 million, which included an impairment
charge of RMB529.0 million against the Group’s
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
(Note (b)). The Group will continue to pay attention to
the situation of the COVID-19 and future fluctuation in
oil prices and assess related impacts to the financial
position and performance of the Group.

41. Hi& =1\

BREHMBEHRREMIEOBENER
Sh o REEBRERRAREBELT AT
e

(a) BEE2020F 4] COVID- 19T & IB
HEZE - B2 EEE N T
BIELTRE - BEEER  ERE
HAA R BSR K ED D (b ST IR AR I
REAR—ZRINEIFHIEREE 1k
4N+ 202043 A OPEC B X 2 [ #t
TTRUBERAEN - {2 IKFERE
BEETERVE g%
BTAREENES - Ll EHFEAF
BIEEETEATE  BEMS
BERERMZBIR D - B - K&
AR A RB B ANE TR RA
AR A REEFEREEME IR H
EMR - FBENARZHEZHBAA
A BREENFERFHP LMK
m BRETEEFE  EOEY
BEHEREYEASERNER -

#H 2202096 A30H I ®6M@E A
HAR AN 2= 2020410 A 31 H IEHY
101E A HAfE - PafE s iE AT S R
HFEHREEE SR AERL2.1%
JLMA1.63TT - DRI T T 26.2%
AM26.6% ° COVID-198 18 3 F1
20204 3 A AR A B [RBER T
BEE2019F 12 A31 B2 1% 4
MEH EREEEABEXRAKH
TS o

RIEEBE2020F8A31H AE K
HZE 202046 A30H 1-61E A BB
RIRCETHHIEE  BRAREE
RS RAIEEeREAARK
8326 HE L HABEAEEY
THE  THREREBEAREREE
FraT iR EE X ARKEB29.08
Eir (Mt b)) - XEEKFERE
COVID-19 31 73 & 15 25 & JA 2 K 2K
RORERE) - Wi EZEZERA
SEPBmMRREEEENTE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI RERME (E)

41. SUBSEQUENT EVENT (Continued)

(b)

As mentioned in note (a) above, the declined oil price
since March 2020 and the outlook of oil prices for the
near term constitute an indicator of impairment. The
Group performed impairment assessment on its non-
financial assets based on conditions existed as at June
30, 2020 and an impairment provision of RMB529.0
million on property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets in the PRC was recognised in the unaudited
management accounts for the six months ended June
30, 2020.

Subsequent to December 31, 2019, the Group paid
RMB8.4 million as partial repayments of the principals
and RMB42.0 million for interest due on the borrowings
mentioned in Note 2.1.1. The Group however did not
pay the interest accrued on the 2022 Senior Notes of
RMB120.5 million (US$17.1 million) due on April 12,
2020, which resulted in an event of default by the
Group after the expiry of the grace period to May 11,
2020. As a result, the entire balance of the principal and
related outstanding interest due on the 2022 Senior
Notes became immediately repayable if requested by
the Noteholders. This event of default also triggered the
cross-default of the Cross-Defaulted Borrowings and
immediate repayment of such borrowings if requested
by the Lenders. In addition, the secured borrowings
totalling RMB1,868.1 million were also subsequently
defaulted because of non-payment at their respective
due dates (Note 2.1.1 and 27).

On June 4, 2020, the Group successfully obtained
approval from its production sharing counterparty,
CNPC, to extend the expiry date of the production
period from December 31, 2024 to February 29, 2028
on the condition that the Group shall drill a minimum
number of new wells in the Daan oilfield as agreed
within a period of three years from June 2020 (Note
2.1.1 and 9(a)).
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41. HAEEE (E)

(b)

2R _E st B 5E () Bt - B 20204 3
B DABR S B #9 T Bk A K3 2 (B A
TR T REDR - NEBIRE
H E20209F6 A30H8 WIR A &4
HIESHMEEETREF G - Wi
#H E20206 A30H 1-61E A A
FHAREETNEEIRE PR

HPEAYE - KFE - RENEEE
ERREEHSARES29.08ETT °

7R2019%12 A31 H% - A&EB|(E
BT M EE2.1.1 IR R {8 R EB
DS NRHES.4HE T LA K FER
FEARBEA20EETT » A A
EE AR 202054 A12 B 2 5
#2022 8 % ZIEERT A B AR
1206 T (A171BEET) &
B AREBE202065 811 HE
ERPERBELEENEGH - IR
ZERBEEAZR BIELBER
2022BAEZEARAS BB RE
FIBHZ AT - ZHENBHERS
BTENVEFNRIXEL - WA
RELEEFNAREERARDE
o ZEEFHEINEE B
G BETAARB1,868.1H & T
MR NENERBBELERAES
BfARBEEMEEEN(ME
2.1.1%127) »

20206 A4 H » REERKIHE
BEMAKERNEEERABE
B RHE - SEEBNBRER
2024F 12 A31 BEE K E 2028 F 2
H29H8 ' RiiR A& B JE 52020
FOHREMIEN ERLHET
XA FE BT S B & D B = (FY
F£2.1.1F19()) °
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